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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS Bf#%5# &

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012
HK$' million  HK$' million  HK§' million ~ HK$' million HKS' million
BEAT BEET BEET BEET BEET
Revenue - Continuing EEE-REEH
operations
Restaurant, food and B RE KB
hotel 424 475 517 580 622
Property investment WERERER
and development 267 85 96 113 551
691 560 613 693 1,173
Profit Attributable to BAREEA
Owners of the Parent FE15 % 7l 229 173 400 163 113
Basic Earnings GREXRZM (1)
per Share (cents) 21.62 15.13 34.93 14.26 9.88
Net Assets BEEFHE 2,830 2,999 3,293 3,473 3,382
Total Assets BEE 4,241 4,554 5,107 5,652 5,932
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CORPORATE INFORMATION A= & #}

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

MA, Kai Cheung, PhD, SBS, BBS (Chairman)
MA, Kai Yum, PhD (Vice Chairman)

NG, Yan Kwong

MA, Hung Ming, John, phD, BBS

YUEN, Wai Man

Independent Non-Executive Directors

LO, Ming Chi, Charles
LO, Man Kit, Sam
WONG, See King

AUDIT COMMITTEE

LO, Ming Chi, Charles (Chairman)
LO, Man Kit, Sam
WONG, See King

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

LO, Man Kit, Sam (Chairman)
LO, Ming Chi, Charles
WONG, See King

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

MA, Kai Cheung, pPhD, SBS, BBS (Chairman)
LO, Ming Chi, Charles

LO, Man Kit, Sam

WONG, See King

COMPANY SECRETARY

NG, Yan Kwong
REGISTERED OFFICE

Canon’s Court
22 Victoria Street
Hamilton HM12
Bermuda

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACES OF
BUSINESS

26/F Phase Il Wyler Centre
200 Tai Lin Pai Road

Kwai Chung

New Territories

Hong Kong

5/F Carrianna Friendship Square
2002 Renminnan Road

Lo Wu District

Shenzhen

China
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CORPORATE INFORMATION A&I&#}
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TRANSFER OFFICE

HSBC Bank Bermuda Limited
6 Front Street

Hamilton HM11

Bermuda

HONG KONG SHARE REGISTRARS AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Tengis Limited
26/F, Tesbury Centre
28 Queen’s Road East
Hong Kong

SOLICITORS

King & Wood Mallesons
King & Company

LEGAL ADVISERS ON BERMUDA LAW

Appleby
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Ernst & Young

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

The Hongkong & Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

Hang Seng Bank Limited

The Bank of East Asia, Limited

Chong Hing Bank Limited

Wing Hang Bank Limited

COMPANY WEBSITE

http://www.taksing.com.hk
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT F &S5

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | am pleased to present
to you the Annual Report of Tak Sing Alliance Holdings
Limited for the financial year ended 31 March 2012.

RESULTS

For the year ended 31 March 2012, the Group's turnover
was HK$1,172,769,000 (2011: HK$692,840,000), increased
by 69% from last year. The Group's profit attributable to
shareholders was HK$113,105,000 (2011: HK$163,209,000),
reduced by 31% from last year. The reason for the
decrease in profit was that in last year, the Group’'s 50%
owned associated company, South China International
Purchasing Exchange Limited, had a compensation income
from cancellation of a land cooperation contract, the
resulted share of profit from this associated company was
HK$74,712,000. Excluding the effect of this non-recurring
item in both years, the Group’s profit attributable to
shareholders increased by 29% from last year. During the
year, the Group's property business recorded satisfactory
growth in turnover and operating profit. Hotel, restaurant
and food businesses recorded growth in turnover and
reduction in operating profit.

DIVIDEND

The Directors have recommended the payment of a final
dividend of HK4 cents per share for the year ended 31 March
2012.

PROPERTY

Turnover for property for the year was HK$550,811,000
(2011: HK$113,157,000), significantly higher than last year
by 3.9 times. Segment operating profit was HK$214,059,000
(2011: HK$178,612,000), increased by 20% from last year.
Excluding the effect of non-recurring contract cancellation
gain from associated company South China International
and property revaluation gain, recurring segment profit
was HK$123,811,000 (2011: HK$5,026,000) significantly
increased by 23 times from last year. Turnover from property
rental was HK$68,469,000, increased by 16% from last year
while property sales revenue was HK$482,342,000, 7.9 times
higher than last year,
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT &S5

During the year, both property development projects of
the Group recorded satisfactory sales revenue. The two
high rise lake view residential buildings in Grand Lake City,
Yiyang city of Hunan Province were completed. Together
with some remaining property sales from phase 1, total sales
revenue recorded for Grand Lake City was HK$142,252,000,
significantly increased by 1.9 times from last year. During
the year, phase 2 of Grand Lake City, comprising 6 blocks
of high rise lake view residential property and a shopping
centre, started construction. The revised building area will
be 135,000 M?2. Part of the phase 2 property was launched
for sales in May 2012 and RMB140 million contract sales
were made within a month. This is a very satisfactory result
considering the property market is currently very slow in
China. Grand Lake City has become the best selling property
project in Yiyang city.

Phase 1 of China East City in Lianyungang of Jiangsu
province, comprising 182,000 M? of leather and construction
material wholesale markets, was completed during the year
and various part of the wholesale markets started operations
from end of 2011 to mid 2012. Sales revenue recorded was
HK$338,184,000. Up to end of June 2012, approximately
RMB100 million contract sales were made which will be
booked as revenue in the next financial year.

During the year, the Group’s 50% owned associated
company, South China International Purchasing Exchange
Limited, had paid all land use premium of RMB410 million
and obtained land use certificate for the Dongguan
commercial project. Land site was 78,000 M? with plot ratio
of 3.5 and buildable area of 274,000 M?. The planning stage
of the project had been completed with a plan to build the
biggest household furniture, appliances and construction
material retail centre of Dongguan city. Red Star Macalline,
the biggest household furniture retail operator in China,
has signed contract to become anchor operator in the retail
centre. Construction of the project will start in fourth quarter
of 2012.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT F &S5

During the year, rental income increased by a satisfactory
16% to HK$68,469,000. Shopping mall in Carrianna
Friendship Square and Imperial Palace were the major
contributors of the increase in rental income. Together with
other properties in Guangdong and Hong Kong, the Group’s
investment properties portfolio will continue to provide
stable and growing rental income. On the other hand, the
Group owns 14.8% of China South City Holdings Limited
which has just announced its annual results with satisfactory
growth in profit and dividend. The Group’s dividend income
from China South City to be received in September 2012
will increase by 2 times to HK$66,700,000. The Group's
investment in China South City has become a significant cash
income contributor for the shareholders.

For the coming year, rental and dividend income together
will exceed HK$130,000,000 and will become the Group’s
stable source of cash income. Property sales will likely be less
than this year but will continue to provide satisfactory profit.
Overall, the Group’s property development and investment
businesses have entered a harvest stage and will continue to
provide good cash and profit to shareholders.

Hotel, restaurant and food

Turnover for hotel, restaurant and food division for the year
was HK$621,958,000 (2011: HK$579,683,000), increased
by 7% from last year. Segment profit was HK$96,828,000
(2011: HK$110,983,000), decreased by 13%. Decrease
in profit was mainly due to a non-recurring income was
recorded in last year of HK$22,735,000, mainly being over
provision of tax in past years from two Shenzhen restaurants
which ceased business in prior year and obtained final tax
clearance from the tax authority in last year ascertaining
the actual tax payable was lower than prior year provisions.
On the other hand, the closure of Shanghai Carrianna
Restaurant due to expiry of rental contract during the year
had resulted in non-recurring closure loss of HK$4,074,000
which was mainly for asset write-off and staff compensation.
Excluding these non-recurring items, current year operating
profit should be HK$100,902,000, increased by 14% from
last year (HK$88,248,000).
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT &S5

As for turnover, growth was mainly from food and hotel
business while the decrease in restaurant business turnover
offset about one third of such growth. Restaurant business
environment was tough due to tightening economic policy
of the government. With the exception of Beijing and Hong
Kong, restaurant turnover in all other city either decreased
or remained about the same as last year. On the other hand,
human resources and food costs continued to increase
substantially. As a result, operating profit for restaurant
reduced by approximately 20% from last year. For food,
mooncake sales continued to grow satisfactory by 28%.
However, due to food cost increase, operating profit only
improved by 17%. For hotel, both turnover and operating
profit increased slightly from last year.

For the coming year, economic outlook for China is still
uncertain and business dining sector will continue to face
difficulties. Together with continuous but moderate increase
in food and staff cost, hotel, restaurant and food businesses
will probably not have significant growth. Management will
continue to work hard in improving operating efficiency in
order to keep the continuous growth in operating profit from
the division.

APPRECIATION

I would like to take this opportunity to extend my
appreciation to the Board of Directors, our management
team and staff for their support and dedication to the Group
and to our shareholders, customers, suppliers and other
business partners for their unfailing support.

Dr. Ma Kai Cheung
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 June 2012
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DIRECTOR AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S BIOGRAPHIES EE N SR EE A BSFE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

MA Kai Cheung, rrp, s8s, 88s, aged 70, is the Chairman
and founder of the Group. Mr. Ma has more than 40 years’
experience in the garment distribution and manufacturing
business, over 20 and 10 years’ experience in the restaurant
business and property development respectively. He
is responsible for the strategic planning and business
development of the Group. He is a committee member of
the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference. He
is the President of Shenzhen Overseas Chinese International
Association. Mr. Ma also serves as President of Federation
of Hong Kong Guangdong Community Organisations,
Permanent Honorary President of Federation of Hong Kong
Chiu Chow Community Organizations, Permanent Honorary
President of Hong Kong Chiu Chow Chamber of Commerce
Limited and President of Hong Kong & Kowloon Chiu Chow
Public Association. Mr. Ma is a brother of Mr. Ma Kai Yum.

MA Kai Yum, rnp, aged 61, is Vice Chairman and
Managing Director of the Group. He has been a Director of
the Group since 1984 and has over 30 years’ experience in
the garment business. Mr. Ma is responsible for the daily
operations and administration and, together with Mr. Ma Kai
Cheung, for the strategic planning of the Group. Mr. Ma is
a member of Guangdong Provincial Committee of Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference and also serves
as a Director of the Chinese Manufacturers Association of
Hong Kong, Vice President of Hong Kong & Kowloon Chiu
Chow Public Association. Mr. Ma is a brother of Mr. Ma Kai
Cheung.

NG Yan Kwong, aged 51, is Executive Director, Chief
Financial Officer and Company Secretary of the Group since
2000. He holds a Bachelor’'s degree in Commerce of the
University of Newcastle in Australia and is a member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
the CPA Australia. Before joining the Group, Mr. Ng was
the finance director of a US beverage company operating in
Mainland China. Mr. Ng has more than 10 years corporate
and financial management experience with multinational
consumer product companies in South East Asia and Greater
China region. He also has substantial working experience
in public accountancy practice with a major international
accounting firm.
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DIRECTOR AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S BIOGRAPHIES EE N SR EE A BSFE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)

MA Hung Ming, John, rnp, 885, aged 45, has been the
Managing Director of Carrianna Holdings Limited since
26th April 2002. Mr. Ma joined the Group in 1990 and is
currently responsible for the Group’s property development
operations. He has extensive experience in the catering
industry, as well as property management and development.
Mr. Ma was awarded the Bronze Bauhinia Star (BBS) from
The Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region in 2003 and a Honorary Doctorate of Philosophy
degree by Morrison University in 2004. Mr. Ma was the
Chairman of Tung Wah Group of Hospitals for the year 2002.
He is a member of the Standing Committee of Shenzhen
Committee of Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference and a Director of Hong Kong Chiu Chow
Chamber of Commerce Ltd. He is the son of Mr. Ma Kai
Cheung, the Chairman and an executive director of the
Company.

YUEN Wai Man, aged 52, is the general manager of the
Group’s Carrianna brand restaurants in the PRC. He has
been serving the Group since 1991. Mr. Yuen has about 30
years' experience in restaurant operations and the catering
industry.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

LO Ming Chi, Charles, aged 62, joined the Group in
1991. Mr. Lo is a member of the CPA Australia and fellow
of the Financial Services Institute of Australasia. Mr. Lo is
an executive director and Chief Executive Officer of China
Tycoon Beverage Holdings Limited (formerly known as Sewco
International Holdings Limited). He is an executive director
and Chief Executive Officer of New Island Printing Holdings
Limited. He is also an independent non-executive director of
New Environmental Energy Holdings Limited (formerly known
as Hembly International Holdings Limited) and Cash Financial
Services Group Limited. He was Deputy Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer of Poly Development Holdings Limited
from 7 December 2000 to 19 November 2009. He was an
Executive Director of Sun Innovation Holdings Limited from
21 July 2009 to 1 March 2010. All of which are listed on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. He has more than 20
years of professional and business experience in financial and
investment services in Australia, Hong Kong and other Asian
countries.
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DIRECTOR AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S BIOGRAPHIES EE N SR EE A BSFE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

(continued)

LO Man Kit, Sam, aged 51, joined the Group in July 2004.
Mr. Lo is a practising solicitor in Hong Kong and a consultant
of Messrs. C.C. Lee & Co.. He has over 20 years of extensive
experience in the areas of conveyancing, banking and
commercial law. He is also admitted as solicitor in England
and Singapore.

WONG See King, aged 51, joined the Group in August
2007. Mr. Wong is currently a Chief Financial Officer of
HAGER Asia Limited, a subsidiary of the HAGER Group which
is a US market leader of selling building hardware products
and is now engaging through its subsidiaries in the People’s
Republic of China (“China”) to sell and manufacture mainly
hinge hardware products. Mr. Wong had also worked as
financial and business executive in various Australian, UK
and US multi-national companies. He has over 20 years’
of working experience in the corporate finance, building
hardware, FMCG manufacturing and distribution business in
Hong Kong and China and property development business
in Australia. He holds a bachelor’s degree in Economics from
Macquarie University (Australia) and is a member of the
Australian Society of CPAs.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

MA Hung Man, Raymond, aged 36, is the Vice President
of China East International Materials City. Mr. Ma graduated
from the University of California, Davis with a Bachelor
of Science Degree in Civil Engineering and he holds a
Professional Engineer license in Civil Engineering in USA.
He has substantial experience in structural engineering,
construction management and property development. He is
the son of Mr. Ma Kai Cheung.

YAU So Kan, aged 41, is General Manager of the
Carrianna Hotel in Foshan, PRC. She has been serving
the Group since 2004. Ms. Yau has formed an effective
management team in hotel management since the Company
took over the management of Carrianna Hotel. Ms. Yau
has about 10 years’ experience in hotel management and
operation.

Zhang JI Yong, aged 43, graduated from Hunan University
and holds a Master Degree of Project Management. Mr.
Zhang is the Managing Director of Carrianna (Hunan)
Holding Co., Ltd. Mr. Zhang has about 20 years working
experience in real estate industry. He has extensive
experience in property sales and development in Changsha
City and Yiyang City of Hunan Province. He also serves as
President of Real Estate Industry Association of Yiyang City.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT 1374
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard
of corporate governance as set out in the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices, which has been renamed as Corporate
Governance Code with effect from 1 April 2012 (the “"CG
Code”), in Appendix 14 of The Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) which became
effective on 1 January 2005. The corporate governance
principles of the Company emphasis a quality board of
directors, sound internal control, principles and practices and
transparency and accountability to all shareholders of the
Company. The Company has complied with the CG Code
throughout the accounting period covered by this report,
except for deviation in respect of the separation of the roles
of chairman and chief executive.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as the
code for securities transactions by Directors of the Company.
Following specific enquiry by the Company, the Directors
have confirmed that they have complied with the required
standard under the Model Code throughout the year.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors of the Company (the “Board”)
currently comprises eight Directors and its composition is as
follows:

Executive Directors

Ma Kai Cheung (Chairman)
Ma Kai Yum (Vice Chairman)
Ng Yan Kwong

Ma Hung Ming, John

Yuen Wai Man

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Lo Ming Chi, Charles
Lo Man Kit, Sam
Wong See King
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

The brief biographical details of the Directors are set out in
the "Director and Senior Management’'s Biographies” on
pages 9 to 11 of this report.

The composition of the Board is reviewed regularly to ensure
that it has a good balance of expertise, skills and experience
which can meet the requirements of the business of the
Company.

Responsibilities of Directors

The Board is responsible for ensuring continuity of
leadership, development of sound business strategies,
availability of adequate capital and managerial resources
to implement the business strategies adopted, adequacy of
systems of financial and internal controls and conduct of
business in conformity with applicable laws and regulations.
All Directors have made full and active contribution to the
affairs of the Board and the Board has always acted in the
best interests of the Group.

The Executive Directors and senior management are
delegated with respective levels of authorities with regard
to key corporate strategy and policy and contractual
commitments. Management is responsible for the day-to-day
operations of the Group with divisional heads responsible for
different aspects of the business.

The Board is responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements. The Company has adopted the generally
accepted accounting standards in Hong Kong in preparing
the financial statements, appropriate accounting policies
have been adopted and applied consistently, and reasonable
and prudent judgement and estimates have been made. The
publication of the financial statements of the Group is also in
a timely manner.

The Board has reviewed the financial projections of
the Group and the Board is not aware of any material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions which may
cast significant doubt over the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern. Accordingly, the Board has continued
to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial
statements.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)

Board Meetings

During the year, the Board met regularly and held eight
meetings. The attendance record, on a named basis, at these
meetings is set out in the table on page 20 of this report.

Regular board meetings are scheduled in advance
to facilitate all directors’ attendance. Regular board
meetings are scheduled to be held four times a year at
approximately quarterly intervals. At least 14 days’ notice
of a board meeting is given to all directors who are given
an opportunity to include matters for discussion in the
agenda. If potential conflict of interest involving a substantial
shareholder or a director arises, the matter is discussed
in a physical meeting, as opposed to being dealt with by
written resolution. The directors attend meetings in persons
or through other means of electronic communication in
accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company.

Board papers are circulated approximately three days before
the board meetings to enable the directors to make informed
decisions on matters to be raised. The Company Secretary
assists the chairman in preparing the agenda for meetings
and ensures that all applicable rules and regulations are
complied with. The Company Secretary shall attend all
regular board meetings to advise on corporate governance,
statutory compliance, accounting and financial matters when
necessary. Directors shall have full access to information on
the Group and are able to obtain independent professional
advice whenever deemed necessary by the directors. The
Company Secretary shall prepare minutes and keep records
of matters discussed and decisions resolved at all board
meetings.

Each newly-appointed director will be provided with a
package of orientation materials setting out the duties and
responsibilities of directors under the Listing Rules, related
ordinances and relevant regulatory requirements of Hong
Kong. Updates are provided to directors when necessary to
ensure that directors are aware of the latest changes in the
commercial and regulatory environment in which the Group
conducts its business.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

According to the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the
roles of chairman and chief executive should be separate and
should not be performed by the same individual.

Up to the date of this report, the Board has not appointed
an individual to the post of chief executive. The roles of
the chief executive have been performed collectively by
all the executive directors, including the chairman, of the
Company. The Board considers that this arrangement allows
contributions from all executive directors with different
expertise and is beneficial to the continuity of the Company’s
policies and strategies.

Going forward, the Board will periodically review the
effectiveness of this arrangement and considers appointing
an individual to becoming a chief executive when it thinks
appropriate.

One of the important roles of the Chairman is to provide
leadership to the Board to ensure that the Board always
acts in the best interests of the Group. The Chairman shall
ensure that the Board works effectively and performs its
responsibilities, and that all key and appropriate issues are
discussed by it in a timely manner. All directors have been
consulted about any matters proposed for inclusion in the
agenda. With the support of the Company Secretary, the
Chairman seeks to ensure that all directors are properly
briefed on issues arising at any board meeting and have
received adequate and reliable information in a timely
manner.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The non-executive directors provide a wide range of
expertise and experience as well as checks and balances to
safeqguard the interests of the Group and its shareholders.
Their participation in the board and committee meetings
brings independent judgement on issues relating to the
Group's strategy, performance, conflicts of interest and
management process to ensure that the interests of all
shareholders of the Company have been duly considered.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (continued)

The non-executive directors of the Company have been
appointed for a term subject to retirement by rotation and
re-election at the annual general meeting of the Company
in accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company. According
to Bye-law 102(A) of the Bye-laws of the Company,
director appointed to fill any casual vacancy shall hold
office only until the next annual general meeting after
their appointment and shall be subject to re-election by the
shareholders of the Company. According to Bye-law 99 of
the Bye-laws of the Company, one-third of the directors for
the time being shall retire from office by rotation (except
Chairman or Managing Director) and shall be eligible for re-
election at each annual general meeting.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has three independent non-executive directors
representing more than one-third of the Board. More
than one of the independent non-executive directors have
the appropriate professional qualifications or accounting
or related financial management expertise. The Board
confirms that the Company has received from each of the
independent non-executive directors an annual confirmation
of his independence and considers that all the independent
non-executive directors are independent under the guidelines
set out in Rules 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE AND
REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

The Remuneration Committee was established on 1 April
2005 and currently comprises three independent non-
executive directors and its composition is as follows:

Lo Man Kit, Sam (Chairman)
Lo Ming Chi, Charles
Wong See King

During the year, the Remuneration Committee held one

meeting. The attendance record, on a named basis, at this
meeting is set out in the table on page 20 of this report.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE AND
REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS (continued)

The objectives of the Remuneration Committee are to
establish and maintain an appropriate and competitive level
of remuneration to attract, retain and motivate directors
and key executives to run the Company successfully. The
Remuneration Committee also ensures that the remuneration
policies and systems of the Group support the Group's
objectives and strategies. The Remuneration Committee is
provided with sufficient resources to perform its duties. A set
of written terms of reference, which described the authority
and duties of the Remuneration Committee, was adopted
by the Board on 1 April 2005, amended and restated on 26
March 2012 and the contents of which are in compliance
with the code provisions of the CG Code.

The major roles and functions of the Remuneration
Committee are as follows:

to make recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s policy and structure for all Directors’
and senior management remuneration and on the
establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for
developing remuneration policy;

(a)

to review and approve the management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the Board’s corporate goals
and objectives;

either:

to determine, with delegated responsibility, the
remuneration packages of individual executive
Directors and senior management; or

to make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration packages of individual executive
Directors and senior management.

This should include benefits in kind, pension rights and
compensation payments, including any compensation
payable for loss or termination of their office of
appointment;

FHERERESEZHSE (8)

FWEZEe BN ERGFEBEY
BEBF N2 HMKE Bt g BB
HBEENETETHRAER  5RAQH
EBTRRY - FHE B e IR AEE
N ER S Bl R ST AN R B 2 B AR
G - FNZ B S EHRETRERAET
HBE -EF2CN_TTHAFNA—H
K- EEBESEE YN _F—=
FZAZTARBERRER  AFFME
BEgzREBE ARG (BR T
Al) 257 BIERS -

Mz EecTEAERINRENT:

RARREERSAEEAEBNE
BHFMBERMRE MLRILER
B % B B0 A2 7 1) 5T 1t 35 3 B X
R-MEFGROEZS:

(a)

REE=ESMI XS HEBEM
T E R HE B TR R Hr B A

ATMEZ—:

EE=g@RAT BE@5
WITESREMEEABNT
a8 Bk

AEFEEZBNATEER
EREREAENFHHTE-

HRERBHFETENG RASERN
FHEEHE (BREBRAKRILRBE
R ETWERE)

TAK SING ALLIANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED iE X & &



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT 1374

/B

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE AND
REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS (continued)

(d)

to make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration of non-executive Directors;

to consider salaries paid by comparable companies,
time commitment and responsibilities and employment
conditions elsewhere in the group;

to review and approve compensation payable to
executive Directors and senior management for any loss
or termination of office or appointment to ensure that it
is consistent with contractual terms and is otherwise fair
and not excessive;

to review and approve compensation arrangements
relating to dismissal or removal of Directors for
misconduct to ensure that they are consistent with
contractual terms and are otherwise reasonable and
appropriate;

to ensure that no Director or any of his associates is
involved in deciding his own remuneration and that, as
regards the remuneration of a non-executive Director
who is a member of the Committee, his remuneration
should be determined by the other members of the
Committee;

to advise shareholders of the Company on how to vote
with respect to any service contracts of Directors that
require shareholders’ approval under Rule 13.68 of
Listing Rules; and

to report back to the Board on their decisions or
recommendations, unless there are legal or regulatory
restrictions on their ability to do so (such as a restriction
on disclosure due to regulatory requirements).

During the year 2012, the Remuneration Committee made
recommendations to the Board on executive directors’
remuneration packages and terms of employment. The
Committee also formulated and evaluated the remuneration
policy and structure for the directors and senior management
of the Company.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was established on 26 March
2012. The Nomination Committee is responsible for making
recommendation to the nomination of Directors with a view
to appointing suitable individuals with relevant expertise and
experience to enhance the constitution of the Board and to
contribute to the Board. In the nomination procedures, the
Nomination Committee makes reference to criteria including
reputation of candidates for integrity, accomplishment and
experience, professional and educational background.

The Nomination Committee comprises one executive director
and three independent non-executive directors, and its
composition is as follows:—

Mr. Ma Kai Cheung (Chairman)
Mr. Lo Ming Chi, Charles

Mr. Lo Man Kit, Sam

Mr. Wong See King

During the year, no meeting was convened by the
Nomination Committee.

A set of new written terms of reference, which described
the authority and duties of the Nomination Committee, was
adopted by the Board on 26 March 2012 and the contents
of which are in compliance with the Code Provisions and
Recommended Best Practices of the CG Code.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established on 1 April 1999
and currently comprises three independent non-executive
directors. It is chaired by an independent non-executive
director. Its composition is as follow:—

Lo Ming Chi, Charles (Chairman)
Lo Man Kit, Sam
Wong See King

A set of new written terms of reference, which described the
authority and duties of the Audit Committee, was adopted
by the Board on 1 September 2004 and the contents of
which are in compliance with the Code Provisions and
Recommended Best Practices of the CG Code.

The Audit Committee is accountable to the Board and the
principal duties of the Audit Committee include the review
and supervision of the Group's financial reporting processes
and internal controls. The Committee is also provided with
other resources to enable it to discharge its duties fully.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (continued)

During the year, the Audit Committee held two meetings
and the external auditors were in attendance. The
attendance record, on a named basis, at these meetings is
set out in the table on page 20 of this report.

The Audit Committee has reviewed with the management
of the Company and Ernst & Young, the auditors of the
Company, the accounting principles and practices adopted
by the Group and has discussed auditing, internal controls
and financial reporting matters, including the review of the
annual report of the Company for the year ended 31 March
2012.

For the year ended 31 March 2012, the auditors of the
Company received approximately HK$2,550,000 for audit
service.

ATTENDANCE AT MEETINGS OF THE
BOARD, THE AUDIT COMMITTEE, THE
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE AND THE
NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Attendance records at the meetings of the Board of
Directors, Remuneration Committee, Audit Committee and
Nomination Committee held for the year ended 31 March
2012 are as follows:—
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Executive Directors WHES
Ma Kai Cheung BNE 8 8 - - 2 1 0 0
Ma Kai Yum B 8 7 - - 2 - - -
Ng Yan Kwong REX 8 8 - 1% 2 > - -
Ma Hung Ming, John bS] 8 3 - - 2 - - -
Yuen Wai Man REX 8 3 - - 2 - - -
Independent Non-Executive BUMGTESR

Directors
Lo Ming Chi, Charles 5HE 8 3 1 1 2 2 0 0
Lo Man Kit, Sam BN 8 3 1 1 2 2 0 0
Wong See King BER 8 3 1 1 2 2 0 0
*”- In attendance * Bl
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COMMUNICATION CHANNELS

In order to develop and maintain continuing relationships
with the shareholders of the Company, the Company has
established various channels to facilitate and enhance
communication:

(i) the annual general meeting provides a forum for
shareholders of the Company to raise comments and
exchange views with the Board;

(i) updated key information of the Group is available
on the Company’'s website at www.taksing.com.hk
to enable the shareholders of the Company and
the investor community to have timely access to
information about the Group; and

(iii) the Company’s website offers a communication channel
between the Company and its shareholders and
investors.

The Chairman and the directors are available at annual
general meetings to answer questions raised by shareholders
of the Company or other interested parties.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is overall responsible for overseeing the operations
of all the businesses units within the Group. Suitable
candidates are appointed by the Board to join in the boards
of all subsidiaries and associates operating in key business
areas, to attend the board meetings and to oversee the
operations of such companies. The management of each
business area is accountable for these operation and
performance of the business under its area of responsibility.

The Board has conducted bi-annual reviews of internal
control system of the Group pursuant to the Codes and
considers that all the material internal controls in the Group
are adequate and effective during the year.
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PROPERTY

Turnover for property for the year was HK$550,811,000
(2011: HK$113,157,000), significantly higher than last year
by 3.9 times. Segment operating profit was HK$214,059,000
(2011: HK$178,612,000), increased by 20% from last year.
Excluding the effect of non-recurring contract cancellation
gain from associated company South China International
and property revaluation gain, recurring segment profit
was HK$123,811,000 (2011: HK$5,026,000) significantly
increased by 23 times from last year. Turnover from property
rental was HK$68,469,000, increased by 16% from last year
while property sales revenue was HK$482,342,000, 7.9 times
higher than last year.

During the year, both property development projects of
the Group recorded satisfactory sales revenue. The two
high rise lake view residential buildings in Grand Lake City,
Yiyang city of Hunan Province were completed. Together
with some remaining property sales from phase 1, total sales
revenue recorded for Grand Lake City was HK$142,252,000,
significantly increased by 1.9 times from last year. During
the year, phase 2 of Grand Lake City, comprising 6 blocks
of high rise lake view residential property and a shopping
centre, started construction. The revised building area will
be 135,000 M?. Part of the phase 2 property was launched
for sales in May 2012 and RMB140 million contract sales
were made within a month. This is a very satisfactory result
considering the property market is currently very slow in
China. Grand Lake City has become the best selling property
project in Yiyang city.

Phase 1 of China East City in Lianyungang of Jiangsu
province, comprising 182,000 M? of leather and construction
material wholesale markets, was completed during the year
and various part of the wholesale markets started operations
from end of 2011 to mid 2012. Sales revenue recorded was
HK$338,184,000. Up to end of June 2012, approximately
RMB100 million contract sales were made which will be
booked as revenue in the next financial year.
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During the year, the Group’'s 50% owned associated
company, South China International Purchasing Exchange
Limited, had paid all land use premium of RMB410 million
and obtained land use certificate for the Dongguan
commercial project. Land site was 78,000 M? with plot ratio
of 3.5 and buildable area of 274,000 M2. The planning stage
of the project had been completed with a plan to build the
biggest household furniture, appliances and construction
material retail centre of Dongguan city. Red Star Macalline,
the biggest household furniture retail operator in China,
has signed contract to become anchor operator in the retail
centre. Construction of the project will start in fourth quarter
of 2012.

During the year, rental income increased by a satisfactory
16% to HK$68,469,000. Shopping mall in Carrianna
Friendship Square and Imperial Palace were the major
contributors of the increase in rental income. Together with
other properties in Guangdong and Hong Kong, the Group's
investment properties portfolio will continue to provide
stable and growing rental income. On the other hand, the
Group owns 14.8% of China South City Holdings Limited
which has just announced its annual results with satisfactory
growth in profit and dividend. The Group's dividend income
from China South City to be received in September 2012
will increase by 2 times to HK$66,700,000. The Group's
investment in China South City has become a significant cash
income contributor for the shareholders.

For the coming year, rental and dividend income together
will exceed HK$130,000,000 and will become the Group's
stable source of cash income. Property sales will likely be less
than this year but will continue to provide satisfactory profit.
Overall, the Group’s property development and investment
businesses have entered a harvest stage and will continue to
provide good cash and profit to shareholders.
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PROPERTY
b

Grand Lake City is a new town development project with total GFA of 2.5 million sg.m.
T L8387 350 2 — (12,500,000 75 oK B9 F 3 i i SR IE B o

The construction of Grand Lake City phase 2 development,
6 high rise lake view residential property buildings and a
shopping centre has been started.

FIWAFTH —BAERR S EEEE@B T o2ES T

The two high rise lake view residential buildings in
Grand Lake City, Yiyang city of Hunan Province were

completed.
W B 2 5 TR LSR8 TE B RE = B R
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Phase 1 of China East City
in Lianyungang of Jiangsu
province, comprising 182,000
M? of leather and construction
material wholesale markets, was
completed during the year and
various part of the wholesale
markets started operations from

end of 2011 to mid 2012.
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Shopping mall in Carrianna Friendship Square and Imperial Palace were the major contributors of the
increase in rental income. Together with other properties in Guangdong and Hong Kong, the Group’s

investment properties portfolio will continue to provide stable and growing rental income.
SEERINES EEBREAESREECERESERNTENRR ERERREBHNEmUEYE
EEBLSEBTRIBERFELERNE S WS-

Carrianna Friendship Square
EEMRERES

1 g

Imperial Palace
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HOTEL, RESTAURANT AND FOOD

Turnover for hotel, restaurant and food division for the year
was HK$621,958,000 (2011: HK$579,683,000), increased
by 7% from last year. Segment profit was HK$96,828,000
(2011: HK$110,983,000), decreased by 13%. Decrease
in profit was mainly due to a non-recurring income was
recorded in last year of HK$22,735,000, mainly being over
provision of tax in past years from two Shenzhen restaurants
which ceased business in prior year and obtained final tax
clearance from the tax authority in last year ascertaining
the actual tax payable was lower than prior year provisions.
On the other hand, the closure of Shanghai Carrianna
Restaurant due to expiry of rental contract during the year
had resulted in non-recurring closure loss of HK$4,074,000
which was mainly for asset write-off and staff compensation.
Excluding these non-recurring items, current year operating
profit should be HK$100,902,000, increased by 14% from
last year (HK$88,248,000).

As for turnover, growth was mainly from food and hotel
business while the decrease in restaurant business turnover
offset about one third of such growth. Restaurant business
environment was tough due to tightening economic policy
of the government. With the exception of Beijing and Hong
Kong, restaurant turnover in all other city either decreased
or remained about the same as last year. On the other hand,
human resources and food costs continued to increase
substantially. As a result, operating profit for restaurant
reduced by approximately 20% from last year. For food,
mooncake sales continued to grow satisfactory by 28%.
However, due to food cost increase, operating profit only
improved by 17%. For hotel, both turnover and operating
profit increased slightly from last year.

For the coming year, economic outlook for China is still
uncertain and business dining sector will continue to face
difficulties. Together with continuous but moderate increase
in food and staff cost, hotel, restaurant and food businesses
will probably not have significant growth. Management will
continue to work hard in improving operating efficiency in
order to keep the continuous growth in operating profit from
the division.
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HOTEL, RESTAURANT AND FOOD
BIE - BEZ KRR M

Yiyang Carrianna International Hotel ‘
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Foshan Carrianna Hotel
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Restaurant business environment was tough due to tightening economic policy of the government. With
the exception of Beijing and Hong Kong, restaurant turnover in all other city either decreased or remained

about the same as last year.
B R LERIBRAN M ZELCBEBRMAHERNE  BRIEREEBIN SR BB EEEERF T TMFe-

Carrianna Restaurant at Wanchai, Hong Kong

BB EEHER

Shenzhen Carrianna Friendship Square Restaurant
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Turnover and operating profit for mooncake sales continued to grow satisfactory.
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Food factory in Hainan
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LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 March 2012, the Group's consolidated net
assets after deduction of non-controlling interests was
HK$3,114,815,000 (2011: HK$3,161,975,000) and
consolidated net assets after deduction of non-controlling
interests per share was HK$2.72 (2011: HK$2.76).

The Group’'s free cash and bank balances was
HK$305,200,000. Netting off cash deposits pledged
for borrowings, the Group’s net bank borrowings was
HK$1,126,351,000. Net bank borrowings less free cash
and bank balances was HK$821,151,000, representing
24% (2011: 19%) of the Group's total equity. The Group’s
borrowings are principally on a floating rate basis.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL

The Group had no material acquisition or disposal for the
year ended 31 March 2012.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND FUTURE
COMMITMENT

As at the end of the reporting period, the Group had
contingent liabilities relating to guarantees given to
banks for mortgage loan facilities granted to purchasers
of properties of approximately HK$182,930,000 (2011:
HK$117,642,000).

CHARGES ON GROUP ASSETS

As at the end of the reporting period, certain of the
Group’'s property, plant and equipment, investment
properties, properties under development, properties
held for sale, time deposits, financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss and an other receivable with a total
carrying value of approximately HK$2,285,644,000 (2011:
HK$1,993,949,000) were pledged to secure general banking,
trade finance and other facilities granted to the Group.
In addition, rental income generated in respect of certain
investment properties of the Group was assigned to bankers
to secure loan facilities granted to the Group.

EXPOSURE ON FOREIGN EXCHANGE
FLUCTUATIONS AND TREASURY POLICY

Major transactions of the Group are denominated in Hong
Kong dollar and Renminbi. The Group has no significant
currency exposure.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS EE & L=

The directors herein present their report and the audited
financial statements of the Company and the Group for the
year ended 31 March 2012.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities of its subsidiaries comprise the
property investment and development, the operations of
hotel, restaurant and food businesses.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group's profit for the year ended 31 March 2012 and
the state of affairs of the Company and the Group at that
date are set out in the financial statements on pages 52 to
189.

The directors recommend the payment of a final dividend
of HK4 cents per ordinary share in respect of the year
payable to the shareholders. This recommendation has been
incorporated in the financial statements as an allocation of
retained profits within the equity section of the statement of
financial position.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The Register of Members of the Company will be closed from
Friday, 24 August 2012 to Monday, 27 August 2012, both
days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares
will be effected. In order for a shareholder to be eligible
to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting, all
transfers accompanied by the relevant share certificates must
be lodged with the Company’s Shares Registrars in Hong
Kong, Tricor Tengis Limited, at 26th Floor, Tesbury Centre,
28 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong not later than
4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 23 August, 2012.

The Register of Members of the Company will be closed from
Wednesday, 26 September 2012 to Friday, 28 September
2012, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer
of shares will be effected. In order to qualify for the
proposed final dividend (subject to shareholders’ approval
at the Annual General Meeting), all transfers accompanied
by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the
Company's Share Registrars in Hong Kong, Tricor Tengis
Limited, at 26th Floor, Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road
East, Wanchai, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on
Tuesday, 25 September 2012.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS EE & RE=

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION MESHEBE

The table set out below summarises the published results, TFTXREIAEBEBEREFBRFEZD
assets, liabilities and non-controlling interests of the Group AWM ¥4 -EE B E L IR R #E
for the last five financial years, as extracted from the 25 JiESEEAEE 2 KEZFHBRE -
audited financial statements and restated as appropriate. W EE B o thiH 2 B E X
This summary does not form part of the audited financial — #3R&E Z 361D °

statements.

Year ended 31 March
ZA=+—-HLEE
2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-Z% 2§ CZT-TF CZTTNF ZIZTIT)N\F

TR TR TET TR THET

RESULTS L4 |

REVENUE 2
Continuing operations FEES 1,172,769 692,840 613,180 560,291 691,459
Discontinued operation REEY - - - - 153,860
1,172,769 692,840 613,180 560,291 845,319
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FERiaF 156,264 175,404 417,245 180,676 246,404

Attributable to: JE1S -

Owners of SRAEE A

the parent 113,105 163,209 399,695 173,127 228,910
Non-controlling interests IR IR R 43,159 12,195 17,550 7,549 17,494

156,264 175,404 417,245 180,676 246,404

ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND BE AR

NON-CONTROLLING FEEBRRER

INTERESTS

TOTAL ASSETS BRE 5,932,280 5,651,843 5,106,782 4,553,719 4,240,510
TOTAL LIABILITIES HAR (2,550,095) (2,179,322)  (1,813,605)  (1,554,820)  (1,410,731)
NON-CONTROLLING FREBRRER

INTERESTS (267,370)  (310,546) (230,929) (238,214) (245,916)

3,114,815 3,161,975 3,062,248 2,760,685 2,583,863

TAK SING ALLIANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED iE X & & m
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment
and investment properties of the Group during the year
are set out in notes 14 and 15 to the financial statements,
respectively.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital and
share options during the year are set out in notes 35 and 36
to the financial statements, respectively.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company's Bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis
to existing shareholders.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and
the Group during the year are set out in note 37(b) to the
financial statements and in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 March 2012, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the provision
of The Bermuda Companies Act 1981, amounted to
HK$108,318,000, of which HK$45,777,000 has been
proposed as a final dividend for the year. In addition, the
Company’s share premium account, in the amount of
HK$1,275,108,000, may be distributed in the form of fully-
paid bonus shares.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND PLEDGE OF
ASSETS

Details of the Group’s contingent liabilities and pledge
of assets are set out in notes 40 and 43 to the financial
statements, respectively.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS EEEg#HE

CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable contributions
totalling HK$1,305,000 (2011: HK$1,126,000).

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year were:

Executive Directors:
Ma Kai Cheung

Ma Kai Yum

Ng Yan Kwong

Ma Hung Ming, John
Yuen Wai Man

Independent Non-Executive Directors:
Lo Ming Chi, Charles

Lo Man Kit, Sam

Wong See King

In accordance with Bye-law 99 of the Company’s Bye-laws,
Mr. Ma Hung Ming, John will retire by rotation and, being
eligible, will offer himself for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

In accordance with Bye-law 99 of the Company’s Bye-laws,
Mr. Yuen Wai Man will retire by rotation and, being eligible,
will offer himself for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS EE & L=

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Mr. Ma Kai Cheung had entered into a service contract
with the Company. The contract has no fixed terms of
engagement and is subject to termination by either party
giving three months’ notice in writing.

Mr. Ng Yan Kwong had entered into a service contract
with the Company. The contract has no fixed terms of
engagement and is subject to retirement by rotation as
required by the Company’s Bye-laws and termination by
either party giving three months’ notice in writing.

Mr. Ma Kai Yum, Mr. Ma Hung Ming, John and Mr. Yuen Wai
Man had no service contract with the Company as at the end
of the reporting period.

The non-executive directors of the Company have been
appointed for a term subject to retirement by rotation as
required by the Company’s Bye-laws.

Apart from the foregoing, no director proposed for re-
election at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a
service contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries
which is not terminable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Directors’
interests in the securities of the Group”, at no time during
the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party
to any arrangement to enable the Company’s directors, their
respective spouse or minor children to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the
Company or any other body corporate.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS EE & RE=

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN THE SECURITIES
OF THE GROUP

As at 31 March 2012, the interests and short positions of
the Directors and chief executives of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO"))
which (a) were required to be notified to the Company
and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests and short positions which they were
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO);
or which (b) were required pursuant to Section 352 of the
SFO to be entered in the register referred therein; or which
(c) were required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies (the “Model
Code”) under the Listing Rules, were as follows:

EERFKENEGHD

RZBE——F=A=+—H ARQazE
ERFETBABRARRKIAR AT
mEtE A 7 (EER (EHELEEEM)
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By BB WRIERER 2 Em X
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Long positions in shares REHhZFE
(a) The Company (a) x4 H
Underlying Percentage
Number of ordinary shares held shares of the
and nature of interest pursuant to Company's
Personal Family Other share options issued share
Name of director Capacity interests interests interests (note 1) Total capital
BREERE L3N
BREERBRABERESHE HRRHBE BBITRF
RS L] EA#S REHE Rt R (FirzE1) & L
Ma Kai Cheung Beneficial owner, 228,628,172 9,300,000 259,129,025 10,000,000 507,057,197 44.31
ENE interest of spouse and (note 2) (note 3)
beneficiary of trust ) (M33)
EnEAA EBERR
FERXHEA
Ma Kai Yum Beneficial owner, 41,834,260 3,200,000 101,201,040 10,000,000 156,235,300 13.65
BN interest of spouse and (note 4)  (notes 5 &6)
beneficiary of trust (MizEa) (M zE576)
BEAEA REELR
FEREXHEA
Ng Yan Kwong Beneficial owner 11,768,000 - - 500,000 12,268,000 1.07
REK ERBEEA
Ma Hung Ming, John Beneficial owner, 310,000 3,044,000 - 8,500,000 11,854,000 1.04
S5t interest of spouse (note 7)
EnEAAREBEER (M5E7)
Lo Ming Chi, Charles Beneficial owner 300,000 - - 150,000 450,000 0.04
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS EE & L=

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN THE SECURITIES
OF THE GROUP (continued)

Long positions in shares (continued)

(a) The Company (continued)

Notes:

(1) The underlying shares represent interests of options granted
to the Directors and senior executive under the Share Option
Scheme to acquire shares of the Company, further details of
which are set out in note 36 to the financial statements under
the section headed “Share Option Scheme”.

(2)  The shares were owned by Cheung Lin Kiu, the spouse of Ma
Kai Cheung.

(3) Ma Kai Cheung and his family are the objects of a discretionary
trust which effectively owns the entire issued share capital of
Regent World Investments Limited (“Regent World”) and 70%
of the entire issued share capital of Bond Well Investments
Limited ("Bond Well"). At the balance sheet date, Regent World
owned 184,121,625 shares and Bond Well owned 75,007,400
shares of the Company.

(4)  The shares were owned by Kwok Kit Mei, the spouse of Ma Kai
Yum.

(5)  Ma Kai Yum and his family are the objects of a discretionary
trust which effectively owns the entire issued share capital
of Grand Wealth Investments Limited (“Grand Wealth”) and
Peaceful World Limited (“Peaceful World”). At the balance
sheet date, Grand Wealth owned 74,651,040 shares and
Peaceful World owned 19,050,000 shares of the Company.

(6)  Peaceful World owns the entire issued share capital of Real
Potential Limited (“Real Potential”). At the balance sheet
date, Real Potential owned 7,500,000 shares of the Company.
The interests of Real Potential in the Company are therefore
deemed to be the interests of Peaceful World in which Ma Kai
Yum is also deemed to have interests for the reason as stated in
note 5 above.

(7)  The shares were owned by Choi Ka Man, Carmen, the spouse
of Ma Hung Ming, John.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS EEEg#HE

TAK SING ALLIANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED iE X & & m

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN THE SECURITIES EERFKEMNEFHED ()
OF THE GROUP (continued)
Long positions in shares (continued) REEpzHE (&)
(b) Subsidiaries (b) K2 5]
Percentage of
the subsidiary’s
issued share
Name of Number of  Type of  capital (ordinary
Name of subsidiary director Capacity shares held  shares shares)
R LE
ERTREEMIL
WELRRR EFfHR 517 FigRHBE KROEH (HERH)
Carrianna Chiu Chow Ma Kai Yum Beneficiary of trust 15,000  Ordinary 1.5
Restaurant (T.S.T.)
Limited B
EEH RN EE HFNR EREXAA LAk
(£8)BRA
Ginza Development Ma Kai Cheung Beneficial owner 15 Ordinary 2.5
Company L|m|ted R
TBEERBRA SNE EREBAA LR
Ginza Development Ma Kai Yum Beneficiary of trust 18 Ordinary 3
Company Limited B
TUBHERBRAT SNR EREXEA TRR
Gartrend Development ~ Ma Kai Cheung Beneficial owner 500,000  Non-voting N/A
Limited R deferred R
REERARLA SNE ERHAA BRZE TER
EIE R D
Gartrend Development ~ Ma Kai Yum Beneficial owner 500,000 Non-voting N/A
Limited R deferred R
REERAR LA HFNR EREBAA BRER TER
BT R D
Tak Sing Alliance Ma Kai Cheung Beneficial owner 9,000 Non-voting N/A
Limited R deferred N
ENE EREHA RIEEE ¥l
TR A
Tak Sing Alliance Ma Kai Yum Beneficial owner 1,000 Non-voting N/A
Limited R deferred N
BN EREHA mREE ¥l
B A
BEEERY (EK)EZ  Yuen Wai Man Beneficial owner NA  N/A 10
BERAT . o N N
REX ESEAA TER TER
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN THE SECURITIES
OF THE GROUP (continued)

Long positions in shares (continued)

(b) Subsidiaries (continued)

EERFKEMNEFHED ()

REfZEe (&)
(b) WIB2E (%)

Percentage of

the subsidiary’s

issued share

Name of Number of  Type of  capital (ordinary
Name of subsidiary director Capacity shares held  shares shares)
RLLiL !
ERTREERL
i) VNGRS ¢ 3.3 S FERHBE  ROEHN € 5.1:37)]
BREENR® Yuen Wai Man Beneficial owner NA  NA 10
BARATF \ - - -
REX ERBEBA ~ER  TEA
RREERR M Ma Kai Cheung Beneficial owner NA  NA 15
BARATF - - -
SNE ERBEBA ~ER  TEA
EREEFRM Yuen Wai Man Beneficial owner NA  N/A 15
ARARA \ o N -
REX ERHAA TER  TER
g ZHEE  Yuen Wai Man Beneficial owner NA  N/A 10
(N
REX BEREBA TER  THEA
REERERER Ma Hung Ming, John Beneficial owner NA  NA 15
BRARA - - -
e E EGBAA TER  THEA
REEZMER Yuen Wai Man Beneficial owner NA  NA 20
=N \ - - N
REX ERBBA TER  TEA
REEEPER Ma Hung Ming, John Beneficial owner NA  N/A 10
BARATF - - -
her ERBEBA ~ER  TEA
FYEEHEERHRE  Yuen Wai Man Beneficial owner NA  N/A 15
BARATF \ - - -
REX ERBEBA ~ER  TEA
REEEHBEEE  Yuen Wai Man Beneficial owner NA  N/A 12
BRAR \ o N -
REX ERAAA TER  TER
LREEFEEER Yuen Wai Man Beneficial owner NA  N/A 25
BRARA \ - - -
REX BEREBA TER  THEA
In addition to the above, Ma Kai Cheung and Ma Kai Yum  BRUA EFfiftsh  ENERENRRAEE
have non-beneficial personal equity interests in certain #FAETHWEAR 7 B IEE 25 8 A IR AN 4
subsidiaries held for the benefit of the Group solely for = IWHEARFAEARIKREEE NHKIER
the purpose of complying with their minimum company  FEmM#HA -

membership requirements.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN THE SECURITIES
OF THE GROUP (continued)

Long positions in shares (continued)

All the interests stated above represent long positions.
Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2012, none of
the directors or chief executives of the Company, nor their
associates had any interests or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company, or any
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept
under Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as detailed in note 44 to the financial statements, no
director had a beneficial interest in any material contract to
which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party
during the year.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (the
"Scheme"”) for the purpose of providing incentives and
rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the
success of the Group's operations. Eligible participants of
the Scheme include the Company’s directors, including
independent non-executive directors, other employees of the
Group. The Scheme became effective on 10 October 2005
and, unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in
force for 10 years from that date.

Particulars of the Company's share option scheme are set out
in note 36 to the financial statements.

=
=

EERFKEMNEFHED ()
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Pz EEYATE -BREXHEES
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THEEEE (7 (BERBEER) F
XVEZ ®E&) 2 kh - HER N kEHF
BEERERIKE -
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PR S IE M a4 prEr i E SN  BREER
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RERR Rt &
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) RYAKEEBEHERMZAE
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R ZAEIBRNEHRA T FRNEREH
R o
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) ARS8

The following share options were outstanding under the — WER - RIFZTEITE T HARITE 2 B

Scheme during the year: WM
Number of share options
MRERENE
Date of Exercise
At1  Granted Exercised Forfeited At 31 grant of Exercise price of At grant
April during during during March share period of share date of
2011 the year the year the year 2012 options* share options options**  options
HKS HKS
per share per share
»®
3 2-C§
—2—-F RER RER RER = Fi fTER R & fTEm  REEE
mA—H & fT{E %% =+-H REREAR HE  RERE BHBH
ST SRR
Executive Directors
BITEE
Mr. Ma Kai Cheung 7,000,000 - - - 7,000,000 26-10-2005 26-10-2005 to 0.30 0.30
BNERE 25-10-2015
3,000,000 - - - 3,000,000 18-12-2006 18-12-2006 to 1.30 1.30
17-12-2016
Mr. Ma Kai Yum 7,000,000 - - - 7,000,000 26-10-2005 26-10-2005 to 0.30 0.30
BNREE 25-10-2015
3,000,000 - - - 3,000,000 18-12-2006 18-12-2006 to 1.30 1.30
17-12-2016
Mr. Ma Hung Ming, John 7,000,000 - - - 7,000,000 26-10-2005 26-10-2005 to 0.30 0.30
FRSAE 25-10-2015
1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000 18-12-2006 18-12-2006 to 1.30 1.30
17-12-2016
500,000 - - - 500,000 3-1-2011 3-1-2012 to 1.03 1.03
2-1-2014
Mr. Ng Yan Kwong 500,000 - - - 500,000 3-1-2011 3-1-2012 to 1.03 1.03
REKEE 2-1-2014
29,000,000 - - - 29,000,000
Independent
Non-Executive Director
BUERTES
Mr. Lo Ming Chi, Charles 300,000 - (300,000 - - 26-10-2005 26-10-2005 to 0.30 0.30
SHERE 25-10-2015
150,000 - - - 150,000 18-12-2006 18-12-2006 to 1.30 1.30
17-12-2016
450,000 - (300,000 - 150,000
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS EEgHEE
SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) RERRMERT® (o)
Number of share options
BRERE
Date of Exercise
At1  Granted Exercised Forfeited At 31 grant of Exercise price of At grant
April during during during March share period of share date of
2011 the year the year the year 2012 options* share options options**  options
HK$ HK$
per share per share
®
B 2-Z%§
- RER RER RER =R ®it TR TR TR
mA-H e e %% Z=t-8 BRERH- HE  EEES BHZAH
gRET  BRERL
Other employees
HittER
150,000 - - - 150,000 18-12-2006 18-12-2006 to 1.30 1.30
17-12-2016
700,000 - - - 700,000 24-8-2007 24-2-2008 to 2.15 2.15
23-8-2012
2,000,000 - - - 2,000,000 3-1-2011 3-1-2012 to 1.03 1.03
2-1-2014
1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000 3-1-2011 3-1-2013 to 1.03 1.03
2-1-2015
1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000 3-1-2011 3-1-2014 to 1.03 1.03
2-1-2016
1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000 3-1-2011 3-1-2015 to 1.03 1.03
2-1-2017
1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000 3-1-2011 3-1-2016 to 1.03 1.03
2-1-2018
6,850,000 - - - 6,850,000
36,300,000 - (300,000 - 36,000,000

Notes to reconciliation of share options outstanding during the year:

* The vesting period of the share options is from the date of the grant
until the commencement of the exercise period.

i The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment in

the case of rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes in the

Company’s share capital.

T 79 1 2 8 AR PR o
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 March 2012, according to the register kept by
the Company under Section 336 of the SFO and so far
as was known to the Directors, the following persons or
corporations (other than a Director or chief executive of the
Company) had an interest or short position in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO:

Long positions in shares

FERRX

R-ZZ——"F=A=+—H8" REARQ
B (RELMEERD) E336KFEZLE
CMAMR ARBRESRHRAM TIAL
FAE (LFARAEFTHREIETRA
B)EARRA 2D LA HE s
KR WARIERE 75 R E 1R B XV
#2088 M B30 BHE W EE

REHZHE

Number of Percentage of the
ordinary Company’s issued

Name of shareholder Capacity Notes shares held share capital
BFAERTE HFELTH
FEEX 13 B F BERBA ERITRFISLE
East Asia International Trustees Trustee a 360,330,065 31.49
Limited EEA
Golden Yield Holdings Limited Interest in controlled b 259,129,025 22.64
corporations
b E/NCIE 3y
Wealthy Platform Limited Interest in controlled C 101,201,040 8.84
corporations
S Z/NCIE 2y
Regent World Investments Holding corporation b 184,121,625 16.09
Limited BERERAT
Bond Well Investments Limited Holding corporation b 75,007,400 6.55
HEERAR
Grand Wealth Investments Holding corporation C 74,651,040 6.52
Limited BERERAT
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

Long positions in shares (continued)

Notes:

Save

East Asia International Trustees Limited (“EAIT") is the trustee of a
discretionary trust of which Mr. Ma Kai Cheung and his family are
the objects and through its wholly-owned subsidiary, Golden Yield
Holdings Limited (”“Golden Yield”), EAIT was indirectly interested in
259,129,025 shares of the Company. EAIT is also the trustee of a
discretionary trust of which Mr. Ma Kai Yum and his family are the
objects and through its wholly-owned subsidiary, Wealthy Platform
Limited (“Wealthy Platform”), EAIT was indirectly interested in
101,201,040 shares in the Company. As at the balance sheet date,
EAIT was effectively interested in a total of 360,330,065 shares of the
Company.

Golden Yield owns the entire issued share capital of Regent World
and 70% of the entire issued share capital of Bond Well, was
indirectly interested in a total of 259,129,025 shares of the Company.
The total shares held by both Regent World and Bond Well are the
same block of shares as disclosed in “Other interests” of Mr. Ma
Kai Cheung under the section headed “Directors’ Interests in the
Securities of the Group” set out above.

Wealthy Platform owns the entire issued share capital of Grand
Wealth and Peaceful World and indirect owns the entire issued share
capital of Real Potential through Peaceful World, was indirectly
interested in 101,201,040 shares of the Company. The total shares
held by Grand Wealth, Peaceful World and Real Potential are the same
block of shares as disclosed in “Other interests” of Mr. Ma Kai Yum
under the section headed “Directors’ Interests in the Securities of the
Group” set out above.

as disclosed above, the directors of the Company are

not aware of any other persons who, as at 31 March 2012,
had registered an interest or short position in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company in the register that was
required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO.

HES

FERE (&8)

REmzire (&)

a. East Asia International Trustees Limited
(TEATD ABNEBEERERKERT &
AMKZH—B2EEENETA LE
i HE 2 &M E A FGolden Yield Holdings
Limited ([ Golden Yield J) MM #E #HEE A A
7]259,129,0250% 2 & 17 © B 5N+ EAIT IR [F] B
BENREERERKRIEAZ T AMMAZ
W—EDEEENETEA LEAEZEN
B A 7]Wealthy Platform Limited ([ Wealthy
Platform J ) i & % ¥ 5 A< ‘2 ®]101,201 040
2D REER EAT BERn#EEERR
#360,330,065/% & f% 17 ©

b.  Golden Yield##% A Regent World%® &2 %
77R& 15 & Bond Well 70%E§§?ﬁﬂ§1"ﬁ‘ﬁf‘ﬁ
BB AR R A 259,129,025 2 & 17
Regent World &2 Bond Well& /\T—rﬁﬂ’lﬁ%ﬁﬁ
FXTEERAEENHFER ] RSN
BEhEz [EtiER] PREBENR—HR

T/\ o

C. Wealthy Platform#& #%5 A& Grand Wealth &
Peaceful World2 3B #7172k K& #
Peaceful Worldf## & 2 #fReal Potential 2,
BT 2 IRy M E B ¥ A2 81101,201,040
f% 2 A% 5 » Grand Wealth, Peaceful World &%
Real Potential& £FBFWMRM AL [ESE
RAEENESEs | PRIASNREEZ
[Efbigzs] RATEENR —HERG -

B E i S B A AT 18
I# (BRI H36HET W

BRMAEEFATHR T — ==
A=+— BEAEL ARG RIEBRR
ZHEREAR -
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CONTINUING DISCLOSURE OBLIGATIONS OF

THE LISTING RULES

Loan agreement with covenants relating to

specific performance obligation of the controlling

shareholders (Rule 13.18 of Chapter 13)

The agreement for the following loan to the Group
imposes specific performance obligations on the controlling

shareholders of the Company:

ITRAUZKHBHEER

RETFTERREDR ZERTABTERE
TEEZRE (F+=F$13.181F)

T TEAEBERZ R R ERR A
ZEEBRRARERITAML:

Outstanding balance of Specific
banking facilities as at Final maturity of performance
31 March 2012 banking facilities obligations
HK$'000
R-E—"=RA=+—H HMITRREREIHE BEBITRE
KEZHRITHRERA
TETT
60,320 7 November 2014 (Note)
—E-mMFE+—AEHR (MH5E)

Note:

Mr. Ma Kai Cheung, the Chairman and the controlling shareholder of
the Company, holds 44.31% shareholding interest in the Company, and
Mr. Ma Kai Yum, the managing director of the Company, holds 13.65%
shareholding interest in the Company, undertakes to maintain for a total of

at least 51% of the shares of the Company.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Details of the connected transactions for the year are set out

in note 44 to the financial statements.

Save as disclosed above, there were no other transactions
which need to be disclosed as connected transactions in

accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF THE

COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities

during the year ended 31 March 2012.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the directors, as
at the date of this report, the Company has maintained
sufficient public float as required under the Listing Rules.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the Group’s sales to the five largest
customers and purchases from the five largest suppliers
accounted for less than 30% of the Group’s revenue and
purchases for the year respectively.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

The Group's staff consists of approximately 100 employees
in Hong Kong and approximately 2,200 employees outside
Hong Kong. Employees are rewarded on a performance-
related basis within the general framework of the Group's
salary and bonus system.

CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as the
code for securities transactions by Directors of the Company.
Following specific enquiry by the Company, the Directors
have confirmed that they have complied with the required
standard under the Model Code for the year ended 31
March 2012.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintain a high standard
of corporate governance practices. Information on the
corporate governance practices adopted by the Company is
set out in the “Corporate Governance Report” on pages 12
to 21.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises three independent
non-executive directors of the Company, namely Mr. Lo Ming
Chi, Charles (Chairman), Mr. Lo Man Kit, Sam and Mr. Wong
See King.

The Audit Committee has reviewed with the management
the accounting principles and practices adopted by the
Group and discussed auditing, internal control and financial
reporting matters including the review of the financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2012.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

According to the Code on Corporate Governance Practices,
which has been renamed as Corporate Governance
Code with effect from 1 April 2012, the Company has
established its Remuneration Committee in April 2005. The
Remuneration Committee comprises three independent non-
executive directors of the Company, namely Mr. Lo Man Kit,
Sam (Chairman), Mr. Lo Ming Chi, Charles and Mr. Wong See
King. A set of written terms of reference, which described
the authority and duties of the remuneration committee,
was adopted by the Board on 1 April 2005, amended and
restated on 26 March 2012.

The Remuneration Committee’s objectives are to establish
and maintain an appropriate and competitive level of
remuneration to attract, retain and motivate directors
and key executives to run the Company successfully. The
Remuneration Committee will ensure that the remuneration
policies and systems of the Group support the Group's
objective and strategies.

The remuneration details of directors during the year are set
out in note 8 to the financial statements.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee comprises one executive director
and three independent non-executive directors of the
Company, including Mr. Ma Kai Cheung (Chairman), Mr. Lo
Ming Chi, Charles, Mr. Lo Man Kit, Sam and Mr. Wong See
King.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for making
recommendation to the nomination of Directors with a view
to appointing suitable individuals with relevant expertise and
experience to enhance the constitution of the Board and to
contribute to the Board.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS EEEg W&

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Board confirmed that the Company has received from
each of its independent non-executive directors an annual
confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules and still considers all of the independent
non-executive directors to be independent.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 March 2012, the Group’s consolidated net
assets after deduction of non-controlling interests was
HK$3,114,815,000 (2011: HK$3,161,975,000) and
consolidated net assets after deduction of non-controlling
interests per share was HK$2.72 (2011: HK$2.76).

The Group’'s free cash and bank balances was
HK$305,200,000. Netting off cash deposits pledged
for borrowings, the Group’s net bank borrowings was
HK$1,126,351,000. Net bank borrowings less free cash
and bank balances was HK$821,151,000, representing
24% (2011: 19%) of the Group's total equity. The Group’s
borrowings are principally on a floating rate basis.

AUDITORS

Ernst & Young retire and a resolution for their reappointment
as auditors of the Company will be proposed at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

OUTLOOK

The Group will continue to develop and grow while
maintaining its healthy financial position and solid business
foundation to create long-term shareholder value.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Dr. Ma Kai Yum
Managing Director

Hong Kong, 28 June 2012
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT &7 4% £k Bl R

Elf ERNST & YOUNG

= ik

To the shareholders of Tak Sing Alliance Holdings
Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Tak Sing Alliance Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on pages
52 to 189, which comprise the consolidated and company
statements of financial position as at 31 March 2012,
and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit. Our
report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with
Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT Y& 37 #% £k Bib R 25

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditors’ judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditors consider internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the
directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company
and of the Group as at 31 March 2012, and of the Group’s
profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have
been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
22nd Floor

CITIC Tower

1 Tim Mei Avenue, Central
Hong Kong

28 June 2012
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT 436Uk zs

Year ended 31 March 2012 {2 - FE——F=fF=+—HILFE

2012 2011
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
—E—_F —E——%F
B 3% FTHET FETT
REVENUE A 5 1,172,769 692,840
Cost of sales =R N (697,751) (398,758)
Gross profit E 7 475,018 294,082
Other income and gains H At e A R gz 122,389 150,814
Selling and distribution expenses 73 4 & $45 & F &2 (177,813) (139,754)
Administrative expenses THAX (121,688) (109,920)
Other expenses, net HhFs  F58 (21,801) (13,827)
Finance costs MR 7 (42,626) (31,857)
Share of profits and losses of FE(R B & R Bl A &
associates &5 18 (1,087) 74,712
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BR#aas 6 232,392 224,250
Income tax expense A x 10 (76,128) (48,846)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR XEEERT 156,264 175,404
Attributable to: e
Owners of the parent [SY/NEIE/FS PN 11 113,105 163,209
Non-controlling interests FE2E AR 2 43,159 12,195
156,264 175,404
HK cents HK cents
A&l Bl
EARNINGS PER SHARE 5 4\ B i 8 B
ATTRIBUTABLE TO WA AR
ORDINARY EQUITY SEREF
HOLDERS OF THE PARENT 13
Basic B/ 9.88 14.26
Diluted e 9.76 14.08

Details of the dividend proposed for the year are disclosed in
note 12 to the financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME %4 2 mEIE A&

Year ended 31 March 2012 & Z -—E——F=F=+—HIFE

2012 2011
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
—E—_F —FT——%F
Bt & FHET FAT
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR XTEERF 156,264 175,404
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE Hth2mEKEA
INCOME/(LOSS) (B518)
Change in fair value of AfEEREZ
available-for-sale investment N EEE 22 (186,683) (80,007)
Exchange differences on MEBINEKZ
translation of foreign M 5, =58
operations 54,519 45,264
Reclassification adjustment on Lol=ENGTE - 6 s EE a1 v
deregistration of subsidiaries B D BAR 38 - (209)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE TEERME2ESR
LOSS FOR THE YEAR (132,164) (34,952)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE FTEE#A2ZEWKRA
INCOME FOR THE YEAR 24,100 140,452
Attributable to: FEAG -
Owners of the parent S RREE A (25,292) 121,964
Non-controlling interests FE2E AR 2 49,392 18,488
24,100 140,452

TAK SING ALLIANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED # X & m



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

31 March 2012 —E——F=8=+—H

e MBI R

2012 2011
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
—E—-_%F —E——F
B 5 FHET FET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERENEE
Property, plant and equipment ¥ % « B &= MR & 14 485,798 468,686
Investment properties wREME 15 1,446,897 1,346,196
Prepaid land lease payment TENT + #h 30 & RIE 16 13,372 13,306
Goodwill kS 17 40,111 40,111
Other intangible assets Hitvmp&e 18 399,732 399,732
Investment in a WEHLEIZEHER
jointly-controlled entity 20 - -
Interests in associates KEBE N A Ew 21 256,527 217,214
Available-for-sale investment AHEERE 22 933,415 1,120,098
Financial assets at fair value BRATEINEERRER
through profit or loss FRECREE 23 8,918 497
Properties under development  3E ¥ % 25 991,084 950,004
Pledged time deposits EEBTEHEFER 29 23,771 18,524
Total non-current assets EMEBEEME 4,599,625 4,574,368
CURRENT ASSETS mENEE
Properties under development & ¥ 25 360,888 209,926
Properties held for sale FHEHEM R 385,163 355,693
Inventories rE 26 51,579 49,179
Debtors, deposits and EWEEN 1Ze K&
prepayments T 518 27 198,396 152,497
Due from a director B —RES 28 - 652
Due from non-controlling JE L 3 122 iR AR 3R
shareholders - 67,234
Financial assets at fair value ERTEYEREENER
through profit or loss REE
TREE 23 493 -
Other receivable H b & W 5k 24 - 11,626
Restricted cash BRH3R € 29 17,170 7,018
Pledged time deposits EEBEHEFER 29 13,766 2,044
Cash and cash equivalents HReEMBREEEEHR 29 305,200 221,606
Total current assets MBEERE 1,332,655 1,077,475
CURRENT LIABILITIES nE &R
Trade creditors & 5 BR K 30 (130,612) (75,207)
Sundry creditors, accruals and ~ Efb EBEFK - fEET
deposits received BRALEWES (361,226) (319,351)
Due to directors JENESE 44(c) (1,351) (2,362)
Due to non-controlling JE 1) FE 128 iR AR
shareholders 44(c) (13,005) (11,566)
Interest-bearing bank and Bt B2 $R1T &
other borrowings EMER 31 (561,659) (541,080)
Deferred income iR FE U A 34 (11,274) (14,203)
Tax payable JE& 1~ 3¢ 18 (139,560) (91,423)
Total current liabilities neBaERE (1,218,687) (1,055,192)
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBRERHE 113,968 22,283
TOTAL ASSETS LESS HERERTDAR
CURRENT LIABILITIES
— page 55 — 558 4,713,593 4,596,651
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AN
=R

BRI R

31 March 2012 —E——F=8=+—H

2012 2011
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
—E—_%F —ET——%F
B 5 TERT FAET
TOTAL ASSETS LESS HERERREDAR
CURRENT LIABILITIES
— page 54 — 2548 4,713,593 4,596,651
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 3 HEBI&RE
Due to a director EN—%E% 44(c) (30,700) (37,522)
Due to non-controlling JE 1 FE 12 AR AR 3R
shareholders 44(c) (48,711) (49,126)
Interest-bearing bank and other Bt 8 Z 17 &
borrowings HER 31 (602,229) (369,424)
Derivative financial instrument & @OTAE T A 33 (8,418) (669)
Deferred income EERA 34 (209,554) (252,661)
Deposits received T8 AR 3K (6,827) (5,884)
Deferred tax BT IR 32 (424,969) (408,844)
Total non-current liabilities EmBBEEE (1,331,408) (1,124,130)
Net assets BEFE 3,382,185 3,472,521
EQUITY B &
Equity attributable to owners of &R EIRMHEE A
the parent 8 #E &=
Issued capital BEBEITRAR 35 114,442 114,412
Reserves i 37(a) 2,954,596 3,024,681
Proposed final dividend EEAHE 12 45,777 22,882
3,114,815 3,161,975
Non-controlling interests FEFE AR HE 2 267,370 310,546
Total equity EmBE 3,382,185 3,472,521
Ma Kai Yum Ng Yan Kwong
Director Director
EF EF

TAK SING ALLIANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED # X & m
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY #retfEm =gk

Year ended 31 March 2012 {2 - FE——F=fF=+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the parent

BLAARARAARE
Leasehold Available-
land and for-sale
Share  building Share Exchange Capital investment Proposed Non-
Issued  premium revaluation option  Goodwill equalisation redemption Reserve revaluation Capital  Retained final controlling Total
capital account reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve funds reserve reserve profits  dividend Total interests equity
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
HRLH giHE
L] REF  RORR ER % RREM 1] HER

k* BRE  EEEE BEA  EERE  FEEE  MORG L1 B EIEM  REAW ROER ait #2  eE3E
i3 TR TEL ThRL TR T TERL TR T TEL TR TR TEL ThRL T T

At 1 April 2010 RZF-2%
mA-A 14412 1275015 56,060 6277 (86230) 66,005 316 581 42,608 - 1564322 288 306248 230929 3293177
Profit for the year FEFRF - - - - - - - - - - 163,209 - 163,209 12,195 175,404

Other comprehensive FEES2E
incomef(loss) for the year: WA/ (B§#8)
Change in fair valve of ~ ATEHEREZ
available-for-sale ATEEY
investment B - = - - - - - (80,007) = = - (80,007) = (80,007)
Exchange differences on ~ #HBHEHZ
translation of foreign EXZE
operations - - = = - 38971 - - - - - - 38,971 6,293 45,264
Reclassification adjustment M B2
on deregistration of HEz

subsidiaries EHARER - - - - - (209) - - - - - - (209) = (209)
Total comprehensive FERERE
incomel(loss) for the year WA/ (&%) - - - - - 38,762 - - (80,007) - 163,209 - 121,964 18,488 140,452
Deregistration of REERKELR
subsidiaries - - - - - - - - - - - - - (8,698) (8,698)
Contribution from non- FERBRR
controlling shareholders EIN-E3 - - - - - - - - - - - - - 101,518 101,518
Dividends paid to non- FERRERS
controlling shareholders - - - - - - - - - - - - - (31,530) (31,530)
Deemed disposal of interest B {EtH&—7
in a subsidiary WEAAKE - - - - - - - - - 161 - - 161 (161) -
Equity-settled share option bR B H 2R IE
arrangements 36 - - - 484 - - - - - - - - 484 - 484
Final 2010 dividend ER-F-FF
declared REBRE 12 - - - - - - - - - - - (22,882) (22,882) - (22,882)
Proposed final 2011 dividend E#-F——%
FARE 12 = = = = = = = = = = (22,882) 22,882 - - -
At 31 March 2011 WZE-——%
=A=t-A 14412 1,275,015 56,060 6,761 (86,230) 104,767 316 581 (37,399) 161 1,704,649 2882 3,161,975 310546 3,472,521
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
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Year ended 31 March 2012 #Z=—F——F=A=+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the parent

BLAARARAARE
Leasehold Available-
land and forsale
Share  building Share Exchange Capital investment Proposed Non-
Issued  premium revaluation option  Goodwill equalisation redemption Reserve  revaluation Capital  Retained final controlling Total
capital account reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve funds reserve reserve profits  dividend Total interests equity
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
HRLH giHE
B kT RARR ER [ 3 RREMH i Bl
L] aWE  EEEE WER  HEEA  FEEE  MOEE L1} B RIEE  REAN  ROERR i #8 HE3E
i 7 TR TR TER TR T TR TR TERL TR TR TR T TR TR
t 1 April 2011 R=F-——%
mA-R 14412 1,275,015 56,060 6,761 (86,230) 104,767 316 581 (37,399) 161 1,704,649 2882 3,161,975 310546 3472521
Profit for the year FEFRF - - - - - - - - - - 113,105 - 113,105 43,159 156,264
Other comprehensive FEES2E
incomef(loss) for the year: WA/ (B§#8)
Change in fair value of ARHEREZ
avallable-forsale investment  ATFEEE = = = = = = = - (186,683) = = - (186,683) - (186,683)
Exchange differenceson ~ BEESNEKZ
translation of foreign EXzE
operations - - - - - 48,286 - - - - - - 48,286 6,233 54,519
Total comprehensive FERERE
incomel(loss) for the year WA/ (&%) - - - - - 48,286 - - (186,683) - 113,105 - (25,292) 49392 24,100
Reversal of contribution from  FEZRBR
non-controlling shareholders A\ & & BIA - - - - - - - - - - - - - (55,836) (55,836)
Dividends paid to FERRERS
non-controlling shareholders - - - - - - - - - - - - - (37,493) (37,493)
Loss on deemed acquisition of & fF4E—FS
interest in a subsidiary WEAAER - - - - - - - - - (761) - - (761) 761 -
Issue of shares upon exercise {TERAREL
of share options RiA%T 35 30 93 - (33) - - - - - - - - 90 - 90
Equity-settled share option LR & B IE
arrangements - - - 1,685 - - - - - - - - 1,685 - 1,685
Final 2011 dividend
declared 12 - - - - - - - - - - - (22,882) (22,882) - (22,882)
Proposed final 2012 dividend
1 - - - - - - - s - - w4 - - -
At 31 March 2012 R=2-——£
=A=t-A 114442 1,275,108* 56,060 8413*  (86,230)* 153,053+ 316* 581*  (224,082)* (600)¢  1,771,977* 45777 3114815 267,370 3,382,185
* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of * It S ££2,954,596,0008 7T (=T ——
HK$2,954,596,000 (2011: HK$3,024,681,000) in the consolidated F :3,024,681,000% 7T) B BIE T 26 B 75

statement of financial position.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS #5138

Year ended 31 March 2012 HZ2=-F——F=fA=+—HIFE

imlﬁ—;%

2012 2011
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
—E—_%f —E——%F
B 5 TET FAET
NET CASH FLOWS FROM REEEEBD
OPERATING ACTIVITIES BakA\$H 39 16,110 89,535
CASH FLOWS FROM BREEBDZ
INVESTING ACTIVITIES HeRE
Bank interest received B WERTT FI B 2,683 981
Interest received from an other B U E At ' W 3k
receivable XIS 137 686
Realised fair value loss CRITETAZ
on derivative financial NEERD
instruments — transactions not — ¥R A1
qualifying as hedges (3,336) (2,258)
Dividend received from AtHERE
available-for-sale investment i B U A 22,224 17,779
Proceeds from redemption of f& 0] — I8 H b fE U
an other receivable B P13 3K 11,626 =
Purchases of items of property, BAYE BER
plant and equipment B (43,097) (66,197)
Proceeds from disposal of HEME - HEK
items of property, FEH T RIE
plant and equipment 535 7,820
Proceeds from disposal of i ’%—Hﬁi\tﬁ ERE
available-for-sale investment FTi5 k7 - 1,276
Purchase of investment Eﬁ)\&é%%
properties (947) -
Proceeds from disposal of EEEAFEINER
financial assets at fair value REGFREZ
through profit or loss TRIEEFTRNRIA - 8,191
Purchase of financial assets g AR ’“?TEE'JEE&
at fair value through RERFREZS
profit or loss BhEE (8,940) -
Repayment from a director —UEEEX 652 699
Decrease/(increase) in pledged EEHATHERZ
time deposits A (38 n) (5.,247) 3,132
Increase in restricted cash BRHIZR S 2L (9,784) (955)
Decrease/(increase) in time A BA=EAT
deposits with original maturity HERZED
of more than three months (#Ehn) 6,356 (5,840)
Increase in advances to Bk RNCIE- 5 vl
associates, net N F R (35,036) (120,722)
Net cash flows used in investing & &EE 2
activities REMH FEE (62,174) (155,408)

m ANNUAL REPORT 2012 ¥R




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

AN
A

e mBER

Year ended 31 March 2012 #Z - E——F=fA=+—HIFE

2012 2011
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
—E—_f§ —ET——%F
Bt 5 FHET FAT
CASH FLOWS FROM MREEZ
FINANCING ACTIVITIES HaReE
Proceeds from issue of shares TR RIREZITRG
upon exercise of share options P 1§ 318 920 -
New bank loans FIBIRITE R 646,771 1,464,638
New other loans #I8 H Ah & R 91,050 5,788
Repayment of bank loans ERIFITEX (452,570) (1,251,238)
Repayment of other loans 1858 H th & 5K (45,282) (19,743)
Capital element of finance lease B & 4 (A
payments BARE D - (245)
Dividends paid BT AR B (22,882) (22,882)
Dividends paid to BT IEERRRAR S
non-controlling shareholders (37,493) (31,530)
Changes in balances with non-  FEIZRARERBARE T -
controlling shareholders, net )= 14,323 47,515
Interest paid =ENEURS) (53,180) (32,730)
Interest element of finance lease B & 4 & 1 A
payments F B E1n - (4)
Net cash flows from MmEESH RS
financing activities mA 140,827 159,569
NET INCREASE IN CASH HaRnie®E
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS HEBM 94,763 93,696
Cash and cash equivalents at FzHER
beginning of year ReFEER 217,244 119,937
Effect of foreign exchange rate  [EXREFHHFE -
changes, net FE 6,959 3,611
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS F£#ZH &R
AT END OF YEAR He®ERH 318,966 217,244
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES ReaRBasE
OF CASH AND CASH HERBZIW
EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents as FEEUMBRARAZ
stated in the statement of MleRe kReE
financial position BIE B 29 305,200 221,606
Time deposits with original FHBALR =R
maturity of less than three mERIER — &
months when acquired, RITEE 2 EH
pledged as security for general GFREEBIRTE
banking facilities and short =
term bank loans 29 13,766 2,044
Bank overdrafts RITEZ 31 - (50)
Non-pledged time deposits with  ZEIHIB AR =@ A =
original maturity of more than EIK I EHER
three months - (6,356)
Cash and cash equivalents as HEREeRBERAZ
stated in the consolidated R e Rk
statement of cash flows ReFEMEEAB 318,966 217,244

TAK SING ALLIANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED # X & m



STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION BA#& AR 3=

31 March 2012 —E——F=/A=+—H
2012 2011
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
—Z2—_fF —ET——F
B 3% FTHET FETT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEIE
Interests in subsidiaries NP E=NGIE: 19 1,527,282 1,554,651
CURRENT ASSETS i By E
Other receivables and deposits HEmmEWERRIZE 99 32
Due from associates JiE Wi Bt = B BR 3K 3,925 3,930
Pledged time deposits EEAE BEFER 29 - 44
Cash and cash equivalents RekReFEER 29 109 133
Total current assets mMBEERE 4,133 4,139
CURRENT LIABILITIES mRBAR
Sundry creditors and accruals HihERNERR R
fEst & A (1,528) (1,097)
Due to directors JEtEE 44(c) (5,712) (5,930)
Total current liabilities e aERE (7,240) (7,027)
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES nBARRE (3,107) (2,888)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS HEHERARDAR
CURRENT LIABILITIES 1,524,175 1,551,763
NON-CURRENT LIABILITY EREIAR
Due to a director EN—EE 44(c) (17,578) (15,747)
Net assets BEEFE 1,506,597 1,536,016
EQUITY S
Issued capital EEITRA 35 114,442 114,412
Reserves @& 37(b) 1,346,378 1,398,722
Proposed final dividend BEAHE 12 45,777 22,882
Total equity B E 1,506,597 1,536,016
Ma Kai Yum Ng Yan Kwong
Director Director
EZE EZE
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2.1

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ #6535k & Btz %

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Tak Sing Alliance Holdings Limited (the “Company”) is a
limited liability company incorporated in Bermuda. The
registered office of the Company is located at Canon's
Court, 22 Victoria Street, Hamilton HM12, Bermuda.

During the year, the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) were principally
engaged in investment holding, property investment
and development, and the operations of hotel,
restaurant and food businesses.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting
Standards (“HKASs"”) and Interpretations) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(the "HKICPA™"), accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have
been prepared under the historical cost convention,
except for certain leasehold land and buildings,
investment properties, derivative financial instrument,
and certain financial assets, which have been measured
at fair value. These financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars and all values are rounded to the
nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 March 2012. The financial statements of the
subsidiaries, are prepared for the same reporting period
as the Company, using consistent accounting policies.
The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the
date of acquisition, being the date on which the Group
obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until
the date that such control ceases. All intra-group
balances, transactions, unrealised gains and losses
resulting from intra-group transactions and dividends
are eliminated on consolidation in full.

(=
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ &3k & Bft 5%

31 March 2012 —E——F=8=+—H

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Total comprehensive income within a subsidiary is
attributed to the non-controlling interest even if that
results in a deficit balance.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary,
without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity
transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it
derecognises (i) the assets (including goodwill) and
liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the carrying amount of
any non-controlling interest and (iii) the cumulative
translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration
received, (ii) the fair value of any investment retained
and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss.
The Group's share of components previously recognised
in other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit
or loss or retained profits, as appropriate.

Operating cycle

The operating cycle of the Group for the property
investment and development business is the time
between the acquisition of assets for processing and
their realisation in cash or cash equivalents. Due to the
nature of such business, the normal operating cycle
is longer than 12 months. The Group’s current assets
include assets (such as properties under development
and properties held for sale) are sold, consumed or
realised as part of the normal operating cycle for the
property investment and development business even
when they are not expected to be realised within 12
months after the end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ 76 3k 25 Bt 33

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND

DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following new and revised
HKFRSs for the first time for the current year’s financial
statements.

Amendment to HKFRS 1
First-time Adoption of
Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards —
Limited Exemption from
Comparative HKFRS 7
Disclosures for First-time
Adopters

Related Party Disclosures

HKFRS 1 Amendment

HKAS 24 (Revised)

Amendments to
HK(IFRIC)-Int 14
Prepayments of a Minimum
Funding Requirement

Extinguishing Financial
Liabilities with Equity
Instruments

Amendments to a number of
HKFRSs issued in May 2010

HK(IFRIC)-Int 14
Amendments

HK(IFRIC)-Int 19

Improvements to
HKFRSs 2010

Other than as further explained below regarding the
impact of HKAS 24 (Revised), and amendments to HKFRS
3, HKAS 1 and HKAS 27 included in /mprovements to
HKFRSs 2010, the adoption of the new and revised
HKFRSs has had no significant financial effect on these
financial statements.

| |
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ &3k & Bft 5%

31 March 2012 —E——F=8=+—H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND
DISCLOSURES (continued)

The principal effects of adopting these HKFRSs are as
follows:

(a) HKAS 24 (Revised) Related Party
Disclosures

HKAS 24 (Revised) clarifies and simplifies the
definitions of related parties. The new definitions
emphasise a symmetrical view of related party
relationships and clarify the circumstances in which
persons and key management personnel affect
related party relationships of an entity. The revised
standard also introduces an exemption from the
general related party disclosure requirements for
transactions with a government and entities that
are controlled, jointly controlled or significantly
influenced by the same government as the
reporting entity. The accounting policy for related
parties has been revised to reflect the changes in
the definitions of related parties under the revised
standard. The adoption of the revised standard
did not have any impact on the financial position
or performance of the Group. Details of the
related party transactions, including the related
comparative information, are included in note 44
to the consolidated financial statements.

(b) I/mprovements to HKFRSs 2010 issued in May 2010
sets out amendments to a number of HKFRSs.
There are separate transitional provisions for each
standard. While the adoption of some of the
amendments may result in changes in accounting
policies, none of these amendments has had
a significant financial impact on the financial
position or performance of the Group. Details of
the key amendments most applicable to the Group
are as follows:

e HKFRS 3 Business Combinations: The
amendment clarifies that the amendments
to HKFRS 7, HKAS 32 and HKAS 39 that
eliminate the exemption for contingent
consideration do not apply to contingent
consideration that arose from business
combinations whose acquisition dates
precede the application of HKFRS 3 (as revised
in 2008).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ #6535k & Btz %

31 March 2012 —E——F=8=+—H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICY AND 22 €3 BEREEZER &)

DISCLOSURES (continued)

(b) (continued) (b) (&)

In addition, the amendment limits the
scope of measurement choices for non-
controlling interests. Only the components
of non-controlling interests that are present
ownership interests and entitle their holders
to a proportionate share of the acquiree’s
net assets in the event of liquidation are
measured at either fair value or at the present
ownership instruments’ proportionate share
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All
other components of non-controlling interests
are measured at their acquisition date fair
value, unless another measurement basis is
required by another HKFRS.

The amendments also added explicit guidance
to clarify the accounting treatment for non-
replaced and voluntarily replaced share-based
payment awards.

HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements:
The amendment clarifies that an analysis of
each component of other comprehensive
income can be presented either in the
statement of changes in equity or in the notes
to the financial statements. The Group elects
to present the analysis of each component of
other comprehensive income in the statement
of changes in equity.

HKAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements: The amendment clarifies that the
consequential amendments from HKAS 27 (as
revised in 2008) made to HKAS 21, HKAS 28
and HKAS 31 shall be applied prospectively
for annual periods beginning on or after 1
July 2009 or earlier if HKAS 27 is applied
earlier.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ 76 3 25 Bf 33

31 March 2012 —E——F=8=+—H

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet

effective, in these financial statements.

HKFRS 1 Amendments

HKFRS 1 Amendments
HKFRS 7 Amendments

HKFRS 7 Amendments

HKFRS 9

HKFRS 10

HKFRS 11

HKFRS 12

HKFRS 13

HKAS 1 Amendments

HKAS 12 Amendments

HKAS 19 (2011)
HKAS 27 (2011)
HKAS 28 (2011)

HKAS 32 Amendments

HK(IFRIC)-Int 20

Annual Improvements
2009-2011 Cycle

m ANNUAL REPORT 2012 ¥R

Amendments to HKFRS 1
First-time Adoption of Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standard’s -
Severe Hyperinflation and Removal
of Fixed Dates for First-time
Adopters’

Amendments to HKFRS 1
First-time Adoption of Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards -
Government Loans*

Amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial
Instruments: Disclosures — Transtfers
of Financial Assets’

Amendments to HKFRS 7 Financial
Instruments: Disclosures -
Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities*

Financial Instruments®
Consolidated Financial Statements?
Joint Arrangements*

Disclosure of Interests in Other
Entities*
Fair Value Measurement?

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation
of Financial Statements —
Presentation of Iltems of Other
Comprehensive Income’

Amendments to HKAS 12 /ncome
Taxes — Deferred Tax:

Recovery of Underlying Assets’

Employee Benefts?*
Separate Financial Statements*

Investments in Associates and Joint
Ventures*

Amendments to HKAS 32 Financial
Instruments: Disclosures -
Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities®

Stripping Costs in the Production
Phase of a Surface Mine?

Amendments to a number of HKFRSs
contained in Annual Improvements
2009-2011 Cycle issued in June
2012
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ 76 3k 25 Bt 33

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2011

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2012

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012

i Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2013

° Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2014

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2015

Further information about those changes that are
expected to significantly affect the Group is as follows:

HKFRS 9 issued in November 2009 is the first part of
phase 1 of a comprehensive project to entirely replace
HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement. This phase focuses on the classification
and measurement of financial assets. Instead of
classifying financial assets into four categories, an
entity shall classify financial assets as subsequently
measured at either amortised cost or fair value, on the
basis of both the entity’s business model for managing
the financial assets and the contractual cash flow
characteristics of the financial assets. This aims to
improve and simplify the approach for the classification
and measurement of financial assets compared with the
requirements of HKAS 39.

31 March 2012 —E——F=8=+—H
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ &3k & Bft 5%

31 March 2012 —E——F=8=+—H

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

In November 2010, the HKICPA issued additions to
HKFRS 9 to address financial liabilities (the “Additions”)
and incorporated in HKFRS 9 the current derecognition
principles of financial instruments of HKAS 39. Most
of the Additions were carried forward unchanged
from HKAS 39, while changes were made to the
measurement of financial liabilities designated at fair
value through profit or loss using the fair value option
("FVO"). For these FVO liabilities, the amount of
change in the fair value of a liability that is attributable
to changes in credit risk must be presented in other
comprehensive income (“OCI"). The remainder of the
change in fair value is presented in profit or loss, unless
presentation of the fair value change in respect of the
liability’s credit risk in OCl would create or enlarge an
accounting mismatch in profit or loss. However, loan
commitments and financial guarantee contracts which
have been designated under the FVO are scoped out of
the Additions.

HKAS 39 is aimed to be replaced by HKFRS 9 in its
entirely. Before this entire replacement, the guidance
in HKAS 39 on hedge accounting and impairment of
financial assets continues to apply. The Group expects
to adopt HKFRS 9 from 1 April 2015.

HKFRS 10 establishes a single control model that
applies to all entities including special purpose entities
or structured entities. It includes a new definition
of control which is used to determine which entities
are consolidated. The changes introduced by HKFRS
10 require management of the Group to exercise
significant judgement to determine which entities are
controlled, compared with the requirements in HKAS
27 and HK(SIC)-Int 12 Consolidation — Special Purpose
Entities. HKFRS 10 replaces the portion of HKAS 27
Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements that
addresses the accounting for consolidated financial
statements. It also includes the issues raised in HK(SIC)-
Int 12.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bt #53Rk<

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

HKFRS 11 replaces HKAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures
and HK(SIC)-Int 13 Jointly Controlled Entities — Non-
Monetary Contributions by Venturers. It describes the
accounting for joint arrangements with joint control.
It addresses only two forms of joint arrangements, i.e.
joint operations and joint ventures, and removes the
option to account for joint ventures using proportionate
consolidation.

HKFRS 12 includes the disclosure requirements for
subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associates and
structured entities that are previously included in HKAS
27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements,
HKAS 31 Interests in Joint Ventures and HKAS 28
Investments in Associates. It also introduces a number
of new disclosure requirements for these entities.

Consequential amendments were made to HKAS 27
and HKAS 28 as a result of the issuance of HKFRS 10,
HKFRS 11 and HKFRS 12. The Group expects to adopt
HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11, HKFRS 12, and the consequential
amendments to HKAS 27 and HKAS 28 from 1 April
2013.

HKFRS 13 provides a precise definition of fair value and
a single source of fair value measurement and disclosure
requirements for use across HKFRSs. The standard does
not change the circumstances in which the Group is
required to use fair value, but provides guidance on
how fair value should be applied where its use is already
required or permitted under other HKFRSs. The Group
expects to adopt HKFRS 13 prospectively from 1 April
2013.

Amendments to HKAS 1 change the grouping of items
presented in OCI. Items that could be reclassified (or
recycled) to profit or loss at a future point in time
(for example, upon derecognition or settlement)
would be presented separately from items which will
never be reclassified. The Group expects to adopt the
amendments from 1 April 2013.

i
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

HKAS 12 Amendments clarify the determination of
deferred tax for investment property measured at
fair value. The amendments introduce a rebuttable
presumption that deferred tax on investment property
measured at fair value should be determined on the
basis that its carrying amount will be recovered through
sale. Furthermore, the amendments incorporate the
requirement previously in HK(SIC)-Int 21 /ncome Taxes
— Recovery of Revalued Non-Depreciable Assets that
deferred tax on non-depreciable assets, measured using
the revaluation model in HKAS 16, should always be
measured on a sale basis. The Group expects to adopt
HKAS 12 Amendments from 1 April 2012. Upon the
adoption, the Group’s deferred tax liability with respect
to investment properties located in Hong Kong is
expected to be reduced.

HKAS 19 (2011) includes a number of amendments that
range from fundamental changes to simple clarifications
and re-wording. The revised standard introduces
significant changes in the accounting for defined
benefit pension plans including removing the choice
to defer the recognition of actuarial gains and losses.
Other changes include modifications to the timing of
recognition for termination benefits, the classification of
short-term employee benefits and disclosures of defined
benefit plans. The Group expects to adopt HKAS 19
(2011) from 1 April 2013.

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity whose financial and operating
policies the Company controls, directly or indirectly, so
as to obtain benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the
Company's income statement to the extent of dividends
received and receivable. The Company’s investments
in subsidiaries are stated at cost less any impairment
losses.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ 76 3k 25 Bt 33

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Joint ventures

A joint venture is an entity set up by contractual
arrangement, whereby the Group and other parties
undertake an economic activity. The joint venture
operates as a separate entity in which the Group and
the other parties have an interest.

The joint venture agreement between the venturers
stipulates the capital contributions of the joint venture
parties, the duration of the joint venture and the
basis on which the assets are to be realised upon its
dissolution. The profits or losses from the joint venture’s
operations and any distributions of surplus assets are
shared by the venturers, either in proportion to their
respective capital contributions, or in accordance with
the terms of the joint venture agreement.

A joint venture is treated as:

(a) a subsidiary, if the Group has unilateral control,
directly or indirectly, over the joint venture;

(b) a jointly-controlled entity, if the Group does not
have unilateral control, but has joint control,
directly or indirectly, over the joint venture;

(c) an associate, if the Group does not have unilateral
or joint control, but holds, directly or indirectly,
generally not less than 20% of the joint venture’s
registered capital and is in a position to exercise
significant influence over the joint venture; or

(d) an equity investment accounted for in accordance
with HKAS 39, if the Group holds, directly or
indirectly, less than 20% of the joint venture’s
registered capital and has neither joint control of,
nor is in a position to exercise significant influence
over, the joint venture.
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31 March 2012 —E——F=8=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Jointly-controlled entities

A jointly-controlled entity is a joint venture that is
subject to joint control, resulting in none of the
participating parties having unilateral control over the
economic activity of the jointly-controlled entity.

The Group’s investment in a jointly-controlled entity
is stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at the Group’s share of net assets under the
equity method of accounting, less any impairment
losses. The Group's share of the post-acquisition results
and reserves of the jointly-controlled entity is included
in the consolidated income statement and consolidated
reserves, respectively. Unrealised gains and losses
resulting from transactions between the Group and the
jointly-controlled entity are eliminated to the extent of
the Group’s investment in the jointly-controlled entity,
except where unrealised losses provide evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred.

Associates

An associate is an entity, not being a subsidiary or a
jointly-controlled entity, in which the Group has a long
term interest of generally not less than 20% of the
equity voting rights and over which it is in a position to
exercise significant influence.

The Group’s investments in associates are stated in
the consolidated statement of financial position at the
Group's share of net assets under the equity method
of accounting, less any impairment losses. The Group’s
share of the post-acquisition results and reserves of
associates is included in the consolidated income
statement and consolidated reserves, respectively.
Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates are eliminated to
the extent of the Group’s investments in the associates,
except where unrealised losses provide evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ #6535k & Btz %

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred is
measured at the acquisition date fair value which is
the sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and
the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange
for control of the acquiree. For each business
combination, the Group elects whether it measures
the non-controlling interests in the acquiree that are
present ownership interests and entitle their holders
to a proportionate share of net assets in the event of
liguidation either at fair value or at the proportionate
share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other
components of non-controlling interests are measured
at fair value. Acquisition costs are expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the
financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with
the contractual terms, economic circumstances and
pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This
includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host
contracts by the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
acquisition date fair value of the acquirer’'s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair
value as at the acquisition date through profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. Subsequent changes to the fair value of the
contingent consideration which is deemed to be an
asset or liability will be recognised in accordance with
HKAS 39 either in profit or loss or as a change to other
comprehensive income. If the contingent consideration
is classified as equity, it will not be remeasured.
Subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.
In instances where the contingent consideration does
not fall within the scope of HKAS 39, it is measured in
accordance with the appropriate HKFRS.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill
(continued)

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess
of the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests and any
fair value of the Group’s previously held equity interests
in the acquiree over the identifiable net assets acquired
and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this consideration
and other items is lower than the fair value of the net
assets of the subsidiary acquired, the difference is, after
reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a gain on
bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost
less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is
tested for impairment annually or more frequently if
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying value may be impaired. The Group performs its
annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 March. For
the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired
in a business combination is, from the acquisition date,
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units,
or groups of cash-generating units, that are expected
to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the
Group are assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-
generating units) to which the goodwill relates. Where
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
(group of cash-generating units) is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed
in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill forms part of a cash-generating
unit (group of cash-generating units) and part of the
operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill
associated with the operation disposed of is included in
the carrying amount of the operation when determining
the gain or loss on disposal of the operation. Goodwill
disposed of in this circumstance is measured based on
the relative values of the operation disposed of and the
portion of the cash-generating unit retained.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ 76 3k 25 Bt 33

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when
annual impairment testing for an asset is required (other
than inventories, financial assets, investment properties
and goodwill), the asset’s recoverable amount is
estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher
of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use and
its fair value less costs to sell, and is determined for
an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate
cash inflows that are largely independent of those
from other assets or groups of assets, in which case
the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the income
statement in the period in which it arises in those
expense categories consistent with the function of the
impaired asset, unless the asset is carried at a revalued
amount, in which case the impairment loss is accounted
for in accordance with the relevant accounting policy
for that revalued asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is any indication that
previously recognised impairment losses may no longer
exist or may have decreased. If such an indication exists,
the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously
recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change
in the estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher than
the carrying amount that would have been determined
(net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited
to the income statement in the period in which it arises.
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31 March 2012 —E——F=8=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a)

or

the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person

(i)

(i)

(iii)

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or of a parent of the
Group;

the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

the entity and the Group are members of the
same group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or
fellow subsidiary of the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of
the same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity;
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BA#&#h Btz

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Related parties (continued)

(b)

(continued)
(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (a); and

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity

(or of a parent of the entity).

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction
in progress, are stated at cost or valuation less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its
working condition and location for its intended use.
Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant
and equipment have been put into operation, such as
repairs and maintenance, is normally charged to the
income statement in the period in which it is incurred.
In situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied,
the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised
in the carrying amount of the asset as a replacement.
Where significant parts of property, plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the
Group recognises such parts as individual assets with
specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.
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31 March 2012 —E——F=8=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation (continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to
write off the cost or valuation of each item of property,
plant and equipment to its residual value over its
estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used for
this purpose are as follows:
Hotel properties Over the lease terms
Leasehold land under

finance leases Over the lease terms

Buildings 2.5% to 3%
Leasehold improvements 5% to 15%
Plant and machinery 10%

15% to 20%
20% to 25%

Furniture, fixtures and equipment
Motor vehicles

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost or
valuation of that item is allocated on a reasonable basis
among the parts and each part is depreciated separately.

Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at
least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss
on disposal or retirement recognised in the income
statement in the year the asset is derecognised is the
difference between the net sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the relevant asset.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ 76 3k 25 Bt 33

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation (continued)

Construction in progress represents buildings
under construction, which is stated at cost less any
impairment losses, and is not depreciated. Cost
comprises the direct costs of construction during the
period of construction. Construction in progress is
reclassified to the appropriate category of property,
plant and equipment when completed and ready for
use.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings
(including the leasehold interest under an operating
lease for a property which would otherwise meet the
definition of an investment property) held to earn rental
income and/or for capital appreciation, rather than for
use in the production or supply of goods or services or
for administrative purposes; or for sale in the ordinary
course of business. Such properties are measured
initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent
to initial recognition, investment properties are stated at
fair value, which reflects market conditions at the end
of the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values
of investment properties are included in the income
statement in the year in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of
an investment property are recognised in the income
statement in the year of the retirement or disposal.
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31 March 2012 —E——F=8=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Intangible assets (other than goodwiill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on
initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is the fair value as
at the date of acquisition. The useful life of intangible
asset is assessed to be either finite or indefinite.
Intangible asset with finite life is subsequently
amortised over the useful economic life and assessed
for impairment whenever there is an indication that
the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation
period and the amortisation method for an intangible
asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at
each financial year end.

Intangible assets represent the rights to purchase pre-
determined lots of land pursuant to legal binding
agreements. Intangible assets are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and any impairment losses.
Intangible assets are amortised to properties under
development as land costs in accordance with the
future acquisition patterns of these pre-determined lots
of land within the unexpired periods of the agreements.

Leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and
risks of ownership of assets to the Group, other than
legal title, are accounted for as finance leases. At the
inception of a finance lease, the cost of the leased asset
is capitalised at the present value of the minimum lease
payments and recorded together with the obligation,
excluding the interest element, to reflect the purchase
and financing. Assets held under capitalised finance
leases, including prepaid land lease payments under
finance leases, are included in property, plant and
equipment and depreciated over the shorter of the lease
terms and the estimated useful lives of the assets. The
finance costs of such leases are charged to the income
statement so as to provide a constant periodic rate of
charge over the lease terms.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)

Assets acquired through hire purchase contracts of a
financing nature are accounted for as finance leases,
but are depreciated over their estimated useful lives.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks
of ownership of assets remain with the lessor are
accounted for as operating leases. Where the Group is
the lessor, assets leased by the Group under operating
leases are included in non-current assets, and rentals
receivable under the operating leases are credited to
the income statement on the straight-line basis over
the lease terms. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals
payable under operating leases are charged to the
income statement on the straight-line basis over the
lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases
are initially stated at cost and subsequently recognised
on the straight-line basis over the lease terms. When
the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably
between the land and buildings elements, the entire
lease payments are included in the cost of the land
and buildings as a finance lease in property, plant and
equipment.

Properties under development

Properties under development are stated at the lower of
cost and net realisable value and comprise land costs,
construction costs, borrowing costs, professional fees
and other costs directly attributable to such properties
incurred during the development period.

Properties under development are classified as current
assets unless the construction period of the relevant
property development project is expected to complete
beyond the normal operating cycle. On completion, the
properties are transferred to properties held for sale.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets within the scope of HKAS 39 are
classified as financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss, loans and receivables, and available-for-
sale financial investments, as appropriate. The Group
determines the classification of its financial assets at
initial recognition. When financial assets are recognised
initially, they are measured at fair value plus transaction
costs, except in the case of financial assets recorded at
fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date
that the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the
period generally established by regulation or convention
in the marketplace.

The Group’s financial assets include cash and bank
balances, time deposits, an other receivable, debtors
and deposits, amounts due from a director and non-
controlling shareholders, amounts due from associates,
and quoted and unquoted financial instruments.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets
depends on their classification as follows:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
include financial assets held for trading and financial
assets designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss. Financial assets are
classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the
purpose of sale in the near term. Derivatives, including
separated embedded derivatives, are also classified as
held for trading unless they are designated as effective
hedging instruments as defined by HKAS 39.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
carried in the statement of financial position at fair
value with net changes in fair value recognised in the
income statement. These net fair value changes do
not include any dividends or interest earned on these
financial assets, which are recognised in accordance
with the policies set out for “Revenue recognition”
below.

Financial assets designated upon initial recognition at
fair value through profit or loss are designated at the
date of initial recognition and only if the criteria under
HKAS 39 are satisfied.

The Group evaluates its financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (held for trading) to assess
whether the intent to sell them in the near term is
still appropriate. When, in rare circumstances, the
Group is unable to trade these financial assets due
to inactive markets and management’s intent to sell
them in the foreseeable future significantly changes,
the Group may elect to reclassify these financial
assets. The reclassification from financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss to loans and receivables,
available-for-sale financial assets or held-to-maturity
investments depends on the nature of the assets.
This evaluation does not affect any financial assets
designated at fair value through profit or loss using the
fair value option at designation as these instruments
cannot be reclassified after initial recognition.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. After initial measurement,
such assets are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest rate method less any
allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is calculated
by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and includes fees or costs that are an
integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in finance
income in the income statement. The loss arising from
impairment is recognised in the income statement in
other expenses.

Available-for-sale financial investments

Available-for-sale financial investments are non-
derivative financial assets in listed and unlisted equity
investments. Equity investments classified as available
for sale are those which are neither classified as held for
trading nor designated at fair value through profit or
loss.

After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial
investments are subsequently measured at fair value,
with unrealised gains or losses recognised as other
comprehensive income in the available-for-sale
investment revaluation reserve until the investment is
derecognised, at which time the cumulative gain or loss
is recognised in the income statement in other income,
or until the investment is determined to be impaired,
when the cumulative gain or loss is reclassified from
the available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve to
the income statement in other expenses. Interest and
dividends earned whilst holding the available-for-sale
financial investments are reported as interest income
and dividend income, respectively and are recognised
in the income statement as other income in accordance
with the policies set out for “Revenue recognition”
below.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments
(continued)

When the fair value of unlisted equity investments
cannot be reliably measured because (a) the variability
in the range of reasonable fair value estimates is
significant for that investment or (b) the probabilities
of the various estimates within the range cannot be
reasonably assessed and used in estimating fair value,
such investments are stated at cost less any impairment
losses.

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention
to sell its available-for-sale financial assets in the near
term are still appropriate. When, in rare circumstances,
the Group is unable to trade these financial assets due
to inactive markets and management’s intent to do
so significantly changes in the foreseeable future, the
Group may elect to reclassify these financial assets.
Reclassification to loans and receivables is permitted
when the financial assets meet the definition of loans
and receivables and the Group has the intent and ability
to hold these assets for the foreseeable future or to
maturity. The reclassification to the held-to-maturity
category is permitted only when the Group has the
ability and intent to hold until the maturity date of the
financial asset.

For a financial asset reclassified from the available-
for-sale category, the fair value carrying amount at
the date of reclassification becomes its new amortised
cost and any previous gain or loss on that asset that
has been recognised in equity is amortised to profit
or loss over the remaining life of the investment using
the effective interest rate. Any difference between the
new amortised cost and the maturity amount is also
amortised over the remaining life of the asset using
the effective interest rate. If the asset is subsequently
determined to be impaired, then the amount recorded
in equity is reclassified to the income statement.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is derecognised when:

e the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

e the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from the asset, or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full
without material delay to a third party under a
“pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the
risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred
control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-
through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent
it has retained the risk and rewards of ownership of
the asset. When it has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognised
to the extent of the Group's continuing involvement
in the asset. In that case, the Group also recognises
an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects
the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a
guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the
lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and
the maximum amount of consideration that the Group
could be required to repay.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is any objective evidence that a
financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired.
A financial asset or a group of financial assets is
deemed to be impaired if, and only if, there is objective
evidence of impairment as a result of one or more
events that occurred after the initial recognition of the
asset (an incurred “loss event”) and that loss event
has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of
the financial asset or the group of financial assets that
can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may
include indications that a debtor or a group of debtors
is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default
or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the
probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other
financial reorganisation and observable data indicating
that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or
economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the
Group first assesses individually whether objective
evidence of impairment exists for financial assets
that are individually significant, or collectively for
financial assets that are not individually significant.
If the Group determines that no objective evidence
of impairment exists for an individually assessed
financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes
the asset in a group of financial assets with similar
credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses them
for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed
for impairment and for which an impairment loss is,
or continues to be, recognised are not included in a
collective assessment of impairment.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost
(continued)

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss
has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured
as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that have not been
incurred). The present value of the estimated future
cash flows is discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition). If a loan has a variable
interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any
impairment loss is the current effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through
the use of an allowance account and the amount of
the loss is recognised in the income statement. Interest
income continues to be accrued on the reduced carrying
amount and is accrued using the rate of interest used
to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of
measuring the impairment loss. Loans and receivables
together with any associated allowance are written off
when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated
impairment loss increases or decreases because of an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is increased
or reduced by adjusting the allowance account. If a
write-off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to
the income statement.

ANNUAL REPORT 2012 ¥k

24FERFIBRZCEBE (&)

EMBEEZME(F)

HBBREEIIIREHBERE (2)

8 F B RER LR EREE
AlZREBEeRRZEEREE
Rt ARRERE (TEELR
EEZAREERR)REZ Z/ET
B ARKBASREZRENY
BEEZRERF X (R EHRER
Rt H 2 BERFE)MR - HERZ
MR RFBA =X RIGEEFAREE
BRZITAESRITERNEX-

REBEZREEDBEREGBRN
B ME RS BENKERER - ME
WAREHRR 2 REETREE
E-WERBHEEREBER BN
PFrEERRIRE IR E 2 F RFHIE ©
FHE LRREZWRE L AEEH
MmO BRI DBARNEEH BIER
Ko FE U R G B {2 ] L AR RE 2 B
7 T AR EH -

MEER &R AR RS E
oA T TR MEL 2 4 PR B2 2 S
s AIEBHERES
380,00 5 > . T 2 LMEL A 98 1
S U EE ST S
RPN
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Assets carried at cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss
has been incurred on an unquoted equity instrument
that is not carried at fair value because its fair value
cannot be reliably measured, the amount of the loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows discounted at the current market rate of return
for a similar financial asset. Impairment losses on these
assets are not reversed.

Available-for-sale financial investments

For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group
assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that an investment or a
group of investments is impaired.

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount
comprising the difference between its cost (net of any
principal payment and amortisation) and its current fair
value, less any impairment loss previously recognised
in the income statement, is removed from other
comprehensive income and recognised in the income
statement.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Available-for-sale financial investments
(continued)

In the case of equity investments classified as
available for sale, objective evidence would include a
significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of an
investment below its cost. The determination of what
is “significant” or “prolonged” requires judgement.
“Significant” is evaluated against the original cost of
the investment and “prolonged” against the period
in which the fair value has been below its original
cost. Where there is evidence of impairment, the
cumulative loss — measured as the difference between
the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less
any impairment loss on that investment previously
recognised in the income statement — is removed
from other comprehensive income and recognised in
the income statement. Impairment losses on equity
instruments classified as available for sale are not
reversed through the income statement. Increases in
their fair value after impairment are recognised directly
in other comprehensive income.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities within the scope of HKAS 39 are
classified as financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss, and loans and borrowings. The Group
determines the classification of its financial liabilities at
initial recognition.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair
value plus, in the case of loans and borrowings, directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade creditors,
sundry creditors, accruals and deposits received,
amounts due to directors and non-controlling
shareholders, interest-bearing loans and borrowings and
a derivative financial instrument.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ 76 3k 25 Bt 33

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities (continued)

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities
depends on their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
include financial liabilities held for trading and financial
liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading
if they are acquired for the purpose of selling in the
near term. This category includes derivative financial
instruments entered into by the Group that are
not designated as hedging instruments in hedge
relationships as defined by HKAS 39. Separated
embedded derivatives are also classified as held for
trading unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments. Gains or losses on liabilities held for
trading are recognised in the income statement. The
net fair value gain or loss recognised in the income
statement does not include any interest charged on
these financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition
at fair value through profit or loss are designated at
the date of initial recognition and only if the criteria of
HKAS 39 are satisfied.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ 763k & Bt 5%

31 March 2012 —E——F=8=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities (continued)

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest rate method unless
the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are
recognised in the income statement when the liabilities
are derecognised as well as through the effective
interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
The effective interest rate amortisation is included in
finance costs in the income statement.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are
those contracts that require a payment to be made to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the
specified debtor fails to make a payment when due
in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.
A financial guarantee contract is recognised initially
as a liability at its fair value, adjusted for transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of
the guarantee. Subsequent to initial recognition, the
Group measures the financial guarantee contract at the
higher of: (i) the amount of the best estimate of the
expenditure required to settle the present obligation
at the end of the reporting period; and (ii) the amount
initially recognised less, when appropriate, cumulative
amortisation.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ #6532 Bt 5%

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original
liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the
difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in the income statement.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and
the net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable
legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there
is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are traded
in active markets is determined by reference to quoted
market prices or dealer price quotations (bid price
for long positions and ask price for short positions),
without any deduction for transaction costs. For
financial instruments where there is no active market,
the fair value is determined using appropriate valuation
techniques. Such techniques include using recent
arm's length market transactions; reference to the
current market value of another instrument which is
substantially the same; a discounted cash flow analysis;
and option pricing models or other valuation models.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ 763k & Bt 5%

31 March 2012 —E——F=8=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

24FEERIBRZEBE (8)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Derivative financial instruments

Initial recognition and subsequent
measurement

The Group uses derivative financial instruments, such as
interest rate swaps, to hedge its interest rate risk. Such
derivative financial instruments are initially recognised
at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract
is entered into and are subsequently remeasured at fair
value. Derivatives are carried as assets when the fair
value is positive and as liabilities when the fair value is
negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of
derivatives are taken directly to the income statement.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined on the first-in,
first-out basis and, in the case of work in progress
and finished goods, comprises direct materials, direct
labour and an appropriate proportion of overheads. Net
realisable value is based on estimated selling prices less
any estimated costs to be incurred to completion and
disposal.

Properties held for sale

Properties held for sale are stated at the lower of cost
and net realisable value on an individual property basis.
Cost includes all development expenditure, applicable
borrowing costs and other direct costs attributable to
such properties. Net realisable value is estimated by the
directors by reference to the prevailing market price.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BA#&#h Btz

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash
on hand and demand deposits, and short term highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity of
generally within three months when acquired, less bank
overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group's cash management.

For the purpose of the statement of financial position,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and at banks, including term deposits, which are not
restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation
(legal or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past
event and it is probable that a future outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation,
provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the
end of the reporting period of the future expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation. The
increase in the discounted present value amount arising
from the passage of time is included in finance costs in
the income statement.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ 763k & Bt 5%

31 March 2012 —E——F=8=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss
is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and
prior periods are measured at the amount expected
to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries
in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on
all temporary differences at the end of the reporting
period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

e when the deferred tax liability arises from goodwill
or the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

e in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with interests in subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures, when the timing of the reversal
of the temporary differences can be controlled and
it is probable that the temporary differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, the carryforward of unused
tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, the carryforward of
unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised,
except:
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ 76 3k 25 Bt 33

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

e when the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

e in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with interests in subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures, deferred tax assets are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that
the temporary differences will reverse in the
foreseeable future and taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting
period and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset
if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred
taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same
taxation authority.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ 763k & Bt 5%

31 March 2012 —E——F=8=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value
where there is reasonable assurance that the grant
will be received and all attaching conditions will be
complied with. When the grant relates to an asset, the
fair value is credited to a deferred income account and
is released to the income statement on a systematic
basis over the useful life of the asset.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when
the revenue can be measured reliably, on the following
bases:

(@) from the sale of goods, when the significant risks
and rewards of ownership have been transferred
to the buyer, provided that the Group maintains
neither managerial involvement to the degree
usually associated with ownership, nor effective
control over the goods sold;

(b) income from the restaurant and food businesses,
at the point of sale to customers;

(c) income from the sale of completed properties, on
the exchange of legally binding unconditional sales
contracts;

(d) rental income, in the period in which the
properties are let out and on the straight-line basis
over the lease terms;

(e) hotel and other service income, in the period in
which such services are rendered,

(f) interest income, on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate
that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial
instrument or a shorter period, when appropriate,
to the net carrying amount of the financial asset;
and

(g) dividend income, when the shareholders’ right to
receive payment has been established.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ 76 3k 25 Bt 33

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Share-based payment transactions

The Company operates a share option scheme for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the
Group's operations. Employees (including directors) of
the Group receive remuneration in the form of share-
based payment transactions, whereby employees
render services as consideration for equity instruments
("equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees
for grants after 7 November 2002 is measured by
reference to the fair value at the date at which they
are granted. The fair value is determined by an external
valuer using a binomial model, further details of which
are given in note 36 to the financial statements.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised,
together with a corresponding increase in equity, over
the period in which the performance and/or service
conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative expense
recognised for equity-settled transactions at the end
of each reporting period until the vesting date reflects
the extent to which the vesting period has expired and
the Group’s best estimate of the number of equity
instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge or
credit to the income statement for a period represents
the movement in the cumulative expense recognised as
at the beginning and end of that period.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not
ultimately vest, except for equity-settled transactions
where vesting is conditional upon a market or non-
vesting condition, which are treated as vesting
irrespective of whether or not the market or non-
vesting condition is satisfied, provided that all other
performance and/or service conditions are satisfied.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ 763k & Bt 5%

31 March 2012 —E——F=8=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Share-based payment transactions (continued)

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are
modified, as a minimum an expense is recognised as
if the terms had not been modified, if the original
terms of the award are met. In addition, an expense is
recognised for any modification that increases the total
fair value of the share-based payment transaction, or
is otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at
the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated
as if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any
expense not yet recognised for the award is recognised
immediately. This includes any award where non-vesting
conditions within the control of either the Group or
the employee are not met. However, if a new award is
substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated
as a replacement award on the date that it is granted,
the cancelled and new awards are treated as if they
were a modification of the original award, as described
in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings
per share.

Other employee benefits

Pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for those employees who are
eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions
are made based on a percentage of the employees’
basic salaries and are charged to the income statement
as they become payable in accordance with the rules
of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme
are held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund. The Group’s employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ 76 3k 25 Bt 33

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Other employee benefits (continued)

Pension schemes (continued)

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which
operate in Mainland China are required to participate
in central pension schemes (the “CP Schemes”)
operated by respective local municipal governments.
These subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain
percentage of their covered payroll to the CP Schemes
to fund their benefits. The only obligation of the
Group with respect to the CP Schemes is to pay the
ongoing required contributions under the CP Schemes.
Contributions under the CP Schemes are charged
to the income statement as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the CP Schemes.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e.,
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of
time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The
capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use
or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs
are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that
an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of
funds.

(=

31 March 2012 —ZE—=—F=F=+—H
24T EEHBRCEBE (8)

HftgBaEF (i5)
EREHiHE (&)

AEBERTEAM 2 HERRZE
EFELHEBEMTBUNAREZ
RREAREE -ZEHMBELRE
BUARTERAZETNEE/Z
FRERE R 8 2 K R
B RRARESFEZRAETIAX
i EeriasR T mkke

EBEERE

Wi R EERTKEE (AIF
EREBTAERERAGILEZ
BE)EREBIEEERARRT S
FEENMOKRAE - ZEBERN
REECAHMAEREAEILE
RRIEBRTE - RKRARKRTREE
MEEBREERREMGHRER
ABBEFTEERATER - NIRRT
BEMEERANEEEEARNX
H-BEXRABREERREERE
EZFB REAMRA

TAK SING ALLIANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED # i & m



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ 763k & Bt 5%

31 March 2012 —E——F=8=+—H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the directors are classified
as a separate allocation of retained profits within the
equity section of the statement of financial position,
until they have been approved by the shareholders in
a general meeting. When these dividends have been
approved by the shareholders and declared, they are
recognised as a liability.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is the Company’s functional
and presentation currency. Each entity in the Group
determines its own functional currency and items
included in the financial statements of each entity
are measured using that functional currency. Foreign
currency transactions recorded by the entities in the
Group are initially recorded using their respective
functional currency rates ruling at the dates of
the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the
end of the reporting period. All differences arising on
settlement or translation of monetary items are taken
to the income statement. Non-monetary items that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at
the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the date when
the fair value was determined. The gain or loss arising
on retranslation of a non-monetary item is treated in
line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change
in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences
on item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in
other comprehensive income or profit or loss is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or
loss, respectively).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ #6532 Bt 5%

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries,
associates and jointly-controlled entity are currencies
other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the end of
the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of
these entities are translated into the presentation
currency of the Company at the exchange rates ruling
at the end of the reporting period and their income
statements are translated into Hong Kong dollars at
the weighted average exchange rates for the year. The
resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in a separate
component of equity. On disposal of a foreign operation,
the component of other comprehensive income relating
to that particular foreign operation is recognised in the
income statement.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign
operation and any fair value adjustments to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities arising on acquisition
are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
operation and translated at the closing rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
cash flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange
rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise
throughout the year are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for the
year.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ 763k & Bt 5%

31 March 2012 —E——F=8=+—H

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group's financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the
reporting period. However, uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes
that could require a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in the
future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies, management has made the following
judgements, apart from those involving estimations,
which have the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the financial statements:

Operating lease commitments - Group as
lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases
on its investment property portfolio. The Group has
determined, based on an evaluation of the terms and
conditions of the arrangements, that it retains all the
significant risks and rewards of ownership of these
properties which are leased out on operating leases.

Classification between investment properties
and owner-occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies
as an investment property, and has developed criteria
in making that judgement. Investment property is a
property held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation
or both. Therefore, the Group considers whether a
property generates cash flows largely independently of
the other assets held by the Group.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B 76 3R 25 Bft 5

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Judgements (continued)

Classification between investment properties
and owner-occupied properties (continued)

Some properties comprise a portion that is held to
earn rentals or for capital appreciation and another
portion that is held for use in the production or supply
of goods or services or for administrative purposes. If
these portions could be sold separately (or leased out
separately under a finance lease), the Group accounts
for the portions separately. If the portions could not
be sold separately, the property is an investment
property only if an insignificant portion is held for use
in the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes. Judgement is made on an
individual property basis to determine whether ancillary
services are so significant that a property does not
qualify as an investment property.

Classification between investment properties
and properties held for sale

The Group develops properties held for sale and
properties held to earn rentals and/or for capital
appreciation. Judgement is made by management
in determining whether a property is designated as
an investment property or a property held for sale.
The Group considers its intention of holding the
properties at the early development stage of the related
properties. During the course of construction, the
related properties under construction are accounted
for as properties under development if the properties
are intended for sale after its completion, whereas, the
properties are accounted for as investment properties
under construction if the properties are intended to
be held to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation.
Upon completion of the properties, the properties held
for sale are transferred to completed properties held
for sale and are stated at cost, while the properties
held to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation are
transferred to investment properties and are subject to
revaluation at each reporting date.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ 763k & Bt 5%

31 March 2012 —E——F=8=+—H

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
described below.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at
least on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of
the value in use of the cash-generating units to which
the goodwill is allocated. Estimating the value in use
requires the Group to make an estimate of the expected
future cash flows from the cash-generating units and
also to choose a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value of those cash flows. The
carrying amount of goodwill at 31 March 2012 was
HK$40,111,000 (2011: HK$40,111,000). More details
are given in note 17.

Estimation of fair value of investment
properties

The Group engaged independent professionally
qualified valuers to perform the valuation of the
investment properties of the Group at the end of the
reporting period. The valuations were carried out as
follows:

In the valuation, the valuers consider information from a
variety of sources, including:

(a) direct comparison approach and made reference to
the recent transactions for similar premises in the
proximity;

(b) discounted cash flow analysis which discounts
the projected free cash flows generated from the
properties at an appropriate market rate of return
to arrive at the present values of the properties;
and
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ 76 3k 25 Bt 33

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Estimation of fair value of investment
properties (continued)

(c) a combination of the market and depreciated
replacement cost approach in assessing the land
portion of the properties and the buildings and
structures standing on the land respectively.

The carrying amount of investment properties of the
Group as at 31 March 2012 was HK$1,446,897,000
(2011: HK$1,346,196,000).

Estimation of fair value of other intangible
assets

The Group engaged independent professionally
qgualified valuers to perform the valuation of the
intangible assets of the Group at the date of acquisition
of a subsidiary. Such valuation was based on certain
assumptions, which are subject to uncertainty and
might materially differ from the actual results. The
carrying amount of other intangible assets of the Group
as at 31 March 2012 was HK$399,732,000 (2011:
HK$399,732,000).

Corporate income tax (“CIT")

The Group is subject to income taxes in the People
Republic of China (“PRC”). As a result of the fact
that certain matters relating to the income taxes have
not been confirmed by the local tax bureau, objective
estimate and judgement based on currently enacted tax
laws, regulations and other related policies are required
in determining the provision for income taxes to be
made. Where the final tax outcome of these matters
is different from the amounts originally recorded, the
differences will impact on the income tax and tax
provisions in the period in which the differences realise.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ 763k & Bt 5%

31 March 2012 —E——F=8=+—H

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Land appreciation tax (“LAT"”)

The Group is subject to LAT in the PRC. The provision
for LAT is based on management’'s best estimates
according to the understanding of the requirements set
forth in the relevant PRC tax laws and regulations. The
actual LAT liabilities are subject to the determination by
the tax authorities upon the completion of the property
development projects. As the Group has not finalised its
LAT calculation and payments with the tax authorities
for certain of its property development projects, the
final outcome could be different from the amounts that
were initially recorded.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators
of impairment for all non-financial assets at the end
of each reporting period. Indefinite life intangible
assets are tested for impairment annually and at
other times when such an indicator exists. Other non-
financial assets are tested for impairment when there
are indicators that the carrying amounts may not be
recoverable. An impairment exists when the carrying
value of an asset or a cash-generating unit exceeds its
recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value
less costs to sell and its value in use. The calculation
of the fair value less costs to sell is based on available
data from binding sales transactions in an arm’s length
transaction of similar assets or observable market prices
less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. When
value in use calculations are undertaken, management
must estimate the expected future cash flows for the
asset or cash-generating unit and choose a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value of
those cash flows.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ 76 3k 25 Bt 33

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax
losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the losses can be
utilised. Significant management judgement is required
to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can
be recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of
future taxable profits together with future tax planning
strategies. The carrying value of deferred tax assets
relating to recognised tax losses at 31 March 2012 was
HK$10,818,000 (2011: HK$8,634,000). Further details
are contained in note 32 to the financial statements.

Recognition and allocation of construction
costs on properties under development

Development costs of properties are recorded as
properties under development during the construction
stage and will be transferred to properties held for
sale upon completion. An apportionment of these
costs will be recognised in the income statement upon
the recognition of the sales of completed properties.
Before the final settlement of the development costs
and other costs relating to the sale of the completed
properties, these costs are accrued by the Group based
on management’s best estimate.

When developing properties, the Group may divide the
development projects into phases. Specific costs directly
related to the development of a phase are recorded
as the cost of such phase. Costs that are common to
phases are allocated to individual phases based on the
estimated saleable area of the entire project.

Where the final settlement of costs and the related cost
allocation is different from the initial estimates, any
increase or decrease in the development costs and other
costs would affect the profit or loss in future years.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ 763k & Bt 5%

31 March 2012 —E——F=8=+—H

4.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into
business units based on their products and services and
has three reportable operating segments as follows:

(a) the restaurant, food and hotel segment is engaged
in restaurant and hotel operations and the
provision of food and beverage services;

(b) the property investment and development segment
comprises the development and sale of properties
and the leasing of commercial and residential
premises; and

(c) the "“others” segment comprises, principally,
investment holding and other operations.

Management monitors the results of its operating
segments separately for the purpose of making
decisions about resources allocation and performance
assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based
on reportable segment profit, which is a measure of
adjusted profit before tax. The adjusted profit before
tax is measured consistently with the Group’s profit
before tax except that bank interest income, interest
income from an other receivable, finance costs as
well as corporate expenses are excluded from such
measurement.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with
reference to the selling prices used for sales made to
third parties at the then prevailing market prices.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 87 75 ¥R 5 B 5%
31 March 2012 —ZE——F=HA=+—H
OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. BESHEH (&)
(continued)
Property
Restaurant, investment
Year ended BE-T-—_F food and and
31 March 2012 =A=+-H hotel development Others Total
it NERE
RaBRERE RER Hftr @t
HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000
TERT TERX TET FTET
Segment revenue: S
Sales to external customers HETIRER 621,958 550,811 - 1,172,769
Intersegment sales D EfE < SHE 1,010 6,318 - 7,328
1,180,097
Reconciliation: AL
Elimination of intersegment WsE D HE 2 HER
sales ~ (7.328)
Total revenue BUA 1,172,769
Segment results SBRE 96,828 214,059 (405) 310,482
Reconciliation. P -
Bank interest income |ITH S WA 2,683
Interest income from Hi U2
an other receivable LT ON 137
Corporate and unallocated REID ZHEEBR
expenses tEZN (38,284)
Finance costs BBEE (42,626)
Profit before tax BR %t A A 232,392
Other segment HuoBEH:
information:
Share of profits and losses of ~ FE{f B & 2 A% 1l &
associates BB \ - (1,087) - (1,087)
Impairment of trade debtors ~ EWEHR 2 A{E 468 1,686 - 2,154
Recognition of prepaid land BEREM L EEHRE
lease payment . 404 - - 404
Depreciation fE
- segment —nH 28,918 10,180 - 39,098
- unallocated ~KHHe 1,637
40,735
Interests in associates BENAER - 256,369 158 256,527
Capital expenditure BAY
- segment -nH 8,357 31,955 - 40,312
- unallocated - RAE 3,732
44,044*
= Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and o B MEL BIFIE Y% - s RR

equipment and investment properties.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ 76 3 25 Bff 33

31 March 2012 —E——F=8=+—H

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. BESEEH (&)
(continued)
Property
Restaurant, investment
Year ended Bz-_T——#F food and and
31 March 2011 =A=+—AH hotel  development Others Total
BiZ MERE \
Bm B E RER Hity Bt
HK$'000 HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
TET TET TET TAET
Segment revenue: SEBMBA
Sales to external customers HETINARP 579,683 113,157 - 692,840
Intersegment sales DR EE 830 5,986 - 6,816
699,656
Reconciliation: -
Elimination of intersegment R0 B E 2
sales HEH (6,816)
Total revenue U A 692,840
Segment results SERRE 110,983 178,612 (152) 289,443
Reconciliation: D -
Bank interest income RATHBWA 981
Interest income from Hi R 2
an other receivable 2 A 686
Corporate and unallocated ReeEl D2 HEEBR
expenses PETH (35,003)
Finance costs FBRY (31,857)
Profit before tax BR 5% A 42 A 224,250
Other segment HusBEH:
information:
Share of profits and losses of (G & A AEFI &
associates BB - 74,712 - 74,712
Gain on deregistration of EARREEMN
subsidiaries Wiz 22,735 - - 22,735
Impairment of trade debtors RS R E 114 6,425 - 6,539
Recognition of prepaid land BREMN L EEHE
lease payment 385 - - 385
Depreciation e
- segment -nH# 29,452 8,559 - 38,011
- unallocated —RHHE 1,427
39,438
Interests in associates NG Fo — 217,056 158 217,214
Capital expenditure BAY
- segment - 54,459 11,132 = 65,591
- unallocated —RHHE 606
66,197*
& Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, plant and & B MRS G EMY % BE KR
equipment. 1o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ 76 3k 25 Bt 33

31 March 2012 —ZE—=—F=F=+—H

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

(continued)

Geographical information

(a) Revenue from external customers

4. BESWEH ()

i 1 R E

(a) B FREFZHA

2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000

—E—-——F —ZT——F

F#ET FET

Hong Kong BB 47,461 44,174
Mainland China AR K BE 1,125,308 648,666
1,172,769 692,840

The revenue information above is based on the
location of the customers.

(b) Non-current assets

EARAE R TIRERF T

Z b [ 1 5E
(b) FikBIEE

2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000

—E—-_"F —ZT—F

TF#&T FETT

Hong Kong BB 169,250 150,814
Mainland China AR B K BE 3,276,857 3,137,421
3,446,107 3,288,235

The non-current asset information above is based
on the location of assets and excludes financial
instruments.

No customer accounted for 10% or more of the
Group's total revenue for the years ended 31 March
2012 and 2011.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ 76 3 25 Bff 33

31 March 2012 —E——F=8=+—H

5. REVENUE 5.

Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents
gross restaurant and food business income and net
invoiced value of goods sold, net of relevant business
tax and allowances for trade discounts; income from the
rendering of hotel and other services; proceeds from the
sale of properties; and gross rental income received and
receivable during the year.

W =

WaBIHERAKB 22X 15
FREERRMEFRABBENRD
EERBERFEBMBEEEHLE
SRR  TRYOB E R E AR 2
WA HEYE W N WAz HE
B WA MR N R U BR K

An analysis of revenue is as follows: WA :
Group
7. 3. |
2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E—_fF —E——fF
F#T FHETT
Income from the hotel, BIEBERRRER
restaurant and food A
businesses 621,958 579,683
Gross rental income HE WAL 68,469 58,840
Proceeds from the sale of HEYFE W=
properties 482,342 54,317
1,172,769 692,840
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ #6532 Bt 5%

31 March 2012 —ZE——F=HA=+—H
PROFIT BEFORE TAX 6. BRI F
The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after AEEBRBANEFE MBS (5
charging/(crediting): A
Group
*5H
2012 2011
Notes HK$'000 HK$°000
—E——F =—ET—F
Bt 5 FET FHET
Cost of inventories sold and EEFERERHERE 2
services provided B AN 697,751 398,758
Depreciation e 14 40,735 39,438
Recognition of prepaid land NI EERE
lease payment R 16 404 385
Lease payments under FRTHEEFLE
operating leases for land and HAHMES
buildings:
Minimum lease payments =EHE 26,787 25,335
Contingent rents AES 1,520 1,765
28,307 27,100
Auditors’ remuneration 1% BRI % B 2,923 2,790
Employee benefit expense EERAFHxX
(excluding directors’ (TBEENMEsZ
remuneration (note 8))*: BEEME) -
Wages and salaries TERE= 104,507 92,625
Equity-settled share option UARE 73 45 5 0O B IR e
expense 53 1,319 368
Pension scheme R8I
contributions (defined ($5 7E tH3XEHE)
contribution scheme) 8,967 8,405
114,793 101,398

TAK SING ALLIANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED iE X & &



6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX (continued)

The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ 76 3 25 Bff 33

31 March 2012 —E——F=8=+—H

6. FRMAEH (&)

AEBBRBADENE MR, (5

charging/(crediting): (continued) A (88)
Group
r- 3 .|
2012 2011
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
—E--F —ZET—%F
b= FHET FAT
Foreign exchange differences, EHZEZBFE
net 5,606 10,346
Impairment of trade debtors JE WO B 27 2,154 6,539
Fair value loss on financial BAFEIERR
assets at fair value through RERFPREZSR
profit or loss, net BEATERD FHE 26 71
Fair value loss on derivative PTETEREZ RFEBD
instruments — transactions — ¥R AN
not qualifying as hedges 11,085 2,927
Changes in fair value of KREMEZRAVFEEE
investment properties, net R 15 (91,335) (98,874)
Gross rental income e ARz (68,469) (58,840)
Direct operating expenses REMERSRAZ
(including repairs and BEELETH
maintenance) arising on (BREEERRE)
rental-earning investment
properties 1,800 1,910
(66,669) (56,930)
Bank interest income RITH B WA (2,683) (981)
Interest income from an H b W R 2 A B A
other receivable (137) (686)
Dividend income from A E Eh ARG
available-for-sale listed RERSWA
equity investment (22,224) (17,779)
Gain on disposal of an HERHIFERE 2 W
available-for-sale investment - (6)
Loss/(gain) on disposal of HEYE - HE &K E
items of property, plant and (W), E5#E
equipment 214 (3,620)
Gain on deregistration of Bt BB A B S R 1 2 e
subsidiaries 38 - (22,735)

W Inclusive of an amount of HK$74,733,000 (2011:
HK$71,316,000) classified under cost of inventories sold and

services provided.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ #6 #R 25 Bt 23

31 March 2012 —ZE—=—F=F=+—H

FINANCE COSTS 7. MBRAX
Group
r 3 .|
2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E—_F =—ZT—F
FTET FET
Interest in respect of: ISR
Bank loans, overdrafts RITER - BEIR
and other loans wholly ARAFAREKE
repayable within five years BHEEZEMER
or on demand 42,640 27,510
Bank loans not wholly RITERTERAEFR
repayable within five years /m\%ﬂﬁ}_« 10,540 5,220
Finance leases &M A - 4
Total interest expense on FEBEBERRIEATAE
financial liabilities not at fair TEzeRAaEZ
value through profit or loss FERX B 53,180 32,734
Less: Interest capitalised B B ARMEAE (10,554) (877)
42,626 31,857

TAK SING ALLIANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED iE X & &
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ 76 3 25 Bff 33

31 March 2012 —E——F=8=+—H

8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant
to the Rules Governing the Listing of the Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing
Rules”) and Section 161 of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, is as follows:

EFMe

BEESHALSHAR DG ZS
EHBA(TETRA]) REBRQAR]
EOIE161IEIEBEEEMEOT :

Group

x5KHE
2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
Fi#ExT FETT
Fees e 300 300

Other emoluments: HMEE :

Salaries and allowances e KoERL 7,130 8,169
Bonuses paid and payable* BT R ERTEAL* 5,290 7,949
Equity-settled share option expense  ARMEERKES 366 116
Pension scheme contributions RIR A FRET S 157 178
12,943 16,412
13,243 16,712
= Certain executive directors of the Company are entitled to @ ARARRTESAIEB ZIEARKH

bonus payments which are approved by the Remuneration
Committee with reference to the Group's current year profit
and individual performance.

In the prior year, certain directors were granted share
options, in respect of their services to the Group, under
the share option scheme of the Company, further
details of which are set out in note 36 to the financial
statements. The fair value of such options which has
been recognised in the income statement over the
vesting period, was determined as at the date of grant
and the amount included in the financial statements
for the current year is included in the above directors’
remuneration disclosures.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ 76 3k 25 Bt 33

8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued)

(a) Independent non-executive directors

The fees paid to independent non-executive

directors during the year were as follows:

31 March 2012 —ZE—=—F=F=+—H

8. EFM& (&)

(a) BIAFMITESE

REREENBILEATESRR
oy U

Fees
HK$'000
e
THET

2012 —Z—_F
Mr. Lo Ming Chi, Charles BT EE 100
Mr. Lo Man Kit, Sam EXfERE 100
Mr. Wong See King =RBLAE 100
300
Fees
HK$'000
s
THET

2011 —E——5F
Mr. Lo Ming Chi, Charles B EE 100
Mr. Lo Man Kit, Sam EXfERE 100
Mr. Wong See King mRBEE 100
300

There were no other emoluments payable to the
independent non-executive directors during the

year (2011: Nil).

AREVEENBILIFATE

SZHMME (2T ——%F:
)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ 76 3 25 Bff 33

31 March 2012 —E——F=8=+—H

8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued)

(b) Executive directors

8. EFM& (&)

(b) RITEERFRITES

Equity-
Bonuses settled Pension
Salaries and paid and  share option scheme Total
Fees  allowances payable expense contributions remuneration
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EftR NRHEE ke
i HRRAM BHTEL BR#ExH HE®R HeRR
TR TR TR T T TR
2012 Zg-C
Executive directors: H1ES:
Mr. Ma Kai Cheung SNELE - 2,350 1,831 - 52 4233
Mr. Ma Kai Yum BARKLE - 1,648 1,831 - 31 3510
Mr. Ng Yan Kwong REREE - 1,699 1,017 183 50 2,949
Mr. Ma Hung Ming, John ShrE - 661 611 183 12 1467
Mr. Yuen Wai Man REXEE - m - - 12 784
- 7,130 5,290 366 157 12,943
2011 3--%
Executive directors: HTES:
Mr. Ma Kai Cheung SNBLE - 2272 2,150 - 5 4474
Mr. Ma Kai Yum SNdEE - 1,963 2,150 - 5 4,165
Mr. Ng Yan Kwong REREE - 1,693 1333 58 50 3,134
Mr. Ma Hung Ming, John SEHrE - 1,484 2316 58 12 3,870
M. Yuen Wai Man REXTE - 757 - - 12 769
= 8,169 7,949 116 178 16,412

There was no arrangement under which a director
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the

year.

9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES’

REMUNERATION

The five highest paid employees of the Group during
the years ended 31 March 2012 and 2011 were also the
executive directors of the Company, details of whose
remuneration are set out in note 8 above.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ 76 3k 25 Bt 33

10. INCOME TAX

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate
of 16.5% (2011: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable
profits arising in Hong Kong during the year. Taxes
on profits assessable in Mainland China have been
calculated at the rates of tax prevailing in Mainland
China.

31 March 2012 —ZE—=—F=F=+—H

10. FRr 1818

EBNERDIBEFERNRRE D
ZAHET R & M R T E16.5%5T
B(ZZE——%F:165%) FEKX
P & 2R Bl A1 < FRIR T AR 5 AR B K
P 2 IRITRRGTE B

Group
*x%KH
2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
—=E—_F —EF——%F
FET FET
Group: NEH:
Current — Hong Kong BVER— & H
Charge for the year RNEZHIE 720 701
Current — Mainland China B Ef — A B K B
CIT TEMBH 46,989 27,753
LAT T IE(E R 13,001 —
Underprovision in prior years ART S R EE - 4,031
Deferred tax (note 32) BIER A (M15E32) 15,418 16,361
Total tax charge for the year REZHEBIAX L 76,128 48,846
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ 76 3 25 Bff 33

31 March 2012 —E——F=8=+—H

10. INCOME TAX (continued) 10. R 81 (&)

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit
before tax at the statutory rate for the jurisdiction in
which the Company and the majority of its subsidiaries
is domiciled to the tax expense at the effective tax
rate, and a reconciliation of the applicable rate (i.e.,
the statutory tax rate) to the effective tax rate, are as

T8 75 32 i 1 Rk PR R DA B /i AR AR
BAEMERFAE UARBREE
Z [t 8 A 7 2 5 1M it A & B 5% A T
Mz BB R EBRA R WA
BENEHER (MREEREK) BE
MR ZLE T

follows:
Group
x50
2012 2011
—E-_% —E——F
HK$'000 % HK$'000 %
FHET AT
Profit before tax B 50 Al A 232,392 224,250
Tax at the Hong Kong statutory RE & AT R Kt &
tax rate LB 38,345 16.5 37,001 16.5
Higher tax rate of specific HEEEENREZ
provinces in Mainland China Bx 15,306 6.6 6,059 2.7
Adjustments in respect of REFENEHRHE
current tax of previous RE
periods - - 4,031 1.8
Profits and losses attributable  FE{REE S N A1 B F &
to associates BB 179 0.1 (12,327) (5.5)
Income not subject to tax DA 2 WA (5,098) (2.2) (13,990) (6.2)
Expenses not deductible for tax  FA{EF{E
R<ER 21,554 9.3 17,613 7.9
LAT TiIEEM 10,698 4.6 - -
Tax losses utilised from previous B EIFEBALM 2
periods HEER (5,224) (2.3) (3,722) (1.7)
Tax losses not recognised AERZBHEBE 368 0.2 14,181 6.3
Tax charge at the Group's BRAEEERB X
effective rate B HERY 76,128 32.8 48,846 21.8
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11.

12.

13.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ 76 3k 25 Bt 33

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF
THE PARENT

The consolidated profit attributable to owners of the
parent for the year ended 31 March 2012 includes a
loss of HK$8,312,000 (2011: profit of HK$29,241,000)
which has been dealt with in the financial statements of
the Company (note 37(b)).

31 March 2012 —E——F=8=+—H

M. BAFREBARERR

BE_ZET—_—F=-A=+—RHI*F
B BRAREEAEBLESRFE
¥EE 188,312,000 T (& — —
£:29,241,0008 T M) - 2 R
ARBFEREP AREE (M

37(b)) °

DIVIDEND 12. 2
2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
“E——fF _—_T——F
THET FHET

Proposed final — HK4 cents (2011: BE AR -—SRE BRI

HK2 cents) per ordinary share —E——F:5RIBW) 45,777 22,882

The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to
the approval of the Company’s shareholders at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
PARENT

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on
the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity
holders of the parent, and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares of 1,144,373,967 (2011:
1,144,122,328) in issue during the year.

The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based
on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity
holders of the parent. The weighted average number of
ordinary shares used in the calculation is the number of
ordinary shares in issue during the year, as used in the
basic earnings per share calculation, and the weighted
average number of ordinary shares assumed to have
been issued at no consideration on the deemed exercise
of all share options into ordinary shares.

AERZEZRBBREAFTARAA]
BERREGEARZRRBFEAS £

B o
13. BARREKERAAEGS
RxEF

EREABRIDIBREAFESA
RIEBEREREE ABGERNRF
NEBTEAEKR ZMEFHH
1,144,373,967T (=& — — F:
1,144,122,328% )5t & -

BERESAENIREANFEF AR
EERERE ANBEENGTE -
A E BT ERA 2 BN S
AR EERERBRNMAEAZA
FEHRTEBREE  ARBERK
BROESEBRZESHEETN
BITH BB N8
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ 76 3 25 Bff 33

31 March 2012 —E——F=8=+—H

13. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE

13. BAFHERERBT AELS

TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE BRRF (&)
PARENT (continued)
The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share BREABMNKBERAMNGEE
are based on: JiNE
2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$°000
—E-—F —T——F
THET FHET
Earnings 2%
Profit attributable to ordinary RARFAEEREREFZ
equity holders of the parent, BAREBRERE A
used in the basic earnings per JFEAG 5 A
share calculation 113,105 163,209
Number of shares
B & E
2012 2011
—2-F —E——F
Shares Bin
Weighted average number of FRARANTEER
ordinary shares in issue during EREM B E#T
the year used in the basic earnings per LB N
share calculation 1,144,373,967 1,144,122,328

Effect of dilution — weighted average
number of ordinary shares:
Share options

m ANNUAL REPORT 2012 ¥k

WE P E-LRK
PIREFHE -
g

13,983,900 15,291,270

1,158,357,867  1,159,413,598




14. PROPERTY,

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Bff&¥Rhs&

31 March 2012 —E——F=8=+—H

14. X - BERRIG

P

Group XEMH
Furniture,
Hotel Land and Leasehold Plant and fixtures and Motor  Construction
properties buildings  improvements machinery  equipment vehicles in progress Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
g BER R RE
AENE THREF nERE B R E1] ERIE A8
TR TAL TAT TEr TAL TAT TEr TEL
31 March 2012 ZZ-Z§=ZB=+-H
At 1 April 2011 RZE——%MA—A:
Cost or valuation BRRAESLEE 385,423 83,704 99,736 27,624 74,503 18,934 1,234 691,158
Accumulated depreciation ZHFERRE
and impairment (34,128) (23,539) (91,468) (7,646) (54,307) (11,384) = (222,472)
Net carrying amount FEFE 351,295 60,165 8,268 19,978 20,196 7,550 1,234 468,686
At 1 April 2011, net of RZE-—F@A-B"
accumulated depreciation BB 2 TERAE
and impairment 351,295 60,165 8,268 19,978 20,196 7,550 1,234 468,686
Additions RE 2,214 4,874 3,644 541 3,307 10,078 18,439 43,097
Depreciation provided during R #7% A& (Hiz6)
the year (note 6) (11,260) (4,278) (11,535) (2,449) (8,106) (3,107) - (40,735)
Disposals LE - - - (45) (197) (507) - (749)
Reclassification/Transfers BHAE/ 8% - 4,983 14,720 - - - (19,703) -
Exchange realignment ERA% 12,404 1,612 197 335 640 281 30 15,499
At 31 March 2012, net of RZZ—Z%
accumulated depreciation =A=t+-A"
and impairment BB 25478 A fE 354,653 67,356 15,294 18,360 15,840 14,295 = 485,798
At 31 March 2012: i S
=A=+-R:
Cost or valuation BRRAESLEE 401,382 95,323 121,633 28,671 79,706 28,654 - 755,369
Accumulated depreciation ZHTERRE
and impairment (46,729) (27,967) (106,339) (10,311) (63,866) (14,359) = (269,571)
Net carrying amount FEFE 354,653 67,356 15,294 18,360 15,840 14,295 - 485,798
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(continued)

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ 76 3 25 Bff 33

31 March 2012 —E——F=8=+—H

14.9R - BERSME (&)

Group XEMH
Furniture,
Hotel Land and Leasehold Plant and fixtures and Motor Construction
properties buildings improvements  machinery  equipment vehicles in progress Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
8 BER  BAKE
EENE  THREF MEREE L 13 R 1] ERIE #a
THAL FHL TAL THL FHL TAL THL FHEL
31 March 2011 —2—%=A=+-A
At 1 April 2010: RZE2-Z4MA-R:
Cost or valuation BRAEL(EE 326,627 78,806 90,788 23,901 68,784 17,49 2,050 608,452
Accumulated depreciation ZEIHTERAE
and impairment (22,927) (20,662) (75,048) (5,332) (44,894) (9,997) - (178,860)
Net carrying amount EHFE 303,700 58,144 15,740 18,569 23,890 7,499 2,050 429,592
At 1 April 2010, net of RZE-Z4MWA-R"
accumulated depreciation BGRRHATERAE
and impairment 303,700 58,144 15,740 18,569 23,890 7,499 2,050 429,592
Additions HE 44,477 - 5,209 3,441 3,762 2,431 6,877 66,197
Depreciation provided during £ R#7 & &5 (Hi3E6)
the year (note 6) (10,030) (3,502) (13,113) (2,292) (8,261) (2,240) - (39,438)
Disposals heE - (3,648) - (109) (38) (405) = (4,200)
Transfers E - 7,755 - - - = (7,755) -
Exchange realignment EXAR 13,148 1,416 432 369 843 265 62 16,535
At 31 March 2011, net of RZB——%
accumulated depreciation EfEr=F"
and impairment BB 25 7E RAE 351,295 60,165 8,268 19,978 20,196 7,550 1,234 468,686
At 31 March 2011: RZE-——%
EfIE =
Cost or valuation BRAERIEE 385,423 83,704 99,736 27,624 74,503 18,934 1,234 691,158
Accumulated depreciation ZEHTERAE
and impairment (34,128) (23,539) (91,468) (7,646) (54,307) (11,384) - (222,472)
Net carrying amount EHFE 351,295 60,165 8,268 19,978 20,196 7,550 1,234 468,686
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B 76 3R 25 Bft 5

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(continued)

Certain of the Group's leasehold land and buildings
were revalued at 31 March 1995, by independent
professionally qualified valuers at an open market value
based on their existing use. Since 1995, no further
valuations of the Group’s leasehold land and buildings
have been carried out, as the Group has relied upon the
exemption, granted under the transitional provisions in
paragraph 80A of HKAS 16, from the requirement to
carry out further revaluations of its property, plant and
equipment which were stated at valuation at that time.

Had these leasehold land and buildings been carried
at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses, their total carrying amount
would have been approximately HK$1,453,000 (2011:
HK$1,556,000).

At 31 March 2012, certain of the Group's
property, plant and equipment with a net carrying
amount of approximately HK$382,611,000 (2011:
HK$380,192,000) were pledged to secure general
banking facilities granted to the Group (note 43).

The analysis of the cost/valuation of the Group’s land
and buildings and hotel properties by geographical
location and lease term is as follows:

N\

ol

31 March 2012 —E——F=8=+—H

14.ME -BER®RM (&)

BYEXGEMEEREARZE
EHEFERHBAELHEREFR
—hWhAhARAFE=A=+—HZA MM
BEETHE -BE—NLNLAT A5H
ZHETHREFTESEH - BE
LEER - SEEREBSFTMA
SRR EBGTEREI6HRP S
S8OAER 2 #BE &K T B H#E 1T T B
B -B%BRTERYEELH
NEF 2 BB -

WAEBKEGHz2HBEL W RETF
LKA ERZAITEZEEARK:
@R H BB FE 4 A1,453,00078 7T
—Z——4%:1,556,000/&7C) °

RZE——F=A=+—HB K&
B 5 BR ) {E49382,611,000/8 7T
t:%—"—¢-3&rmzoom%ﬁ)z
ETYE  BERERFEERR LA
B—RRIIBITIEE (MFE43) ©

AEERMEMNEEFHE O 2L
3} A8 T NOB 5 ) 3 B9 PR AN B 3k fil
BEofrmT:

Group
r. 3. |
2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
—e-—=% —T_—%
Medium term leasehold land and REEHEZ TR
buildings situated in Hong Kong, BFP ALY
at 1995 valuation E-—hhAFHE 23,991 23,991
Medium term leasehold land and AR B K BE 2 3 &%
buildings situated in Mainland BFHEBEL B AE
China, at cost 71,332 59,713
Medium term hotel properties B AR B K B 2 OB T ) 2
situated in Mainland China, at cost FREFFR A IR AN E 401,382 385,423
496,705 469,127
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ 76 3 25 Bff 33

31 March 2012 —E——F=8=+—H

The Group's investment properties, of which
HK$1,256,923,000 (2011: HK$1,181,857,000) are
held under medium term leases and HK$189,974,000
(2011: HK$164,339,000) under long term leases, were
revalued on 31 March 2012 by Vigers Appraisal &
Consulting Limited, independent professionally qualified
valuers, at open market value, based on their existing
use. The investment properties are leased to third
parties under operating leases, further summary details
of which are included in note 41(a) to the financial
statements.

At 31 March 2012, the Group’'s investment
properties with a value of HK$1,120,392,000 (2011:
HK$1,146,102,000) were pledged to secure general
banking facilities granted to the Group (note 43).

Further particulars of the Group's investment properties
are included on pages 190 to 192.
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15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 15. REME
Group
*5EH
2012 2011
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
—E—_—_F _—_ZT——%F
Bt 52 FTET FET
Carrying amount at beginning R FE¥ZEREE "
of year, at valuation ZhE 1,346,196 1,238,598
Addition (from acquisition) NE(BEBEBRE) 947 -
Net gain from fair value BRAFEARZFRF
adjustments 6 91,335 98,874
Exchange realignment ME 5, 38 B 8,419 8,724
Carrying amount at 31 March, WR=ZA=+—HZ
at valuation FREE - =EE 1,446,897 1,346,196
Analysis by geographical B E 5 -
location:
Hong Kong BB 119,510 104,134
Mainland China EICIPN 1,327,387 1,242,062
1,446,897 1,346,196

By BXEGEMBSHTEENHE
MERARIERAEEAGCEES
HAEBE 2 EHARRBEANKEY
¥ R_ZET——F=ZA=+—HHW
NETEDBIAE1,256,923,000/% 7T
(ZZ&——%:1,181,857,000/%& 7T )
5% 189,974,000 T (—FE——F:
#5164,339,0008 7T) - EMHET)
EREHERTE=F #FHEEH
7 B 75 3R 45 BT 5241 (a) A ©

R—_E——F=A=+—BKmA
#181,120,392,0008 70 (ZE——
£ :1,146,102,000/ 7T ) IR B ¥
XEEEH EAXEEME—K
IRITIEE 2 &R (Mi5E43) ©

ARBZBRENIARETHIINSE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ 76 3k 25 Bt 33

31 March 2012 —ZE—=—F=F=+—H

16. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENT 16. Attt A EREA
Group
*5EH
2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E—_—_F _—_ZT——%F
TERT FET
Carrying amount at beginning of year R E ¥ EREE 13,700 13,546
Recognised during the year (note 6) R F AR (M 7£6) (404) (385)
Exchange realignment ME 5, 58 & 484 539
Carrying amount at 31 March —A=+—HBEEE 13,780 13,700

17.

Current portion included in debtors,  BNHA &R & 35 72 JE W BR 7K -

deposits and prepayments BReERBNREBEZA (408) (394)
Non-current portion 3 BN EA FB 17 13,372 13,306
The leasehold land is situated in Mainland China and is HETHHUAFBBELNFE LRF
held under a medium term lease. B A B o
GOODWILL 17. 58
Group EEHE

HK$'000
TFET

At 1 April 2010, 31 March 2011,

R-F—ZFFMA—B"

1 April 2011 and 31 March 2012: —E——%=RA=+—8"

—TZ——FmWA—HBXK
—E——F#=ZA=+—8:

Cost DN 45,062
Accumulated release upon sale of HEDERVFEZRTEL

developed properties (1,288)
Accumulated impairment 25 RE (3,663)
Net carrying amount BREVFE 40,111

TAK SING ALLIANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED iE X & & m
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31 March 2012 —E——F=8=+—H

17. GOODWILL (continued)

Impairment testing of goodwill

Goodwill acquired through business combinations has
been allocated to the following cash-generating units,
for impairment testing:

o Restaurant, food and hotel cash-generating unit;
and

e Property investment and development cash-
generating unit.

Restaurant, food and hotel cash-generating
unit

The recoverable amount of the restaurant, food and
hotel cash-generating unit has been determined based
on a value in use calculation using cash flow projections
based on financial budgets covering a five-year period
approved by senior management. The discount rate
applied to the cash flow projections is 7% (2011:
6%) and cash flows beyond the five-year period are
extrapolated using a growth rate of 4% (2011: 4%)
which is the same as the long term average growth rate
of the industry.

Property investment and development cash-
generating unit

The recoverable amount of the property investment and
development cash-generating unit has been determined
based on a value in use calculation using cash flow
projections based on financial budgets covering the
expected development project period approved by
senior management. The discount rate applied to the
cash flow projections is 13% (2011: 13%).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ 76 3k 25 Bt 33

17. GOODWILL (continued)

Impairment testing of goodwill (continued)

Property investment and development cash-
generating unit (continued)

The carrying amount of goodwill allocated to each of
the cash-generating unit is as follows:

(=

31 March 2012 —E——F=8=+—H

17. 88 (&)
BHEIREIR (B

WRRERBRASELEN
(%)

BEZEEE I KRGE—ERSE
HEEBRMT:

Restaurant, Property investment

food and hotel and development Total

AR -RRREE PRERRER aH
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
“®-"F T Z9-"F _T——-F Z9-"F _T——F
HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TET TET THT

Carrying amount of ~ HEZEHEE

goodwill 8,721 8,721 31,390 31,390 40,111 40,111

Key assumptions were used in the value in use
calculation of the restaurant, food and hotel cash-
generating unit and the property investment and
development cash-generating unit for 31 March 2012
and 31 March 2011. The following describes each key
assumption on which management has based its cash
flow projections to undertake impairment testing of
goodwill:

Budgeted gross margins — The basis used to determine
the value assigned to the budgeted gross margins
is the average gross margins achieved in the year
immediately before the budget year, increased for
expected efficiency improvements and expected market
development.

Discount rates — The discount rates used are before tax
and reflect specific risks relating to the relevant units.

HE—_ET——F=ZA=+—HKZ
Z——F=ZA=+—HBEE - ’RH
MBERcEEEM WELER
BRI\ ESCEASFEU 2 FREAR
EFRAETEERR -EBERKH
IR &R = T8 R 177 2R E R B PT
KEZEEERK:

BEEREN -REEEAEER
ENFEEEECERE REER
BEFEERN—FREZFHERE
M WERFBERRE RFEHH
BERRMELERAES -

PR —PER 2RI SRR
AR RRERBEVEEZFE
Bzt o

TAK SING ALLIANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED # i & m
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31 March 2012 —E——F=8=+—H

18. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

18. HthEER B E

Group
X5EH
HK$'000
FETT
31 March 2012 RnR-E=E——_f£=H=1+—H
Cost at 1 April 2011 and RZZE——FHA—HK
31 March 2012, —E——#=A=+—H
net of accumulated amortisation LA R REHEE S F R 399,732
At 31 March 2012: W—E——F#=ZA=+—8:
Cost BN 533,559
Accumulated amortisation REtE o (133,827)
Net carrying amount FREFE 399,732
31 March 2011 Rn-E——F=H=1+—H
Cost and net carrying amount R-ZZE—ZTFMA—H
at 1 April 2010 B A K BR T B 533,559
Cost at 1 April 2010 —E-ZTFHA-—HZHER 533,559
Amortisation provided RERNZE D>
during the year* (133,827)
At 31 March 2011 RZE——F=A=+—H 399,732
At 31 March 2011 and at R-_E——F=A=+—8BK
1 April 2011: —E——FMmMA—H
Cost BN 533,559
Accumulated amortisation Rit# D (133,827)
Net carrying amount FREFE 399,732
& As further described in note 2.4 to the financial statements, e TERAPAMEEAIHNAE BIEE D

the amortisation has been included in properties under

development as land cost.
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31 March 2012 —E——F=H=+—H
19. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 19. HEAF#ER
Company
. /N1
2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E—_F —T——
FET FHETT
Unlisted shares, at cost LTS KA E 61,990 61,990
Due from subsidiaries JE U B B8 X B FRIB 1,844,064 1,785,988
Due to subsidiaries RN NGIE S (359,425) (273,980)

1,546,629 1,573,998

Impairment? VERIEN (19,347) (19,347)

1,527,282 1,554,651

# An impairment was recognised for certain amounts due from 8 HRETHEARRBEAFHEZEIE
subsidiaries with a total carrying amount of HK$137,396,000 HIEEAR A TAIEE - A& T EIK
(2011: HK$137,396,000) because certain subsidiaries have MEBARREZAKRAEBECERZR
suffered losses over the years and the amounts are considered B/4137,396,0008 0 (=T —— 4 :
as not recoverable. There was no change in the impairment 137,396,000 7t ) - R F N EREE 2
account during the year. In the prior year, the movement in BEREEE -REF HEZSHAE
impairment of HK$13,879,000 represented the additional 13,879,000 7T * KRR AT A ERE 2
amounts considered as not recoverable. FRIEIE I

TAK SING ALLIANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED iE X & & m
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31 March 2012 —E——F=8=+—H

19. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

The amounts due from/to the subsidiaries are
unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed terms of
repayment.

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company
are as follows:

Nominal value

19.MELFR#ER (&)

JE W % FE A< it /BB 2 B 2 SRR = K
o AETRB N B E R R

TENBRBNFBAT

Place of of issued Percentage of
incorporation/ ordinary/ equity interest
registration and Class of equity registered attributable to Principal
Name operations interest held share capital the Company activities
s/ BRfTEE/ FoEEERNE
& HREE R P IR A #REx [:R:]:4 FERH
2012 201
- —E—-—%
Amica Properties Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary shares HK$10,000 100 100 Property investment
SEMEXERAA &R LRk 10,0007 ESIE
Carrianna (BVI) Ltd.* British Virgin Islands/  Ordinary shares US$1 100 100 Investment holding
Hong Kong
ABRANE/EE  EER 1% RE2RK
Carrianna (Chiu Chow) Hong Kong Ordinary shares HK$8,000,000 73 73 Restaurant operations
Restaurant Limited*
EEH (M) B &5 BRIk 8,000,000% T REEE
ERAR
Carrianna Chinese Food Hong Kong Ordinary shares HK$900,000 89 89 Investment holding
(Hong Kong) Limited
EEfARM (BE) BB ERR 900,000 ¢ RALZK
BRRA
Carrianna Holdings Limited  Hong Kong/ Ordinary shares HK$25,000,000 100 100 Property investment
Mainland China and development
EEFEEARAA Bk /mEARE LRk 25,000,000 0 ESE YT
Carrianna (Shenzhen) PRC/Mainland China  Registered capital HK$80,000,000 100 100 Investment holding
Investment Co., Ltd.*( and property
development
EERH (R & E hE KK AMER 80,000,000 REERR
N VESE
China East International Hong Kong Ordinary shares HK$1,000,000 72 72 Investment holding

Materials City Limited
ZRARNHNERRA BB

LER 1,000,000/ 7T

m ANNUAL REPORT 2012 ¥k
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BA#&#h Btz

N\

31 March 2012 —E——F=8=+—H

19.MEBLTER (&)

Nominal value

Place of of issued Percentage of
incorporation/ ordinary/ equity interest
registrationand  Class of equity registered attributable to Principal
Name operations interest held share capital the Company activities
s/ BRTEE/ FoEEERNE
& HRREE R B IR A EREE [:}:]:4 FERE
2012 2011
—E-"f _T—-F
Crown Tech Investments Hong Kong Ordinary shares HK$ 1 100 100 Investment holding
Limited
EERABRAR i LER 127 REER
Earn Fame Group Limited*  British Virgin Islands/  Ordinary shares US$1 100 100 Investment holding
Hong Kong
AEEEERAT LBRAER/EE  BBR 1% RE2RK
Elite Brave Development British Virgin Islands/ ~ Ordinary shares US$1 100 100 Investment holding
Limited* Hong Kong
REXRARAR" EBRAEE/ER  LER Er RERR
Goldfield Properties Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares HK$2 100 100 Property investment
FEEXARAA i LaER BT ESE
Huge Moral International  British Virgin Islands/  Ordinary shares US$1 100 100 Investment holding
Limited* Hong Kong
AEARARAT ABRAEE/ER  LER E RERR
Kunming Carrianna PRC/Mainland China  Registered capital HK$12,000,000 60 60 Restaurant operations
Chaozhou Restaurant
Ltd +e
EHERHANEE PEARE AfEA 12,000,000 7T RELE
ﬁ NG
Tak Sing Alliance Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary shares HK$200 100 100 Property investment
Non-voting deferred HK$ 1,000,000 - -
shares
&R BAR 20087 VESIE
ERFRELRD 1,000,000% 7T
Tak Sing (Panyu) Fashion ~ PRC/Mainland China ~ Registered capital HK$51,000,000 100 100 Property investment
Company Limited?
ENTEARKERRTO hEAE A EA 51,000,000 7T VS

TAK SING ALLIANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED # i & E
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31 March 2012 —E——F=8=+—H

19. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

P

19.MELFER (&)

Nominal value
Place of of issued Percentage of
incorporation/ ordinary/ equity interest
registrationand  Class of equity registered attributable to Principal
Name operations interest held share capital the Company activities
301y ERfTEE/ FOREGERE
E1 EMRESHE FrisRERR EREx aalt TERE
2012 2011
g% -3--%
EEM (B X PRC/Mainland China  Registered capital RMB14,700,000 100 100 Hotel and restaurant
AR AR*x0 operations
HEAE A EA AR%14,700,0007T BERREES
REEEHEHBMRAF® PRC/Mainland China  Registered capital RMB1,000,000 70 70 Restaurant operations
EARE AEA AR%1,000,0007T RELE
REGENBEER PRC/Mainland China  Registered capital RMB3,000,000 53 53 Restaurant operations
EKE(Z\\E #(Q)
REAE A EA A& #3,000,0007 REEE
RMIEEPERER PRC/Mainland China  Registered capital RMBS,000,000 100 100 Restaurant operations
ARAR
EAE AR AR%5,000,0007 REMLE
SEEEFRRERAA®  PRC/Mainland China  Registered capital RMB13,000,000 55 55 Food business
REAE AfEA AR #13,000,0007C RmiE
aFEEMEREEEE  PRCOMainland China  Registered capital RMB100,000,000 80 80  Hotel operations
ARAR
HEAE A EA AR%100,000,0007 BEGE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ 7% 3R &5 Bff 5
31 March 2012 —ZE——F=HA=+—H
19. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 19. BELFRHES (&)
Nominal value
Place of of issued Percentage of
incorporation/ ordinary/ equity interest
registration and Class of equity registered attributable to Principal

Name operations interest held share capital the Company activities

301y ERfTEE/ FOREGERE

£1 EMRESHE FrisRERR EREx aak ITERE

2012 2011
“E--f -F--%&

Carrianna (Hunan) PRC/Mainland China  Registered capital RMB400,000,000 84.1 725 Property investment
Enterprise Co., Ltd. and development
("Hunan Carrianna")t

E2H () EX N HMER AR %400,000,0007C NERERER
ARAT
(REEzH]) @

ZREREHMAAFEE  PROMainland China  Registered capital US$36,000,000 n 72 Property investment
(BEH)BRAAO and development

MEKKE &R 36,000,000% 7T NEREREE
ITREERREEER PRC/Mainland China  Registered capital RMB12,000,000 75 75 Restaurant operations
BRARH
YN HER AR %12,000,0007 RELE
FIEEFHRERAA®  PRC/Mainland China  Registered capital RMB6,000,000 68 68 Restaurant operations
REAE AfEA AK%6,000,0007C RELE

* Direct subsidiaries of the Company & ARREEWBRA A

**  55% of equity interest is directly attributable to the Company KA REEFESS%RERES

# The statutory financial statements of these companies were not f &R KR MBI E g5t

audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another member firm Rl 28 1%
of the Ernst & Young global network

M Wholly-foreign-owned enterprises O HNEEAERE

@ Sino-foreign joint venture companies @ FINEBERE

e Domestic enterprises @ NEDE

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company KEEZSWER NEMIAHS

which, in the opinion of the directors, principally RARFEXERSERFERND

affected the results for the year or formed a substantial FEIHERKAEBREEFENEE

portion of the net assets of the Group. To give details of o 1n Y BT BB A B i & (R B 5F 51 H

other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, B AR ER S HERB

result in particulars of excessive length. It e

TAK SING ALLIANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED # i &
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31 March 2012 —E——F=8=+—H

20. INVESTMENT IN A JOINTLY- 20. R EHEFZEFIERE
CONTROLLED ENTITY

Group
*xKE
2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E—_"F = —==4F
FTHET FAET
Share of net assets BIEEEFE 1,790 1,790
Amount due to the J& < FE [F) 1% i 2 B8 3R
jointly-controlled entity (612) (612)
Provision for impairment ERIRC ] (1,178) (1,178)
The balance with the jointly-controlled entity is W?W%UE”%EI’W( RAEEA R
unsecured, interest-free and is not repayable within one +ﬂ HARRE B REFT —
year from the end of the reporting period. EWE}&
Particulars of the jointly-controlled entity are as follows: HEZEHIEB 2FBROT:
Percentage of
Business Place of Ownership Voting Profit Principal
Name structure registration interest power sharing activity
i FERAEEFSL
28 £33N i i 3th B 3 BERE FHAE EXH
Chengdu Carrianna Corporate PRC 51 50 51 Dormant
Chaozhou
Restaurant Co., Ltd.
P #B 2 1 NG I TRER
HNEE AR AR
The investment in the jointly-controlled entity is AARIEZEHEE LREHERE-

indirectly held by the Company.
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31 March 2012 —ZE——F=A=+—H
21. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 21. BELXFER
Group
x5EH
2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E—_-F =—Z£—
TFHET FAET

Share of net assets i EEFE 71,556 72,643

Due from associates JE W Bse & R B RR X 199,589 158,977

Due to associates JE -1 ot & Bl BR X (3,990) (3,778)

267,155 227,842

Provision for impairment B B (10,628) (10,628)

256,527 217,214
The amounts due from/to associates are unsecured, BN SE BB 2 A BRI B R RS 3R
interest-free and have no fixed terms of repayment. B REER THANERERE
BE AR -
Particulars of the principal associate are as follows: FEBERRIFBRT:
Percentage of
Particulars of equity interest
issued Business Place of attributable Principal
Name shares held structure incorporation to the Group activities
2012 2011
RERE FREEGRE
£4 ] RHEEBTRF R R A 3 Bl TERH
—E-_F —FT——

South China International Ordinary shares Corporate Hong Kong 50 50  Property investment
Purchasing Exchange of HK$1 each and development
Centre Limited? (unlisted)

EZRERREI ST Lk NG B NERERER
BRAR FRIBT

(L)
# Not audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another member . HAZ KSR MEBBAAIN N E S
firm of the Ernst & Young global network. Rl 2% o

TAK SING ALLIANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED # X & m
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31 March 2012 —E——F=8=+—H

21. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

The above table lists the associate of the Group which,
in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the
results for the year or formed a substantial portion of
the net assets of the Group. To give details of other
associates would, in the opinion of the directors, result
in particulars of excessive length. All associates were
indirectly held by the Company.

The following table illustrates the summarised financial
information of the Group’s associates extracted from
their management accounts at the end of the reporting

P

21. B BAFIHEE (&)

i

D]]

KEFENER U LHHIAEE
WA AT AT B EAEERNA
T B R AN A R
E BB AR 0 R
5 £ fth 5 51 H B B A R B
K AR S BERBRITE - Fa B
BAT AR TRERE -

THAREEARFER A N E
LSRBIEERBABIUMBEER:

period:
2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E—"%F —i——i
Assets 520,530 505,050
Liabilities (382,304) (364,650)
Revenue = - _
Profit/(loss) ax,/ (EHE) (2,174) 149,425

22. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENT

22. ffHHERS

Group

F5KEH
2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E2—--F _f——¢

Listed equity investment
in Hong Kong, at fair value

During the year, the gross loss in respect of the
Group's available-for-sale listed equity investment
recognised in other comprehensive income amounted to
HK$186,683,000 (2011: HK$80,007,000).

m ANNUAL REPORT 2012 ¥R

NEL ETERAKRE

933,415 1,120,098

RAFE AEBESRAIFEHE
MR E 2 #EE51HE 5186,683,000
BLX(ZE——FFWHEA:
80,007,000/ )  WE R EMEE
W N FER -



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ #6535k & Btz %

22. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENT

(continued)

The above investment in an equity security was
designated as available-for-sale financial asset and has
no fixed maturity date or coupon rate.

The fair value of this listed equity investment is based
on its quoted market price.

At 31 March 2012, the carrying amount of the Group's
interest in this listed equity investment classified as
available-for-sale investment exceeded 10% of the total
assets of the Group.

Particulars of

31 March 2012 —E——F=8=+—H

22. AfHHERE (&)

FHBAEFESFREREESARLE
TREELREBRTEIHBEXEER

ZETMRESREZAFEERER
FATHI% Z B8

RZE——F=ZA=+—H K&
B EBARNEEI0%ZREEY
FTTRARE DEAAHLOER
& o

Percentage of
equity interest

issued Business Place of attributable Principal
Name shares held structure incorporation to the Group activities
2012 2011
RERR FREEERE
& RHEEBTRF B i A Bl TEEH
“E—C-f —T——&
China South City Holdings ~ Ordinary shares of Corporate Hong Kong 14.85 14.85  Property development
Limited HK$0.01 each and management
and hotel services
EEWRERBBAR Lk NG B NEERRER
FHR0.01BT REEES

TAK SING ALLIANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED # X & m
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31 March 2012 —E——F=8=+—H

23.

24,

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

23.

BOFEIIERRIREPEE
ZEMBE

Group
x5EH
2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
—_=E—_F —E——%F
TERT FAET
Unlisted investments, at fair value FELEMEE  BATE 9,411 497
Less: Current portion B - BN ER (493) -
Non-current portion JEBNHA 8,918 497

The above investments at 31 March 2012 and 2011
were, upon initial recognition, designated by the Group
as financial assets as at fair value through profit or
loss as they are managed and their performance are
evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a
documented risk management and investment strategy,
and information about the investments is provided on
that basis to the Group's key management personnel.

The fair values of the above investments were based on
the market prices provided by financial institutions at
the end of the reporting period.

At 31 March 2012, all of the Group's above
investments were pledged to secure banking facilities
granted to the Group (note 43).

OTHER RECEIVABLE

The prior year balance represented an unlisted
investment classified as loans and receivables, and was
stated at amortised cost, calculated using the effective
interest rate method. At 31 March 2011, the unlisted
investment was pledged to secure banking facilities
granted to the Group (note 43).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ #6535k & Btz %

The Group’s properties under development were
located in Mainland China.

Included in the Group's properties under development
as at 31 March 2012 were land use rights with
an aggregate carrying amount of approximately
HK$566,284,000 (2011: HK$618,601,000) held under
medium term leases.

At 31 March 2012, the Group's properties under
development with a value of HK$593,192,000 (2011:
HK$417,349,000) were pledged to secure general
banking facilities granted to the Group (note 43).

Further particulars of the Group’s major properties
under development are included on pages 198 to 199.

31 March 2012 —ZE——F=A=+—H
25. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT 25. BRI E

Group

x&EME
2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E—_f —T——F
FTET FET
At beginning of year NG| 1,159,930 1,006,797
Additions NE 321,583 332,732
Transfer to properties held for sale EREZHIEFECME (161,681) (207,957)
Exchange realignment b 3, 58 B 32,140 28,358
At 31 March R=ZA=+—H 1,351,972 1,159,930
Current portion Bl EA 360,888 209,926
Non-current portion JEBNHEA 991,084 950,004
1,351,972 1,159,930

AREEZERTPHELNTEX

BE o

AEEBR-_ZE——FE=A=+—H
BERPUWERNHERL CEEES
566,284,000 L (=& — — & :
618,601,000/ 7T ) LA /R BR 78 49 %
ﬁo

R-—_ZE——F=A=+—H K&
E{8{&E593,192,0008 L (=T ——
% :417,349,000) 2 B R ¥ ¥ 1E
AASEER —RBTEE KIS
(KFs¥43) »

HMAEB ZERPYEFBHR
F198E £199H -
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31 March 2012 —E——F=8=+—H

26. INVENTORIES 26. F &
Group
*x%KH
2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E--F Z—ET—F
TFHET FAT
Finished goods X an 3,364 3,304
Food and beverages B o &R 48,215 45,875
51,579 49,179

27.

DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND
PREPAYMENTS

Included in the balance is an amount of HK$62,180,000
(2011: HK$42,510,000) representing the trade debtors

27. BERIER -ReR A RR

EE B 162,180,000 T (=&
——%:42,510,000/8 7T ) BAEH

of the Group. ZEWE Z R -
Group
&M
2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E--F —T——F
THET FET
Trade debtors & W E 5 BR 5K 80,756 58,557
Impairment RIE (18,576) (16,047)
62,180 42,510
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27. DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND

PREPAYMENTS (continued)

An aged analysis of such debtors as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the invoice date and net of
provision, is as follows:

31 March 2012 —E——F=8=+—H

27. BIGIEH - ZREe R AT RIA

(#&)

RBEMR BRESERRILEER
BEINORE < BRiik 2 DT IR T

Group

F5E
2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-——F —ZT——F
FTHET FET
Current to 30 days BlH £30H 33,331 10,346
31 to 60 days 31£60H 5,014 5,016
61 to 90 days 61290H 4,611 3,292
Over 90 days @90 H 19,224 23,856
62,180 42,510

Credit terms

For hotel, restaurant and food business, the Group's
trading terms with its customer are mainly on cash
and credit card settlements. For property sales, credit
terms vary in accordance with the terms of the sale and
purchase agreements. All trade debtors are recognised
and carried at their original invoiced amounts less
impairment of debtors which is recorded when the
collection of the full amount is no longer probable. Bad
debts are written off as incurred.

In view of the aforementioned and the fact that
the Group's trade debtors relate to a large number
of diversified customers, there is no significant
concentration of credit risk. The Group does not hold
any collateral or other credit enhancements over these
balances. Trade debtors are non-interest-bearing.

ERBE

BE EEMRBER SEHER
BERXG—BABRSRARERAER
EMELEZEEBRRUNRKEE
BEARMERE BWESKERIIIR
HREZSHENRE REREEH
Ys B B 35K T 14 22 1 LA B SRR 1L 1% T
RBEEHK - FERAINELR T UE

ZRALANEE SERKES
BRI RABERZBRUER
BREEANGEERRET B5E
W REFHE -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ 76 3 25 Bf 33

31 March 2012 —E——F=8=+—H

27. DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND 27.

PREPAYMENTS (continued)

The movements in the provision for impairment of trade
debtors are as follows:

BUER HeRkFAfFRER

(#&)

KTESRWERZ REREGZE
ECNE

Group

*5E
2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E—-F —IT—F
FET FHET
At beginning of year NE) 16,047 13,339
Impairment losses recognised (note 6) JREEEE R (KiE6) 2,154 6,539
Amount written off as uncollectible BR 1~ B2 iz = it BR - (4,370)
Impairment loss reversed B (B 5 18 [o] (142) -
Exchange realignment M 53 B 517 539
At 31 March R=RA=+—H 18,576 16,047

Included in the above provision for impairment of trade
debtors is a provision for individually impaired trade
debtors of HK$18,576,000 (2011: HK$16,047,000) with
a carrying amount before provision of HK$20,365,000
(2011: HK$16,613,000). Such provision was determined
after taking into account the ageing of any impact on
individual debtors’ balances, the creditworthiness of the
debtors, the repayment history and historical write-off
experience.

The aged analysis of the trade debtors that are not
considered to be impaired is as follows:

FMBFRKE SRR ZBERE
FEEERNEREREKE SRR
Ve ~ B 4518,576,0008 L (=&
— — % :16,047,0008 7T) % & &
U BR 3% 2 BR E 1B 420,365,000/ 7T

—E——1%:16,613,000& 1) °
IBEZETIREBAEEM@BIER
FEUER SRERBL - BRURER R 2 12 AT
B BRLBRBAEMBRELCHR ¥
288 o

RIBIEERE 2 YR IR 8 S 7
mT

Group

x&KEME
2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E——f -3 —&
FET FAET
Neither past due nor impaired RiEHA s R IB B 34,204 10,196
Less than 1 month past due — & A M A 5,563 5,236
1 to 3 months past due mE—=={EA 3,644 3,621
Over 3 months past due %0 HA R 38 = (& A 16,980 22,891
60,391 41,944
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27.

28.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ 76 3k 25 Bt 33

31 March 2012 —ZE——F=A=+—H
DEBTORS, DEPOSITS AND 27. BIGIEH - ZREe R AT RIA
PREPAYMENTS (continued) (&)
Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired A8 HA Sk R IBE 2 U BR 508 oK
relate to a large number of diversified customers for EEREzEPRERIFLH-
whom there was no recent history of default.
Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate BEEHERBECEWEERTE
to a number of independent customers that have RZZEAEERSRIFERLE
a good track record with the Group. Based on past ZEBURF - REBBELR  KAA
experience, the directors of the Company are of the EERA ARFEBME ARG
opinion that no provision for impairment is necessary BEEXRUWARBAEEREH BZSE
in respect of these balances as there has not been a DA B B e - B AR UL
significant change in credit quality and the balances are A {R] R (B B o AN SR B 0 MR B X
still considered fully recoverable. EESFEAWER G EMER
ERAZRE:
DUE FROM A DIRECTOR 28. Bl —RES
Particulars of amount due from a director, disclosed BB A BEOIE161B1K - U — &
pursuant to Section 161B of the Hong Kong Companies BEEZHBRT:
Ordinance, are as follows:
Group xEMH
Maximum
amount
outstanding
31 March during 1 April
2012 the year 2011
—E-CF FARS —E——F
Name ] =R=+—H RRE mA—H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET TET
Mr. Ma Hung Ming, John BBk & - 2,049 652

The amount due from a director was unsecured,
interest-free and had no fixed terms of repayment.

R —REFZRAREER T
at B Ko S ] E R SR

TAK SING ALLIANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED # X &
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ 76 3 25 Bf 33

31 March 2012 —E——F=8=+—H

29. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND

29. Bl - B&@FHRERCEH

PLEDGED DEPOSITS EMER
Group Company
50 . 3|
2012 2011 2012 2011
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-—-% —T——§ Z2--F —2——F
P & FT#T FHET FTH#T FHET
Cash and bank balances R& MIBT4ERF 302,194 205,949 109 133
Time deposits EMER 57,713 43,243 - 44
359,907 249,192 109 177
Less: Pledged time B BREETER
deposits for long Bz 8
term bank loans 73 (23,771) (18,524 - -
Pledged time R—RRIRIT
deposits for BRIk EH
general banking RITER
facilities and short Bz
term bank loans EHFR (13,766) (2,044) - (44)
Restricted cash BERFIRE (a) (17,170) (7,018) - -
Cash and cash RekBHeEEEH
equivalents 305,200 221,606 109 133
Note: B &

(a)

According to relevant contracts, property development
companies of the Group are required to place at designated
bank accounts certain amounts as deposits for potential default
in payment of mortgage loans advanced to property purchasers.
Such guarantee deposits will only be released either after the
property ownership certificate is submitted to the banks as
collateral or when the property purchasers have repaid the full
mortgage loans to the banks.
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29.

30.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ 76 3k 25 Bt 33

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND
PLEDGED DEPOSITS (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and
bank balances (including time deposits) of the
Group denominated in Renminbi amounted to
HK$244,631,000 (2011: HK$144,761,000). The
Renminbi is not freely convertible into other currencies,
however, under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement,
Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations,
the Group is permitted to exchange Renminbi for other
currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign
exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on
daily bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are
made for varying periods of between one day and three
months depending on the immediate cash requirements
of the Group, and earn interest at the respective short
term time deposit rates. The bank balances and pledged

31 March 2012 —ZE—=—F=F=+—H

29. Bl - B&@FHREARCEH
ERMER (8)

E’\iﬁiﬁﬂﬂi AEFBzReRES

BET(BREHER)EARE
E(U\E%J)Ffﬁu R

244,631,000 L (T ——F:
144,761,000 7t) - AR ¥ Kee B
HEBRAEMEE BREFEA
th 2 SNE B SHE G R AL TE - S IE K
NEEBKIBEANRTAERE
BETFRTHEBZRITEABRAR
BEHMER-

RITMSMEZ M B Tz E A RIT
TFRHFRZFENEME - FEHAE
PERZHBETI— NF—HE=
BATE TERFAKEZHIHE
Be®dK TRTIRNERERF
HERERF B - R17 4577 R IR 17

deposits are deposited with creditworthy banks with no FHRAEERIFBIEHSFELNR
recent history of default. B2 AT o
TRADE CREDITORS 30. EFI R ZIRER
An aged analysis of trade creditors as at the end of REEBRR BENESERILER
the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as BEIZRRE DT :
follows:
Group
*EME
2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$°000
—_E—_"F —E——fF
THET FHET
Current to 30 days BlH Z30H 97,564 23,885
31 to 60 days 31260H 9,557 14,111
61 to 90 days 61£290H 11,483 14,721
Over 90 days #8890 H 12,008 22,490
130,612 75,207

Trade creditors are non-interest-bearing and repayable
within the normal operating cycle.

ENE SRR/ TEAFNERREE
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31. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ 75 %R 25 Fff =3

31 March 2012 —E——F=8=+—H

1. R ZHRITREMER

BORROWINGS
31 March 2012 31 March 2011
—2--#=A=+-H —ET-——%=fA=t-8
Effective Effective
interest interest
Group rate (%) Maturity HK$'000 rate (%)  Maturity HK$'000
*5H EREfNE IHA TELT EBEBREMNE  IHA THET
Current
EDRA
Bank overdrafts — secured - - - 5.3 On demand 50
BITEX-HER bl
Bank loan - secured 1.9-8.5 by March 2013 270,843 1.9-7.3 by March 2012 259,522
BOER-BHR —Z2-Z%Zh “E-——#=f
Current portion of long
term bank loans - secured 1.2-8.5 by March 2013 284,232 1.1-7.5 by March 2012 188,783
PHFETRAER-—FER ~2-=%=R —T-_%=R
Other loans - unsecured - - - 7.0 by March 2012 2,727
Hi &R —miEH —T-Z%=R
Long term bank loans repayable on
demand - secured (note) 2.1-83 Ondemand 6,584 2.1-75 On demand 89,998
EXRERBOIRAER
—BHEA () BB bl
561,659 541,080
Non-current
JEEDRA
Bank loans - secured 1.2-6.9 2013 -2025 553,125 1.1-58 2012 -2025 369,424
ROTER-—BHER “2-Z§F &%
k- ek §-2 ZTZHF
Other loans - unsecured 8.5 by December 49,104 - - -
2013
Hi & — | A —2-=%+ZH
602,229 369,424
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31. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER

BORROWINGS (continued)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS BA#& ¥k Bt

N\

31 March 2012 —E——F=8=+—H

1. MR ZRBITREMER (&)

Note: The Group's term loans with an aggregate carrying amount

of HK$19,322,000 (2011: HK$172,350,000) containing on-
demand clauses have been classified in total as current
liabilities. Accordingly, a portion of those term loans due for
repayment after one year with an aggregate carrying amount
of HK$6,584,000 (2011: HK$89,998,000) has been reclassified
as current liabilities. For the purpose of the above analysis, the
loans are included within current interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings and analysed into bank loans repayable within
one year or on demand.

Based on the maturity terms of the loans, the amounts
repayable in respect of these term loans are: within one year
or on demand HK$12,738,000 (2011: HK$82,352,000); in
the second year HK$4,984,000 (2011: HK$35,844,000); and
in the third to fifth years, inclusive HK$1,600,000 (2011:
HK$54,154,000).

B & -

Group
*xKE
2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E——f -—T &
FET FAET
Analysed into: G
Bank overdrafts repayable within RITEXERA—F AKX
one year or on demand EXRFEE - 50
Bank loans repayable: RITEFERE
Within one year or on —F A ERE
demand (note) R (M5) 561,659 538,303
In the second year F_F 185,852 125,320
In the third to fifth years, F=FEFHF
inclusive (BERMEBEEN) 252,409 231,065
Beyond five years AFELE 114,864 13,039
1,114,784 907,727
Other borrowings repayable: BARUATHREAEEZ
HEH:
Within one year or on demand R—FARAHEKREEE - 2,727
In the second year F_F 49,104 -
49,104 2,727
1,163,888 910,504

AEBBELE —BARKREERER
BENBEARBABRZERBRNE
M A19,322,0008 7L (=T ——4F:
172,350,000/ L) B It 5 31D 2
ERAEFER—FERIMZIEES
B 48 56,584,0008 L (—F ——
£ : 89,998,000/ 7T ) JFE M EF R LE
ERBAE - RIENA LB ZEER
EaEE—FRkABERE 2 e
BRITEREMERA -

BEERINBER EEESED
Bl A — % Wk B Ef12,738,0007% 7T
(ZZT——4%:82,352,000/7T) : &
— 4,984,000 (T ——4F:
35,844,000 7T) i E=ZhF (HRE
HEBIEAERN)1,600,0008 7T (—F
——%:54,154,000/ 7T )

TAK SING ALLIANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED ## X % m
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31. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER

BORROWINGS (continued)

Included in the current portion of long term bank
loans of HK$284,232,000 (2011: HK$188,783,000)
was a loan of approximately HK$75,258,000 (2011:
HK$89,556,000) that was classified as a current liability
in its entirety as a result of non-compliance with certain
financial covenants as set out in the relevant banking
facility agreement entered into with a bank. Despite
the non-compliance, the banking facility was renewed
in similar terms and conditions on 31 March 2012.
Further, the Group has made all previously scheduled
repayments on time and no request for early repayment
was made by the bank up to the date of these financial
statements.

Included in the Group's interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings as at 31 March 2012 are borrowings
with a carrying amount of HK$532,347,000 (2011:
HK$313,684,000) which are denominated in Renminbi.
The remaining interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings are denominated in Hong Kong dollars.

Certain of the Group’s interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings were secured by the pledge of certain of
the Group’s assets as further detailed in note 43 to the
financial statements.

At 31 March 2011, certain directors of the Company
had guaranteed certain of the Group’s banking facilities
up to an amount of HK$31,000,000.
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31.

HRZBITREMER (&)

s ABEAREIE 70284,232,0007 7T
— T ——4% 188,783,000/ 7T)
¥ — I8 475,258,000 T (=&
— — 4 : 89,556,000/ 7T ) B B 2 F
WEERE THBITRE R HH
PHREZYLMBEARDEE -HER
EEEBERETUHERY RITOHR
—E——_F=B=+—HEHET
REEEGRR -MAEBNANESIE
BEEERMEBZAPEREA I
WARERITERIRATER

RZE——F EEBWE ZET
N EAE A REE A532,347,000
BT (ZF ——1F:313,684,000/%
TIZERUAREKAEBER Hit
MEZIRITREMERIAEE SR
Z’So

REBEETHEZRITREMER
DAEHARREE TEERER
ABER TR E43A -

RZE——F=A=+—H ' &Q
AN ESAEAEENHETE
REBE R ERE 231,000,000
7T|:0



32. DEFERRED TAX

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B 75 R <5 Bt =3

31 March 2012 —ZF——4

32.;REREA

The movements in deferred tax during the year are as

AEEEERA BBOT

B=+—H

follows:
Deferred tax liabilities BERFER
Group *5%
2012
—g-C
Depreciation Fair value
allowance in adjustments
excess of arising from
related  acquisition of Revaluation
depreciation subsidiaries of properties Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ERERE
BAERHAE NEEEZ
HRERRE AFERE NRER #t
TER TER TER TER
At 1 April 2011 RZZ-—%MA—-H 2,063 266,997 148,418 417,478
Deferred tax charged/(credited) REEhaxp
to the income statement during ne/(BitA)2
the year (note 10) BRI (Kar0) 1,116 (3,532) 20,018 17,602
Exchange realignment E X AR - - 707 707
Gross deferred tax liabilities at RZE-Z#=Zf=f+-HZ
31 March 2012 ETHRRBEE 3,179 263,465 169,143 435,781

TAK SING ALLIANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED iE X & & m



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ 763k & Bt 5%

31 March 2012 —E——F=8=+—H

32. DEFERRED TAX (continued) 32.EERIA (&)
Deferred tax assets RIEREETE
Group XEH

2012

Losses available for
offsetting against
future taxable profit

HK$'000
—E——%
AALERKERR
BRIERZER
TH#T
At 1 April 2011 W-ZE——FMA—H 8,634
Deferred tax credited to the income RERBWHFP IR 2 ELEHIE
statement during the year (note 10) (KfsE10) 2,184
Gross deferred tax assets at 31 March 2012 R-_E——F=ZA=+—-HZ
EREMIBEERE 10,818
Deferred tax assets and liabilities at the end of the RBERR EEHEEERAE
reporting period, presented after appropriate offsetting: BT :
HK$'000
FET
Deferred tax liabilities recognised RiRa M ik &
in the consolidated statement of RZBELEFIHEE
financial position 424,969
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ #6 #R 25 Bt 23

31 March 2012 —ZE—=—F=F=+—H

32. DEFERRED TAX (continued) 32.BRERER (&)
Deferred tax liabilities BIERFEH R
Group XEH
2011
—E—F
Depreciation Fair value
allowance in adjustments
excess of arising from
related  acquisition of Revaluation
depreciation subsidiaries  of properties Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
G
BREBNE RAlEEZ
MTrEEHE RYERE MEER L
THT THT THBT THT
t 1 April 2010 RZE-TEMA—-AH 8,946 270,295 120,049 399,290
Deferred tax charged/(credited) AFERERTIR,/
to the income statement during (23t A\) ZEILRA
the year (note 10) (H3E10) 68 (3,298) 20,768 17,538
Reclassification BHNE (6,951) - 6,951 -
Exchange realignment AR - - 650 650
Gross deferred tax liabilities at R=ZT——%
31 March 2011 =RA=t-B2
BRHARKERE 2,063 266,997 148,418 417,478

TAK SING ALLIANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED iE X & & E
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31 March 2012 —E——F=8=+—H

32. DEFERRED TAX (continued) 32.EERIA (&)
Deferred tax assets EERIETE
Group XEH

2011

Losses available for
offsetting against
future taxable profit

HK$'000
—E——%F
A FA LA B 5K 2R FE AR AR
i MK 8 2 B 18
FAET
At 1 April 2010 R-ZZE-—ZFFHHA—H 7,457
Deferred tax credited to the income REFWETRP R ZELETRIE
statement during the year (note 10) (FFzE10) 1,177
Gross deferred tax assets at R-BE——F=A=+—HZ
31 March 2011 BEERIEEERE 8,634
Deferred tax assets and liabilities at the end of the RBEHR EEREBEEERERE
reporting period, presented after appropriate offsetting: BT :
HK$'000
FAET
Deferred tax liabilities recognised RER & B Bk &
in the consolidated statement of RZEERIBEEE
financial position 408,844
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ #6532 Bt 5%

32. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of
HK$138,080,000 (2011: HK$134,482,000) that are
available indefinitely for offsetting against future
taxable profits of the companies in which the losses
arose. The Group also has estimated tax losses
arising in Mainland China of HK$99,230,000 (2011:
HK$116,827,000) that will expire in one to five years
for offsetting against future taxable profits. Deferred
tax assets have not been recognised in respect of these
losses as it is not considered probable that taxable
profits will be available which the tax losses can be
utilised.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a
10% withholding tax is levied on dividends declared
to foreign investors from the foreign investment
enterprises established in Mainland China. The
requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and
applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower
withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax
treaty between Mainland China and jurisdiction of the
foreign investors. For the Group, the applicable rates
are 5% and 10%. The Group is therefore liable for
withholding taxes on dividends distributed by those
subsidiaries established in Mainland China in respect of
earnings generated from 1 January 2008.

At 31 March 2012, no deferred tax has been recognised
for withholding taxes that would be payable on the
unremitted earnings that are subject to withholding
taxes of the Group’s subsidiaries established in
Mainland China. In the opinion of the directors, it
is not probable that these subsidiaries will distribute
such earnings in the foreseeable future. The aggregate
amount of temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries in Mainland China for which
deferred tax liabilities have not been recognised totalled
approximately HK$449,839,000 at 31 March 2012
(2011: HK$203,936,000).

There are no income tax consequences attaching
to the payment of dividends by the Company to its
shareholders.

[ oy

31 March 2012 —E——F=8=+—H

32.;BEMIE (4)

AEEBEREEAEZCHEER
138,080,000 L (=T — —%F:
134,482,000/8 ) " Mt ZEE1E AJ
BRAANEEEARF 2 RKER
Fm M e NREE A B KR
B8 2 T 18 E5 18 4999,230,0007% 7T
—ZE——1%:116,827,000/& 7T )
mtEBENER—FEZERAFAA
LA B 5 BE A B 2 oK 2R FE SR B om A 3K
H-mMNRBRARKRTAIGEEELERH
2R a A AERE N ERBEES
B ARt EEEERELHRE
BE-

BRI (FBETEMEFRE)  FER
MK 2 INERIRIMNEEETIRLZ
A% B B EBUR10%TENT - BRI
EFE_TENF—A—BRER
TEAR -_ZEZ+tF+_A=+—
H&FTE A 2 B o 4o B B35 Hh
KEEMBRZEE 2BEEARBHRB
R4 BRI R SR FE N/ R R o
AEBZHEALEAE5%K%10% &
e ANEEERZERRBEAHAK
MNZHBAR B _EENE— A —
ARELEZABFMD IR KEHR
AR -

R-_E——F=A=+—H K&
B R mh A R B A i Ak a7 B 2B SRS
TEMF 2K B R A 2 AE T &EF
BRENZENM - EERAE %
EMBRARINARARDKZER
FzHETK-R-_TE——_F=AH
—t+—HB RABER KB R F
RS 4 =R XA 449,839,000 STk
THRAAREEHREGBE(ZZ ——
£F 1 203,936,000 7T ) °

AR AR HE PR RR A IR S E A
FTSHIER -
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31 March 2012 —E——F=8=+—H

33. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT 33.&MTETIR
Group XEMH
Liabilities
afR
2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$°000
—E--F —T—F
THER FH&T
Interest rate swap 1) 2 1 5 8,418 669
The Group uses interest rate swap to minimise its REEEFEHAZEELE200,000,0008
exposure to movements in interest rates in relation TT 2 ) 22X 3 DA AR ) 2082 B ¥ —
to one of its floating rate term loans with a nominal HERBEEER ZEE -

amount of HK$200,000,000. Such swap did not meet
the criteria for hedge accounting.

The above derivative was measured at fair value at the NESTET AR BREZA
end of the reporting period and was determined based FEEREREENGTE -

on discounted cash flows model.

34. DEFERRED INCOME 34.EEU A
The deferred income represents cash subsidies received iR E Y AR 2R U B OB BT R
from a government authority in respect of a property —IEYEEEFECREE &
development project in Mainland China. No deferred ZE_T-—_FR-_T——F=H
income was released to the income statement during =+—BLEFE BaRPILEERE
the years ended 31 March 2012 and 2011. FEHIA o
35. SHARE CAPITAL 35. &
Company
b /N
2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$°000
—E-—F —T——F
THET FHET
Authorised: ETE A
2,000,000,000 (2011: BAREE0N08 T2 ERmAR D
2,000,000,000) ordinary shares of 2,000,000,000% (=& ——
HK$0.10 each £ : 2,000,000,0000% ) 200,000 200,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITRBERA:
1,144,422,328 (2011: FAE(E0.10/8 T 2 & A HD
1,144,122,328) ordinary shares of 1,144,422,328/ (= F ——
HK$0.10 each F:1,144,122,3280%) 114,442 114,412

m ANNUAL REPORT 2012 ¥k



35.

36.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ #6532 Bt 5%

SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

During the year, the subscription rights attaching
to 300,000 share options were exercised at the
subscription price of HK$0.3 per share (note 36),
resulting in the issue of 300,000 new ordinary shares
of HK$0.1 each for a total cash consideration of
HK$90,000. An amount of HK$33,000 was transferred
from the share option reserve to share premium account
upon the exercise of the share options.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (the
“Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentives and
rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the
success of the Group’s operations. Eligible participants
of the Scheme include the Company’s directors,
including independent non-executive directors, and
other employees of the Group. The Scheme became
effective on 10 October 2005 and, unless otherwise
cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10 years
from that date.

The maximum number of unexercised share options
currently permitted to be granted under the Scheme
is an amount equivalent, upon their exercise, to 10%
of the shares of the Company in issue at any time.
The maximum number of shares issuable under share
options to each eligible participant in the Scheme
within any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the
shares of the Company in issue at any time. Any further
grant of share options in excess of this limit is subject to
shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

Share options granted to a director are subject to
approval in advance by the independent non-executive
directors of the Company, or to any of their associates,
in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue
at any time or with an aggregate value (based on the
price of the Company's shares at the date of the grant)
in excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period,
are subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a
general meeting.

(=
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ARBIRA —HEBEBHER S ([t
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36. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued) 36. BB H#EsTE (&)

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted
within 28 days from the date of offer. The amount
payable on acceptance of an option is HK$1. The
exercise period of the share options granted is
determinable by the directors.

The exercise price of share options is determinable by
the directors and shall be at least the highest of (i)
the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the offer date,
which must be a business day; (ii) the average closing
price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's
daily quotation sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the offer date; and (iii) the
nominal value of a share.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to
dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meeting.

The following share options were outstanding under the
Scheme during the year:

BREEREE AR28RAEIR
BOEAMBRERFNREAR/E
TeoRTHBEENTRHRESRE

iE °

BREZITEEITHESET &
ARUTRHZERE  (hHRE
ZHH (ZABAREREH) R
PR mERZWTHE: ()R
DREEEZAHMABELEARN
BT E B RERMY ZFHRT
&: RiphmEE-

BARETER TRE ARFERR
BENBRE LER-

EREEAN L8 THARTTEZ
AT

2012 2011
= “3—f
Weighted Weighted
average Number average Number
exercise price of options  exercise price of options

HK$ per share

HK$ per share

mEEsy METH
TR WEENE @ EREHE
BSRET BRET
At beginning of year REA] 0.68 36,300,000 0.59 29,300,000
Granted during the year RERE T - - 1.03 7,000,000
Exercised during the year RERTTE 0.30 (300,000) - -
At 31 March R=ZA=+—H 0.68

36,000,000 0.68

The weighted average share price at the date of
exercise for share options exercised during the year was
HK$0.88 per share and the weighted average closing
price of the Company’s shares immediately before the
exercise date of the share options was HK$0.89 per
share (2011: No share options were exercised).
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36. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share
options outstanding as at the end of the reporting
period are as follows:

2012

Number of options Exercise price*

HKS$ per share

31 March 2012 —E——F=8=+—H
36. AR ()
REmERRERITHEZBREZIT
EERITEBELLT
—E—"F

Exercise period

Mk E®E TERE TR
BRET
21,000,000 0.30 26-10-2005 to 25-10-2015
7,300,000 1.30 18-12-2006 to 17-12-2016
700,000 2.15 24-2-2008 to 23-8-2012
3,000,000 1.03 3-1-2012 to 2-1-2014
1,000,000 1.03 3-1-2013 to 2-1-2015
1,000,000 1.03 3-1-2014 to 2-1-2016
1,000,000 1.03 3-1-2015 to 2-1-2017
1,000,000 1.03 3-1-2016 to 2-1-2018
36,000,000

2011

Number of options Exercise price*

HK$ per share

—ET——F

Exercise period

B ES AR TEE~ 1T EAfE
BRABTT

21,300,000 0.30 26-10-2005 to 25-10-2015

7,300,000 1.30 18-12-2006 to 17-12-2016
700,000 2.15 24-2-2008 to 23-8-2012

3,000,000 1.03 3-1-2012 to 2-1-2014
1,000,000 1.03 3-1-2013 to 2-1-2015
1,000,000 1.03 3-1-2014 to 2-1-2016
1,000,000 1.03 3-1-2015 to 2-1-2017
1,000,000 1.03 3-1-2016 to 2-1-2018

36,300,000

& The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment e BERETEEARBMRNARIET

in case of rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes in the
Company’s share capital.

SR 2 B AR 2 At HE L Y 1 5

o
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36. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

No share options were granted during the year. The fair
value of the share options granted during the prior year
was HK$3,446,000 (HK$0.49 each) of which the Group
recognised a share option expense of HK$484,000
during the year ended 31 March 2011.

The fair value of equity-settled share options granted
during the prior year was estimated as at the date of
grant, using a binomial model, taking into account the
terms and conditions upon which the options were
granted. The following table lists the inputs to the
model used:

36. AR AT E ()

AN FE RN IR T ORE B o A LA AT
FEBEREZ AFEEA3,446,000
BT (BR0498T) R T ——
FZA=Zt+—"HBH AEEHERZE
A% #E R X A484,000/8 7T FEEI
ERTRERE-

RAMEE ETRERE YA
RIS 7 1 > - B b
e fEfh o AT 2511 % — A K
BAER

2011

—m

Dividend yield (%) AR FME FI (%) 2.5
Expected volatility (%) T8 B R 18 (%) 68-79
Historical volatility (%) }”‘_EE}EE 18 (%) 68-79
Risk-free interest rate (%) 9% ) Z (%) 0.956
Expected life of options (year) Eﬁﬂxﬁéﬁxﬁ,ﬁﬂ (%) 3-7
Weighted average share price (HK$ per share) niEFaE (BRET) 1.03

The expected life of the options is based on the
historical data and is not necessarily indicative of the
exercise patterns that may occur. The expected volatility
reflects the assumption that the historical volatility
is indicative of future trends, which may also not
necessarily be the actual outcome.

No other feature of the options granted was
incorporated into the measurement of fair value.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company
had 36,000,000 share options outstanding under the
Scheme. The exercise in full of the outstanding share
options would, under the present capital structure
of the Company, result in the issue of 36,000,000
additional ordinary shares of the Company and
additional share capital of HK$3,600,000 and share
premium of HK$20,905,000 (before issue expenses).

At the date of approval of these financial statements,
the Company had 36,000,000 share options
outstanding under the Scheme, which represented
approximately 3.15% of the Company’s shares in issue
as at that date.
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37. RESERVES 37. G 0®
(a) Group (a) EEHE

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the
movements therein for the current and prior
years are presented in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity on pages 56 to 57 of the
financial statements.

Certain amounts of goodwill arising on the
acquisitions of subsidiaries in prior years remain
eliminated against consolidated reserves, as
explained in note 17 to the financial statements.

The reserve funds of the Group represent the non-
distributable statutory reserves of the Group’s
subsidiaries operating in Mainland China. The
transfers to these reserves are determined by the
board of directors of the subsidiaries in accordance
with the relevant laws and regulations of Mainland
China. The reserve funds can be used to offset

AEBEHEBEFERINEEZ
FERELEEFEHE 2R
B SR E56 257 B 2R A HE
HEHK-

40 BA 7% ¥R 5 MY SE T P L - DA A
F 2 U BT B 1 7] i A& 4 2 &P
DEERBRID A REA HEY

AEBZHEEREERTEA
o B /B8 2 B S BE 0 Ik 2 VA TE X
K-MBRAARIZEZRBRE
RERKEZEAEREBEEZRS
fef i o Ut F R A B R 2R 2 S
Ei%ﬁ%ﬁ%%%%@ﬁz
N

against future losses or to increase the capital of
the subsidiaries.

(b) Company (b) =27
Share Capital Share
premium Contributed redemption option Retained
account surplus reserve reserve profits Total
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
&%
KRARE EnE8 FORE  BREEE RERN as
fisE T TR TR TR iR AR
At 1 April 2010 RZE-%5%
MA-H 1,275,015 59,759 316 6,277 50,512 1,391,879
Profit for the year and total ~ AEERFI R
comprehensive income B2EHA
for the year 11 - - - 484 29,241 29,725
Proposed final dividend BERARE 1 - - - - (22,88)) (22,38))
At31 March2011and ~ RZF——F
1 April 2011 ZRA=T-RR=
&
MA-H 1,275,015 59,759 316 6,761 56,871 1,398,722
Profit/oss) for the year ~ AEEEH /(B8
and total comprehensive ~~ REZEKA/
income/(loss) for the year  (E518) i - - - 1,685 (8,312) (6,627)
Issue of shares upon ERE,
exercise of Share options ~ BR{A %17 93 - - (33) = 60
Proposed final dividend BEAERE 12 - - - - 45,777) 45,777)
At 31 March 2012 WZF--%
ZA=1-H 1,275,108 59,759 316 8,413 2,782 1,346,378

TAK SING ALLIANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED # i & m
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37. RESERVES (continued)

(b) Company (continued)

The contributed surplus of the Company arose as
a result of the Group reorganisation on 12 August
1991 and represented the difference between
the nominal value of the share capital issued by
the Company and the combined net assets of
the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the Group
reorganisation, less the effects of the bonus issue
of shares in previous years.

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda
(as amended), the contributed surplus is
distributable to shareholders under certain specific
circumstances.

The share option reserve comprises the fair value
of share options granted which are yet to be
exercised, as further explained in the accounting
policy for share-based payment transactions in
note 2.4 to the financial statements. The amount
will either be transferred to the share premium
account when the related options are exercised,
or be transferred to retained profits should the
related options expire or be forfeited.

38. DEREGISTRATION OF SUBSIDIARIES

37. f#fm (&)

(b) 2T (&)

ARRMEHBHIIA - —
FANAT-_HENERESEHEME
£ RARFETRANEE
HRBEEESAMKBENONE
REAIMEHEEFENEZER
MEBEFENAREIT

@,
=

REARE—NN\—FQFX
(RERT)  BEHEKRURET
EEBRDIK TR -

BREFEEERLBREAKT
EBRERNTE FEE—
FEN IS IRAK I TE2. 4ABL D
XARHZEARK -ZFR
BMARERBREETERE
BRERMEERINBEEBR
BRI EEERE G
Ao

38. i &8 & i B B 2% 7
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2011
HK$°000
—T——F
FHET
Net assets disposed of: ERBEEFE:
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables BNRIE EE K
H At & WK 3,576
Accruals and other payables JEETE R & Efth RN X (9,770)
Tax payable JE A ¢ 18 (7,634)
Non-controlling interests FETZE IR A (8,698)
(22,526)
Exchange equalisation reserve relating A RE R A
to the subsidiaries reclassified from equity MEREZER
to profit or loss (209)
Gain on deregistration of subsidiaries N NEIE &< Exail ol (22,735)
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39. NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Reconciliation of profit before tax to net cash flows

M2

A=+—H

39. REHRENERMNE

BRI AG N B EXBNRERF

from operating activities: HE 2 $1AR
Group
x%EH
2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
—g—-% —T——4&
FET FH T
Profit before tax B 54 AT 4 A 232,392 224,250
Adjustments for: FER
Bank interest income SRITH B A (2,683) (981)
Interest income from other receivable H i i WS F B R A (137) (686)
Dividend income from available-for-sale AHEE EmRERE
listed investment WA (22,224) (17,779)
Depreciation e 40,735 39,438
Equity-settled share option expense LARR 7 48 B A% 10 R S 7
= 1,685 484
Finance costs P15 ER 42,626 31,857
Fair value loss on financial assets BATEIRzEREE
at fair value through profit or loss, net ZAFEEE 358 26 71
Gain on deregistration of subsidiaries Bt /&8 A m)RUS o s A - (22,735)
Loss/(gain) on disposal of items of property, &% HE K&
plant and equipment RE2EER (W) 214 (3,620)
Gain on disposal of available-for-sale HE—FRHEERE
investment i Al - (6)
Impairment of trade debtors EUWE SRR 2 AFRE 2,154 6,539
Fair value loss on derivative instruments ESMITETEZRE
— transactions not qualifying as hedges 11,085 2,927
Recognition of prepaid land lease payment TEf L ERIA 2 R 404 385
Share of profits and losses of associates FEAG B & A R A1 & 5 18 1,087 (74,712)
Changes in fair value of investment WEMFE L AT EEE -
properties, net FRE (91,335) (98,874)
216,029 86,558
Increase in properties under development EEMEZIE (311,029) (198,028)
Decrease in properties held for sale RIELEWEZRD 141,780 68,361
Increase in inventories FE R (810) (6,689)
Decrease/(increase) in debtors, FEUR R - e R TEW IR
deposits and prepayments WA (1) (35,078) 50,424
Increase in trade creditors JE & 5 BR KA 1L 0 52,793 21,789
Increase in sundry creditors, accruals and HaEMERR - BETER X
deposits received TEUUZR & Y1 AN 31,703 126,488
Decrease in deferred income EIEUW A 2 8 (55,536) (5,541)
Increase in deposits received W ¥ 2 42 0 878 8
Decrease in amounts due to directors JENEE R (8,521) (44,135)
Cash generated from operations KEEBFGB RS 32,209 99,235
Hong Kong profits tax paid BB BT SFH (514) (862)
Mainland China tax paid 25 AR BB K (15,585) (8,838)
Net cash flows from operating activities REEB 2HESMANFEE 16,110 89,535

TAK SING ALLIANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED ## X % m
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40. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 40. X R & F

RB|EMR AEERARF KT
AP BREZHIARABEMT

At the end of the reporting period, contingent liabilities
not provided for in the financial statements were as

follows:
Group Company
F5E r 3/
2012 2011 2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—E—=% -F——4 —B—=§ -F——%
FTHET FH&T FHET FHET
Guarantees given for RESTBEMEL
mortgage loan facilities  RIBEE K
granted to property T E B AR
purchasers 182,930 117,642 - -
Guarantees given for BB A A
banking facilities granted $R1T{ZE
to subsidiaries 1 B FE AR - - 1,530,462 1,466,444
182,930 117,642 1,530,462 1,466,444

41.

The banking facilities granted to subsidiaries subject
to guarantees given by the Company were utilised to
the extent of approximately HK$954,036,000 (2011:
HK$884,149,000).

OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

(a) As lessor

The Group leases its investment properties (note
15) under operating lease arrangements, with
leases negotiated for terms ranging from 1 to
17 years. The terms of the leases generally also
require the tenants to pay security deposits and
provide for periodic rent adjustments according to
the then prevailing market conditions.
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41.

RARIAHBRARERRITEEM
{EHR IR E FEEE #945954,036,000
BT ( ZF — — 4 : 884,149,000/
JL) °

EEHARH
(a) fERHEA

AEERBEEHEERFHE
HEETHREWME (MiE15) &
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41. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 41. EEBHERHE (&)

(continued)

(a) As lessor (continued) (a) EBHBEA (8)
At 31 March 2012, the Group had total future R—_ZE——F=ZA=+—8"
minimum lease receivables under non-cancellable AEERBHEBFETZR T
operating leases with its tenants falling due as HEIHz PRI HSELEHE
follows: FEHENWR X EHSEE
AT
Group
x%H
2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E—_"%F = —==4F
THET FAET
Within one year R—F A 57.884 31,826
In the second to fifth years, RE_ZFRF
inclusive (BREEMF) 106,695 124,237
After five years M E R F 1% 50,174 82,798
214,753 238,861
(b) As lessee (b) EHEHEA

The Group leases certain of its properties AEBERBLELHEZHEA
under operating lease arrangements. Leases ETYE-MEHELEZRE
for properties are negotiated for terms ranging RN F—ZE+F-HE
from 1 to 10 years and rentals are normally ZEE—BEBAEECEES

fixed in accordance with the respective tenancy HEE -

agreements.

TAK SING ALLIANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED = Bk & @ VA
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41. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

(continued)

(b) As lessee (continued)

At 31 March 2012, the Group had total future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases falling due as follows:

P

41. BEHERH ()

(b) EBAEBEA ()

RZE——F=A=+—8"
AEBBRBER T HMIEHZ
O REGEEHEREREAY
Nz &ERASHEEMOT

Group

x5EH
2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E—_—_f —ZT——%F
THET FHE T
Within one year R—FNRN 25,927 27,334

In the second to fifth years, RE_ZFHF

inclusive (BREEEME) 76,380 70,541
After five years RERF % 2,023 22,535
104,330 120,410

The operating leases of certain properties also
called for additional rentals, which would be
based on certain percentage of turnover of the
operations being undertaken therein pursuant
to the terms and conditions as stipulated in
the respective rental agreements. As the future
turnover of these operations could not be
accurately determined as at the end of the
reporting period, the relevant contingent rental has

not been included.
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42. COMMITMENTS

In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed
in note 41(b) above, the Group had the following
commitments at the end of the reporting period:

31 March 2012 —ZE—=—F=F=+—H

42, K iz

RS BR BRI K EE41(0) 2 &
EHEAPEIN REBB A TALE:

Group

¥5H
2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E—_—F —T—F
FHT FHET

Contracted, but not provided for: B AT A ME R AR B

Property, plant and equipment e R 1,703 964
Purchases of land use rights B AL AR 275,753 475,307
Properties under development BERPYE 151,004 391,000
428,460 867,271

In addition, the Group has rights to purchase pre-
determined lots of land in the PRC pursuant legal
binding agreements. The commitment under such legal
binding agreements amounted to RMB225 million
(2011: RMB401 million).

At the end of the reporting period, the Company did
not have any significant commitments.

PRt REB#HAEREEZR N Z2W
FAERETREEELTEN L
HoEEZEEZRRNHBEESER
AR #225,000, 00075(_-—-——-
AR #401,000,0007T) °

RBEBHR AQARIREETME
ANAEHE o
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43. PLEDGE OF ASSETS

a4,

As at the end of the reporting period, certain of the
Group's property, plant and equipment, investment
properties, properties under development, properties
held for sale, time deposits, financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, and an other receivable, with a
total carrying value of approximately HK$2,285,644,000
(2011: HK$1,993,949,000), were pledged to secure
general banking and other facilities granted to the
Group. In addition, rental income generated in respect
of certain investment properties of the Group was
assigned to bankers to secure loan facilities granted to
the Group.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(@) In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere
in these financial statements, the Group had the
following transaction with a related party during

43. REEH

RIRER AEB LB RE@MEY
2,285,644,0008 0 ( =& — — 4 :
1,993,949,0008 7T ) 2 & T ¥ % I
ER&E REYVFE EEDE &
EFRLEYE THER - EAFE
AAERERZEMEEREMEY
HEERE UBRE—REBEFTRE
fEE LN REBEITAZBMNIRE
MEZHEWEEER ULEER
TZIEE-

44. BREATEZ S

(a) BRERCENIHHREEMH T
AR Z 40 N B 8 A R E
AETRFERETTIRS

the year:

2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-——F —ZT—F
FET THETT

Rental paid to a director NHEEE—LES
(note) (B &E) 48 48
Note: The rental paid to a director was determined based HiY & - $ETJ§§7?E%‘\Zfﬁﬁtt%ﬁjﬁ
on mutually agreed rental rate. In the opinion of the §$ﬁ§°§$?gﬁﬂimi%
directors, the above transaction was entered into by the DARERBERBREIL.

Group in the normal course of business.

(7011 ANNUAL REPORT 2012 &R
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44. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

(b)

(i)

(i)

(0)
(i)

Other transactions with related parties:

In the prior years, the Group acquired a
55% equity interest in Hunan Carrianna
(the "Acquisition”) from KC Ma and KY Ma,
the substantial shareholders and executive
directors of the Company. In respect of the
Acquisition, KC Ma and KY Ma have given
an undertaking to indemnify the Group
against monetary losses up to RMB216 million
arising from the failure of Hunan Carrianna
to acquire any portion of the pre-determined
lots of land and Hunan Carrianna’s cost of
acquisition of any portion of these pieces of
land which is higher than the pre-determined
price.

The above transaction also constitutes a
connected transaction as defined in Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

At 31 March 2011, the directors of
the Company had guaranteed certain
of the Group’s banking facilities up to
HK$31,000,000 as further detailed in note 31
to the financial statements.

Outstanding balances with related parties:

Except for an amount due to a director of
HK$30,700,000 (2011: HK$37,522,000) by
the Group which is not repayable within one
year, the remaining balances are unsecured,
interest-free and have no fixed terms of
repayment.

Except for an amount due to a director of
HK$17,578,000 (2011: HK$15,747,000)
by the Company which is not repayable
within one year, the remaining balances are
unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed
terms of repayment.

ol

31 March 2012 —E——F=8=+—H
4. FREATEZ S (8)
by HEMBEBEEEATET IR
5

—
~

(i)

(©)

—~
~

RAE NEERAEKE
CEERERHITES
ENEBEXERENRELE
U B 4R F = AR5 5 % M 5
(TWiEs1E]) - AW E
EE - SNELEERESN
RELERBERBIRARK
216EM ERBEREE
P A R S R A A R R
I 2 - Hb B (E {A) BB 19 K Uk
B ARREERE
HIHB K o

FilxHp £ R RIS
THAEREREBBEA
TG

R-B——F=A=+—
B ARABZEZRR/AR
SEZRITEERHER
PR 7%31,000,0007% 7T -
EREE AN Py s
31

ERAR D 2 REEHEH:

BRALEEEN —RESE
30,700,000/ Tt Z 8 &K
HBR—FIh (=T ——
£ :37,522,000/67T) © &
Bt A% B EIEE I
5 F KA -

BRAAREN —RES
17,578,000/ T4 ( =
T ——4%:15,747,000/8
TC) B AR A ERE
%8 M [E FE S o
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44. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

(0)

Outstanding balances with related parties:
(continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Except for amounts due to non-controlling
shareholders of HK$48,711,000 (2011:
HK$49,126,000) which are not repayable
within one year, the remaining balances are
unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed
terms of repayment.

Details of the amounts due from/to associates
as at the end of the reporting period
are included in note 21 to the financial
statements.

Details of the Group's advance to a director
of the Company are included in note 28 to
the financial statements.

44. BRAEATEZ S (&)

()

ERAR ) 2 REEEHK

£
-
=

(%)

(iii)

(iv)

Br FE 1 JE 4 R OlR K
48,711,000 Tt (=&
— — % :49,126,000/%8
L) ZEFPERE—F
Oh - iR BRI
% B & [E EEKE -

PR &5 HA oK e Uk A~ Bt
ENAIRAFIBEHR I
WEKFE21 ©

AEER—BEZEZEK
HIEEN M B WS M
28 °

Compensation of key management personnel of (d) AEEFEETEAB 2R :
the Group:
2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$°000
—e-"%F —T——F
FHET FHET
Short term employee benefits HHEBRF 13,752 16,931
Post-employment benefits RIKEH 157 178
Equity-settled share option N EE R ERERX
expense 1,360 380
Total compensation paid to key #AEZEIE A 8 2 42 RN
management personnel 15,269 17,489
Further details of directors’ emoluments are REBzEEMEFBEHNA

included in note 8 to the financial statements.
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45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY

31 March 2012 —E——F=8=+—H

45. EEMRNICcEmMTI R

CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of

MIRE—RBENERTARKRE

financial instruments as at the end of the reporting HARH) AR EME -
period are as follows:
2012 —Z—_F
Financial assets ERMEE
Group
*5H
Financial
assets at
fair value
through
profit or loss
designated Available-
as such upon for-sale
initial Loans and financial
recognition  receivables asset Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BROTFETIE
RRRESR = ;4 e
EENEMEE & e B eMEE At
FTERT TERT FTET TET
Due from associates, LG ANGIR
net of impairment ERE - 191,404 - 191,404
Available-for-sale investment ~ AIfiH &R & - - 933,415 933,415
Financial assets at fair value ~ ZRAFENER
through profit or loss RERTREH
TREE 9,411 - - 9,411
Financial assets included FTARKERR
in debtors, deposits and ReRENHBEZ
prepayments SREE - 160,194 - 160,194
Restricted cash BRFRE - 17,170 - 17,170
Pledged time deposits BRTE TS - 37,537 - 37,537
Cash and cash equivalents ~ HE&RREZEEH - 305,200 - 305,200
9,411 711,505 933,415 1,654,331
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45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY

CATEGORY (continued)

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of

P

45. ERARNICEMTI R (&)

NMIRE—REBENERTARKRE

financial instruments as at the end of the reporting HIRHBREE : (48)
period are as follows: (continued)
2012 —E—_f§
Financial liabilities emAaR
Financial
liabilities
at fair value
through Financial
profit or loss liabilities at
- held for amortised
trading cost Total
BROFEE
RIREZH
RBEH LI
eMmAR B&aED
-HENE eEMA R 23]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTéRx TéRx FTET
Due to a jointly-controlled entity R REIFHIE 5
(note 20) (H&F20) - 612 612
Due to associates (note 21) FE 1B & A R
(HtzE21) - 3,990 3,990
Trade creditors ENE SRR - 130,612 130,612
Financial liabilities included in sundry &t A b &+ BR3¢ - &
creditors, accruals and deposits FERREWERS
received ZERAR - 162,490 162,490
Due to directors ERNES - 32,051 32,051
Due to non-controlling shareholders F&1 JE#2 % i 5 - 61,716 61,716
Interest-bearing bank and other FERITREMER
borrowings - 1,163,888 1,163,888
Derivative financial instrument EROTELAR 8,418 - 8,418
8,418 1,555,359 1,563,777
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45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 45. EEMARNCEMI R (&)

CATEGORY (continued)

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of
financial instruments as at the end of the reporting
period are as follows: (continued)

NMIRE—REBENERTARKRE
HRREE: (&)

2011 —E——f
Financial assets SHEE
Group
A&EHE
Financial
assets at
fair value
through
profit or loss
designated Available-
as such upon for-sale
initial Loans and financial
recognition receivables asset Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
wATES &
P8 i=Ftd Exk AHHE 2
RENSHEE JE W B X THEE @it
TEL TAET TEL AT
Due from associates, LG ANGIR
net of impairment B E - 150,792 - 150,792
Available-for-sale investment A fit &K & - - 1,120,098 1,120,098
Other receivable H YR - 11,626 - 11,626
Financial assets at fair value A FEN KRR
through profit or loss RERTEEH
TREE 497 - - 497
Financial assets included AR
in debtors, deposits and RERENFEL
prepayments SREE - 132,492 = 132,492
Due from a director Bh—ES — 652 - 652
Due from non-controlling FEM IR 2R AR R
shareholders - 67,234 - 67,234
Restricted cash ER#IRE - 7,018 — 7,018
Pledged time deposits BEREBRER - 20,568 - 20,568
Cash and cash equivalents ~ BHe&RkEEEEEA - 221,606 - 221,606
497 611,988 1,120,098 1,732,583

TAK SING ALLIANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED iE X & &
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45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY
CATEGORY (continued)

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of
financial instruments as at the end of the reporting
period are as follows: (continued)

A5. BERRNZaMIA (8)

NMIRE—REBENERTARKRE

HRREE: (&)

2011 —E——f
Financial liabilities AR
Financial
liabilities
at fair value
through Financial
profit or loss liabilities at
- held for amortised
trading cost Total
BAFESER
583 i=Etas
BRI A 55
THAE XA ET B Y
—HEHE TEAE B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT FAET
Due to a jointly-controlled entity  JE{ fL [ 42 4 & 62
(note 20) (P7F20) - 612 612
Due to associates (note 21) AN NE]
(PH5E21) - 3,778 3,778
Trade creditors ERTE SRR - 75,207 75,207
Financial liabilities included in SFAEAMEMAERR
sundry creditors, accruals and i ERKRBEY
deposits received BezemAaE - 139,547 139,547
Due to directors ERNES - 39,884 39,884
Due to non-controlling FERTIEIERR R R
shareholders - 60,692 60,692
Interest-bearing bank and other ~ FFBERITREMER
borrowings - 910,504 910,504
Derivative financial instrument SRMITETR 669 — 669
669 1,230,224 1,230,893
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45. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY
CATEGORY (continued)

A5. BERRNCaMIA (&)

NMIRE—RBENERTARKRE
HRmRRmEE: (&)

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of
financial instruments as at the end of the reporting
period are as follows: (continued)

Financial assets SHEE
Company
r. 3/
2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-——F —_ZT——F
T#ET FET
Loans and receivables: EEO I E T
Due from subsidiaries, = NETR
net of impairment EREFEE 1,819,717 1,766,641
Other receivables and deposits HEKREREIZE 99 32
Due from associates JrE Ui Bt = A 3,925 3,930
Pledged time deposits EHE BF R - 44
Cash and cash equivalents RekReFEIEE 109 133
1,823,850 1,770,780
Financial liabilities SHMAaRE
Company
r. 3/
2012 2011
HK$'000 HK$'000
—E-——F —ZT——F
TFET FET
Financial liabilities at amortised cost: AKX ANETEHN SR A E
Due to subsidiaries J& 1~F Bt B 1~ & 359,426 273,980
Financial liabilities included in Eﬁ'?\‘/ﬁ\ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁfﬁ\&
sundry creditors and accruals BEtERzeMAR 1,528 1,092
Due to directors BN ES 23,290 21,677
384,244 296,749
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46. FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY

The Group uses the following hierarchy for determining
and disclosing the fair values of financial instruments:

Level 1:  fair values measured based on quoted prices
(unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities

Level 2:  fair values measured based on valuation
techniques for which all inputs which have a
significant effect on the recorded fair value
are observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3:  fair values measured based on valuation
techniques for which any inputs which have
a significant effect on the recorded fair value
are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs)

Assets measured at fair value:

Group

As at 31 March 2012

46. 2 FERIE

AREBEATIREBEE MKEY

BITAZRFE:

F—EB: RRAFEEXREBERE
BhmiEzHE (REH
E)EAQFE

FEB: REBEHTEAFERF
B M&F[ETEZR
EERZG ABEEEH
By HEEREE

F=ZE: RHEBEBHTEFERF
B M&ZFHETEZE
] & 2 & A BRI IER
EAIBREM S EE (1T
ABRBABE) G

RERLAFEHEA:

FKME

R-E—_—F=ZHA=+—H

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F—B - $=E 2%
FHET FHT FHT FHET
Available-for-sale equity AfthERSE

investment 933,415 - - 933,415

Financial assets at fair value 12 2AFEF|E XA IER
through profit or loss TREZEMEE - 9,411 - 9,411
933,415 9,411 - 942,826
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46. FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY (continued) 46. 2 F{EHRE (B)
Assets measured at fair value: (continued) BERLOFEHEHE: (B)
As at 31 March 2011 RZFE——F=H=+—H
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F—E 5B F=E ek
TEL FTAET TAET TAT
Available-for-sale equity AEEERE
investment 1,120,098 - - 1,120,098
Financial assets at fair value AT ETIRENER
through profit or loss HREZEHEE - 497 - 497
1,120,098 497 - 1,120,595
The movements in fair value measurements in Level 3 RUARIFEE BFEZEz2AV¥EF=E
during the prior year were as follows: S2EAT
2011
HK$'000
—E——%F
FET
Financial assets at fair value through BATEIERBERERF
profit or loss: RIEZEREE:
At beginning of year &4 8,270
Total losses recognised in the income R R KR 2
statement included in other expenses BEBEBEEMS (79)
Disposal & (8,191)
At 31 March R=B=+—8H —~
During the year, there were no transfers of fair value REN BEEBEENEME R
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no F_RBZAVEFAERTERE=
transfers into or out of Level 3 fair value measurements BzAFEFEFEASE L (=
(2011: Nil). T——F &)
The Company did not have any financial assets RZE—Z—F=A=+—HBEZ=ZZE
measured at fair value as at 31 March 2012 and 31 ——F=ZA=+—8B XRAWLR
March 2011. ERMEAFEFEZEREE-

TAK SING ALLIANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED ¥ f% & 179
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46. FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY (continued)

47.

Liability measured at fair value:

Group

As at 31 March 2012

46. 2 F{EHR\ (&)

DAFEAREZAR:
F5KE

R-E—_FZH=1+—H

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

E—E E_R ey =Y ]

FT#T TET FT#T FTHET

Derivative financial instrument £ EIfT4 T A - 8,418 - 8,418
As at 31 March 2011 RZFE——F=HA=+—H

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

£ F_E E=E ]

FET FETT FET FET

Derivative financial instrument £ @74 T A = 669 = 669

The Company did not have any financial liabilities
measured at fair value as at 31 March 2012 and 31
March 2011.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings, and
cash and bank balances. The main purpose of these
financial instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s
operations. The Group has various other financial assets
and liabilities such as trade debtors and trade creditors,
which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial
instruments are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk,
credit risk, liquidity risk and equity price risk. The board
of directors reviews and agrees policies for managing
each of these risks and they are summarised below.

m ANNUAL REPORT 2012 ¥k
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47. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market
interest rates relates primarily to the Group's interest-
bearing bank and other borrowings with floating
interest rates. The effective interest rates and terms
of repayment of the interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings of the Group are disclosed in note 31. The
Group has put in place interest rate swap arrangement
for one of its floating rate term loans to limit the
variability in cash flows attributable to changes in
interest rates. Details of the interest rate swap are
disclosed in note 33.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to
a reasonably possible change in interest rates, with
all other variables held constant, of the Group's
interest expenses (through the impact on floating rate
borrowings). There is no impact on the Group’s equity,
except on the retained profits.

N\

31 March 2012 —ZE—=—F=F=+—H

47. W ERBREEEEREE
(%8)

) 2 B3

AEBEEY 2 HSMNREEE R
ﬁ&ﬁﬁl&&%ﬂ+H%Zﬁ
TREMER - NEEZHBIRT
EEMEMEEZERMNEREE
RARENHI T3 - AREBIAIEE T
ARG —EBRHAFERRAR
RUEMBERS R -MERI]Z
HBENTEREM I3 -

TR R A A B R T
ZHERT AREMABHEEDY
AEBFE T H GEBTBF =
I HE) HARE L RALLEY
2 RBEABS -

Group
x5KHE
Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (decrease)
in basis in interest
points expenses
HK$'000
/m
8~ (D)
& 20F 1 ' FIRXH
FET
2012 —E—_%f
Hong Kong dollar BT 50 5,574
Hong Kong dollar BT 100 11,148
Hong Kong dollar BT (50) (5,574)
Hong Kong dollar BT (100) (11,148)
2011 —E——%F
Hong Kong dollar BT 50 4,541
Hong Kong dollar BT 100 9,082
Hong Kong dollar BT (50) (4,541)
Hong Kong dollar BT (100) (9,082)

TAK SING ALLIANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED # i & m



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ 76 3 25 Bff 33

31 March 2012 —E——F=8=+—H

47. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 47. UERREEARERBEE

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currency risk

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong and Mainland
China with most of the Group’s monetary assets,
liabilities and transactions principally denominated in
Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi, respectively. Majority
of the sales, purchases and expenditure incurred by the
operating units of the Group were denominated in the
units’ functional currency and as a result, the Group
does not anticipate significant transactional currency
exposures. The Group has not used any derivative to
hedge its exposure to foreign currency risk.

Credit risk

The Group has no significant concentration of credit
risk. The credit risk of the Group’s financial assets,
which comprise cash and bank balances, time deposits,
an other receivable, debtors and deposits, amounts
due from a director and non-controlling shareholders,
amounts due from associates, and quoted and
unquoted financial instruments, arises from default of
the counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to
the carrying amounts of these instruments.

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group's
exposure to credit risk arising from trade debtors are
disclosed in note 27 to the financial statements.

Liquidity risk

The Group's policy is to maintain sufficient cash and
cash equivalents and have available funding through
bank and other borrowings to meet its working capital
requirements.
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47. BERBEEEERR R

(%)

47. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued) REREME (F)

TRAXEERBSHRNERME
B LEHNRFTRNREFEN D

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities
as at the end of the reporting period, based on the

contractual undiscounted payments, is as follows: B
Group *5E
2012
—E-C&
Within
1 year or Over
on demand 1 to 5 years 5 years Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—EUTF —-FlE
BREXE EIFUT AFENE @t
THET TET THT THET
Due to a jointly-controlled entity R LR ERHE 612 - - 612
Due to associates FEREE D AR 3,990 - - 3,990
Trade creditors BB 5K 130,612 - - 130,612
Financial liabilities included StARMEMAERR
in sundry creditors, accruals and i ERAR
deposits received BlrezemaR 155,663 5,391 1,436 162,490
Due to directors ERES 1,351 30,700 - 32,051
Due to non-controlling shareholders  FEff FFEZ IR & 13,005 48,711 - 61,716
Interest-bearing bank and other WERTRAMER
borrowings (note) (BsE) 561,659 487,365 114,864 1,163,888
Interest payments on WERTRAMERZ
interest-bearing bank and MEX R
other borrowings 37,338 44,706 5,837 87,881
Derivative financial instrument ERTETA - 8,418 - 8,418
Guarantees given to banks in REEME-—HERT
connection with facilities granted FEMmELER
to property purchasers 182,930 - - 182,930
1,087,160 625,291 122,137 1,834,588
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47. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 47. MERBEEERERBEK
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued) (&)
Liquidity risk (continued) REREmE (F)
The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities THRAERRABNBERARNEHE
as at the end of the reporting period, based on the & AR RFTRMNRGEN D
contractual undiscounted payments, is as follows: B (&)

(continued)

Group XEH
2011
—2——F
Within
1 year or Tto5 Over
on demand years 5 years Total

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—EHT —EE

FRERE  ERFUT BERE Bt

TR TAT TAT TR

Due to a jointly-controlled entity ~ JEfT R A 612 - - 612
Due to associates FENEE N RAIE 3,778 - - 3,778
Trade creditors ENESER 75,207 - - 75,207
Financial liabilities included STARMEMAER

in sundry creditors, accruals and EAEAR

deposits received BlkikezemaRE 133,663 3,573 2,311 139,547
Due to directors ENES 2,362 37,522 - 39,884
Due to non-controlling shareholders ~ FE{ FEZ AR B & 11,566 49,126 - 60,692
Interest-bearing bank and other S RITREMER (M)

borrowings (note) 541,080 356,385 13,039 910,504
Interest payments on WERTREMER L

interest-bearing bank and MEZ R

other borrowings 26,932 51,316 5,765 84,013
Derivative financial instrument ERITETLA - 669 - 669
Guarantees given to banks in REENE-HERTEE

connection with facilities granted M {EH &R

to property purchasers 117,642 - - 117,642

912,842 498,591 21,115 1,432,548
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47. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 47. UERREEARERBEE

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued) (#8)

Liquidity risk (continued) REREME (F)

Note: Included in interest-bearing bank and other borrowings MisE: MEZRITREMERP AR
are term loans with an aggregate carrying amount of H1{E19,322,0008 2 ERBAE
HK$19,322,000 (2011: HK$172,350,000). The loan R(=—ZT——4:172,350,000/8
agreements contain repayment on-demand clauses giving the TL) c ERmE eI —E A E KA
banks the unconditional right to call in the loans at any time RrB G 8 TRITEGMH TR
and therefore, for the purpose of the above maturity profile, RFESRKERET Bt A EERE
the total amount is classified as “on demand”. B R BN R BR R Al o
Notwithstanding the above clause, the directors do not BABNLGER EFRLTTARR
believe that the loans will be called in its entirety within 12 ZHEEF B R12ME A8 A Z K5
months, and they consider that the loans will be repaid in B-BEERURZEERAREE
accordance with the maturity dates as set out in the loan MERIBERE ASEEIE
agreements. This evaluation was made considering: the MBIRRAKRE BELEM BER
financial position of the Group at the date of approval of the REFBBTFTERRZY  WEEDT
financial statements; the Group's compliance with the loan " EELE AEE-—ERKETE
covenants; the lack of events of default, and the fact that the e o
Group has made all previously scheduled repayments on time.

In accordance with the terms of the loans which contain REBEEFRMZEE S —H KL EZRE
repayment on-demand clauses, the maturity profile of those RERERNER  RImEHR - B
loans as at the end of the reporting period, based on the BRARMBANRAERBRREE
contractual undiscounted payments and ignoring the effect of SKENFF B R KB B BB R
any repayment on-demand clauses, is as follows:
Within 1to5
1 year years Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—ENULE
—EYF REEYUTF @i
TET TET TRT
As at 31 March 2012 RZE-—%=A=1+—H 13,722 6,902 20,624
As at 31 March 2011 RZZ-——%=R=1+-H 88,933 101,514 190,447
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OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

The maturity profile of the Company’s financial
liabilities as at the end of the reporting period, based on
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47. BERBEEEERR R

(&)
RENEEmBE ()

TRAXRRARBERARNEHE
B UEHNRFTRNREAEN D

the contractual undiscounted payments, is as follows: B
Company b 3/ |
2012
—E-_&§
Within 1 year 1to5
or on demand years Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—-EUTH —FHLE
REXE REUT #
THET THT THT
Due to subsidiaries FERIBLARNE 359,425 - 359,425
Financial liabilities included in sundry &t AE- At A BRFX -
creditors, accruals and deposits ErEAR
received BElEeceRBE 1,528 - 1,528
Due to directors ENES \ 5,712 17,578 23,290
Guarantees given to banks in connection LB A ERITEE
with facilities e &R
granted to subsidiaries 954,036 - 954,036
1,320,701 17,578 1,338,279
2011
—T——F
Within 1 year or Tto5
on demand years Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
—FATH —FULEE
RERE AENT @
THET T FHET
Due to subsidiaries AN NGIFRE 273,980 - 273,980
Financial liabilities included in sundry T AEMEMEZ
creditors, accruals and deposits EAERR
received BlEezeRER 1,092 - 1,092
Due to directors ENES 5,930 15,747 21,677
Guarantees given to banks in connection KB RIERITEE
with facilities e &R
granted to subsidiaries 884,149 - 884,149
1,165,151 15,747 1,180,898
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might impact on the income statement.

47. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 47. BGRAREEERR B E
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued) (&)
Equity price risk BS {5 &, b=
Equity price risk is the risk that the fair values of equity IR A (B 4% B B 15 B IR R 48 BUK T &
securities decrease as a result of changes in the levels BRI EFBEZEHMEBRKRR
of equity indices and the values of individual securities. BHEIZATFETHRZER R_FT
The Group was exposed to equity price risk arising ——F=A=+—H8 AKEMHA
from equity investments classified as available-for-sale HRARERRRERTIRES AT
investment (note 22) as at 31 March 2012. The Group's ERE (MsF22) RFEHER K
listed equity investments were listed on The Stock SEZEMREDNREERERS
Exchange of Hong Kong (the “Stock Exchange”) and Fr (TS Rz mEME
were valued at quoted market price at the end of the
reporting period.
The market equity index for the Stock Exchange, at the BEXZGACEFEBE RARE
close of business of the nearest trading day in the year HRCEEIRZEY REAFE
to the end of the reporting period, and the respective HElz&E R&ERENOT
highest and lowest points during the year were as
follows:
High/low High/low
during the during the
year ended year ended
31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March
2012 2012 2011 2011
RZ8-Z% R-B——F
=R=+-H =A=+-H
-2-C FHAMA —E--F FEAHA
ZA=+-8 ZE/€& =A=t-A 28/ &
Hong Kong - Hang Seng Index B - BEEH 20,556  24,469/16,170 23528 24,989/18,972
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to —I—%?@ﬂ“\ﬁﬁﬁm%ﬂ%hTm)S‘lﬂi;ﬁr
every 5% change in the fair values of the equity EEMABEZZE T BRERAKR
investment, with all other variables held constant and BERMmERRZEEE SRAKR
before any impact on tax, based on their carrying B2 AVFETSHR%EH 2 B
amounts at the end of the reporting period. For the BoRADHME  AIEHE FHAR
purpose of this analysis, for the listed available-for-sale REE FRASEWE G E A4
equity investment, the impact is deemed to be on the HEREEHREREBNTE M
available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve and no BERHEMMBESARETE RS
account is given for factors such as impairment which ~ZHEE-

TAK SING ALLIANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED # i &
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31 March 2012 —E——F=8=+—H

47. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

47. U ERBREEEEREE

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued) (#8)
Equity price risk (continued) BEEmE (&)
Carrying
amount of Increase/
equity decrease
investment in equity*
HK$'000 HK$'000
BERE
IREE BEB R
FHET FAT
2012 — -5
Investment listed in Hong Kong AEELM2AHES
- available-for-sale (note 22) A& (fifEE22) 933,415 46,671
2011 —T——%F
Investment listed in Hong Kong BEE LMz HEE
— available-for-sale (note 22) A& ARG E (Ffi5E22) 1,120,098 56,005
& Excluding retained profits z T BIEREFH
Capital management BExER

The primary objectives of the Group’'s capital
management are to safeguard the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the dividend payment to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders or
issue new shares. The Group is not subject to any
externally imposed capital requirements except for
the undertaking by the Company under a banking
facilities letter granted to a subsidiary of the Group,
to maintain a minimum consolidated tangible net
worth of HK$1,500,000,000, which has been complied
with during the year. No changes were made in the
objectives, policies or processes for managing capital
during the years ended 31 March 2012 and 31 March
2011.

(1) ANNUAL REPORT 2012 £ 4R

AEEEAEENEERR RiE
RAEEAGHEZRNESN B
HRREMEANL R UAXFHHEE
BEE FRERANRREE-

AEBERBLEEBSINED B
HERNGBUWIEL AR  BHEFR
AEEAER AEB A AERK
FR % B 1A A% BRK [B] B AN 5k 3%
THE -BRARBMAEE 2 —K
BRArRERZRTERMEH®E 22
BIERE N A AR ERES
ABFEEEFE500,000,000%8
TCAN - AN &R B I A ] SNE FE D 2
BRERK - BE-_ZE——FEK_-_F
——F=ZA=Z+—BLEEFEARI
EREAEEENHEBIZE KK
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47.

48.

49.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B/ 76 3k 25 Bt 33

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Capital management (continued)

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio,
which is net debt divided by the total capital plus
net debt. Net debt includes trade creditors, sundry
creditors, accruals and deposits received, amounts due
to directors and non-controlling shareholders, interest-
bearing bank and other borrowings, deposits received
less cash and cash equivalents. Capital represents total
equity. The gearing ratios as at the end of the reporting
periods were as follows:

31 March 2012 —E——F=8=+—H

47. BERBEEEHEFERBE

(&)
BEXER (&)

$E@M§$E% CLREEE AW

ﬂ,§$EFtT%@EE%M
ﬁﬁﬁﬁ@EEZﬂO@%E&%
FERNE ZRR - B ARFN - AT
ERMENRES BNES ENIE
AR M B 2 RIT R EME R
EREMNBERORDEYPIZE BE
RekReEEAE EAKKAE
BARE - RBEEMRERNBFEL X

LU
Group XEH
2012 2011
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
—E—_—_f —ZT——%F
Bt 5 FHET FAT
Trade creditors ETE 5 R 30 130,612 75,207
Sundry creditors, accruals and ~ E M ER R
deposits received B EBRARBRIES 361,226 319,351
Due to directors ERES 32,051 39,884
Due to non-controlling FET FEEAR AR 3R
shareholders \ 61,716 60,692
Interest-bearing bank and Y8 2 RIT R E M E R
other borrowings 1,163,888 910,504
Deposits received TE U BR K 6,827 5,884
Less: Cash and cash equivalents & : IR& KIREFEIER (305,200) (221,606)
Net debt FEE 1,451,120 1,189,916
Total equity LN N 3,382,185 3,457,089
Total equity and net debt MR FEE 4,833,305 4,647,005
Gearing ratio BERAGELE =R 30% 26%
FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL 48. EMERZ L FE
INSTRUMENTS
The directors consider that the carrying amounts of the A2 EERRABLENERG
financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the ZeRMEEREBBERYK

financial statements approximated to their fair values at
the end of the reporting period.

N

FEE-

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised
for issue by the board of directors on 28 June 2012.

49. MBSt H#
BBHEEER - ——F A
- AH@i%@m&I&E%
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SCHEDULE OF PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES FE¥ £ 2

31 March 2012 —E——F=8=+—H

Particulars of the investment properties held by the Groupas RZ-ZZE——F=ZA=+—BAKEHEFHE

at 31 March 2012 are as follows: NIREMEFBUOT :
Approx.

gross area Effective Stage of
Name/location Tenure Type (m?) % held completion

RERHE BEREHR
E1 V81" GRHE ®|h (EHXR) BO ERER
Hong Kong
g8
Unit B, 26th Floor Medium term 1,568 100 Completed
Wyler Centre, Phase Il, lease

200 Tai Lin Pai Road,
Kwai Chung, New Territories

AR HHEAFE 4 T &K
7&2@3&200%
BmHALEZ
2612BE
Ground Floor and Cockloft, Medium term C 87* 100 Completed
61 South Wall Road, lease
Kowloon City, Kowloon

BENEWMEE TR AT 5] BEK
6155 T & EE
Unit No. G37, Ground Long term C 77* 100 Completed
Floor, Peninsula Centre, lease

67 Mody Road,
Tsimshatsui East, Kowloon
BEADHERIBEME REHELD 5] BE K
mﬁ¢%¢mmT
G375R B fL

Tak Sing Alliance Building, Medium term C 780* 100 Completed
1/F-3/F, 15/F-18/F, lease

115 Chatham Road South,

Tsimshatsui, Kowloon

NEXRDE RHATE A9 [ BEK
BB R 1155%

EREENE

=38

15 51812

Notes: Bt 5

Types of properties: I-Industrial, R-Residential, C-Commercial YIZESER: I-T% R—FX£ C—E%
# Gross floor area # BIZEEE

m ANNUAL REPORT 2012 ¥R



Particulars of the investment properties held by the Group as

SCHEDULE OF PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES =& E

31 March 2012 —E——F=8=+—H

at 31 March 2012 are as follows: (continued)

Name/location

1.0 L

Tenure

RN

Approx.

gross area

Type (m?)
AEROR

®|A (EHXR)

Effective
% held
ERBS
Bal

R_B-——_F=A=+—HAXKEHEE
MIREMEFBNT : (F)

Stage of
completion

e R B X

Hong Kong
gE

15th Floor and

Carparking Space No. 5,
Young Ya Industrial Building,
381-389 Sha Tsui Road,
Tsuen Wan, New Territories
MALE

Y 18 38381-3895%
KETEKRE

15 &

# N E5HRE L

Mainland China
K

Units 9D-F, 10A-F, 22C
Man Wah Mansion,

Shenzhen Special Economic Zone

A B
XERNEAE
9D-F, 10A-F, 22-C

Carrianna Friendship Square,
Junction Renmin Road South
and Chunfeng Road,

Shenzhen Special Economic Zone

RGBSR
AR EEREZR
ERBRARS

Notes:

Types of properties: I-Industrial, R-Residential, C-Commercial

# Gross floor area

Medium term
lease

R EIA A

Medium term
lease

R EIA A

Medium term
lease

REIA A

2,594%

CR 1,881%

B/

C 28,109

B & -

100

100

100

Completed

Completed

Completed

BEX

MEER: I-IT¥ R—EE C—EF

# BBHEEE

TAK SING ALLIANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED # X & m



SCHEDULE OF PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES FE¥ £ 2

31 March 2012 —E——F=8=+—H

Particulars of the investment properties held by the Group as
at 31 March 2012 are as follows: (continued)

R_B-——_F=A=+—HAXKEHEE
MIREMEFBNT : (F)

Approx.

gross area Effective Stage of
Name/location Tenure Type (m?) % held completion

AEROR BER&EHR
BB R GRS ®|A (EHXR) BALk TRRER
Mainland China
hE KR
A building at Shi Lien Road, Leasehold 3,322¢ 100 Completed
Chiu Tien Industrial Park,
Shi Lou Town,
Panyu District,
Guangdong Province
fRERE BEH T BERK
H#BE
AIBE
B T ¥4
MERZ —EBEF
A building at Gowtong Leasehold 14,754* 100 Completed
Village, Panyu District,
Guangdong Province
fRERE B T B &R
HBE
XENZEBTF
Imperial Palace, Long term CR 4,899¢ 100 Completed
Hong Yi Cun, lease
Baoan South Road,
Shenzhen Special Economic Zone
RN R REAHA B/ BI&K
H—H
R
BpEAE
14 Zu Miao Road, Leasehold C 6,838* 100 Completed
Foshan Municipal
1L BEH 5] B &K
18 B BE 1455
Notes: P&

Types of properties: I-Industrial, R-Residential, C-Commercial
# Gross floor area

m ANNUAL REPORT 2012 ¥R
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Particulars of the properties held as property, plant and
equipment by the Group as at 31 March 2012 are as follows:

SCHEDULE OF PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES =& E

31 March 2012 —E——F=8=+—H

R-ZE——_F=RA=+—BAXKEHE
ERYE BERRBZOEFBET

Approx.
gross area Effective Stage of
Name/location Tenure Type (m?) % held completion
RERHE BEREHR
E1 V81" GRHE ®|h (EHXR) BO ERER
Hong Kong
g8
Unit A, 26th Floor and Leasehold 812* 100 Completed
Carparking Space Nos. 19, 20, 21,
22, 39 and 40 on 2nd Floor and
Lorry Parking Space No. L21
on 1st Floor, Wyler Centre, Phase I,
200 Tai Lin Pai Road,
Kwai Chung, New Territories
R BEH T B

ANEHEE200 57
BfapOE B

261 AE M2IEE 1955
2057 ~ 215% ~ 2255
39%%  405% B )t
L2198 EREN

TAK SING ALLIANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED # X & m



SCHEDULE OF PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES FE¥ £ 2

31 March 2012 —E——F=8=+—H

Particulars of the properties held as property, plant and R-ZE——"F=F=+—HALEEBE#EH
equipment by the Group as at 31 March 2012 are as follows: EEME BERREBZMEFBLOT :

(continued) (&)
Approx.

gross area Effective Stage of
Name/location Tenure Type (m?) % held completion

AEROE BEREH
/B e AL ®|a (EHXK) BSOS TRER
Mainland China
PEXE
Nos. 3-6, 5/F, Leasehold C 1,502* 100 Completed

Carrianna Friendship Square,
Junction Renmin Road South
and Chunfeng Road,

Shenzhen Special Economic Zone

RN [ AEH ] B &R
AREE K

SIE R

EERREES

H82-6%

2 Zishan Road, Yiyang Municipal Leasehold C 34,490¢ 100 Completed
g [ T 9 L B 2 5% BEH 5] B&RK

14 Zu Miao Road, Leasehold C 12,954*% 100 Completed
Foshan Municipal

Bl AEH [ B &K

1H BIRR 1457

Notes: B aE -

Types of properties: |-Industrial, R-Residential, C-Commercial MERR I -T¥ R—FE-C-BE%

# Gross floor area # MBIZE A
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Particulars of the properties held as property, plant and
equipment by the Group as at 31 March 2012 are as follows:

(continued)

Name/location

1.8 L

SCHEDULE OF PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES =& E

31 March 2012 —E——F=8=+—H

Tenure

ERMEHR

Type

5

R-ZE——_F=RA=+—BAXKEHE
ERYE BERRBZOEFBET:

(%)

Approx.
gross area Effective
(m?) % held
AEROE BEREH
(EHXK) BSl

Stage of
completion

SRR

Mainland China
B K

Sales

East of Xin Guang Road/South of
Da Gang Road C section

Lin Gang Industrial Area,
Lianyang Eco & Tech

Center,

Development Zone,
Lianyungang

3

BEERERGEERE
B R KB

CE

Notes:

Types of properties: I-Industrial, R-Residential, C-Commercial

#

Gross floor area

Leasehold

BEH

1,739¢ 100

B 5 :

Completed

YIERER - T R—FEE C—HEx

# BIBEE S

TAK SING ALLIANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED # X & m



SCHEDULE OF PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES FE¥ £ 2

31 March 2012 —E——F=8=+—H

Particulars of the properties held for sale held by the Group @ R-ZE——"F=F=+—HALEEBEEH

as at 31 March 2012 are as follows: ERPEFBOT
Approx.

gross area Effective Stage of
Name/location Tenure Type (m?) % held completion

HREROR BEREHR
E1 V81" ERAKE ®|h (EHXR) BSOSk REER
Mainland China
PEXE
Carrianna Friendship Square, Medium term C/R 3,720¢% 100 Completed
Junction Renmin Road South lease
and Chunfeng Road,
Shenzhen Special Economic Zone
AR E R i FE 4 VA B &K
ARBEBRERERZR
EEBRARES
Imperial Palace, Long term C/R 154+ 100 Completed
Hong Yi Cun, lease
Baoan South Road,
Shenzhen
AR [ REH A B/ B
s —
REmEH
BEAE
Residential units and car parks Long term C/R 32,052¢ 84.1 Completed
of Grand Lake City, lease
Yiyang Road, Hunan
5 = b5 K8 REH A B/ B &K
LR E R E AL
Shooping street of Medium term C 10,820* 84.1 Completed
Grand Lake City, lease
Yiyang Road, Hunan
5 E = b5 K8 fr HIFE 4 5] B &K
LR R %

m ANNUAL REPORT 2012 ¥R



SCHEDULE OF PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES =& E

Particulars of the properties held for sale held by the Group

as at 31 March 2012 are as follows: (continued)

Name/location Tenure

28 e LRAKE

Type

i)l

31 March 2012 —E——F=8=+—H

R_IB-——F=A=+—BXEERFFH
ERPYEFBOT: (B)

Approx.
gross area
(m?)
RERHE
(FHXK)

Effective
% held
ERBE
Bol

Stage of
completion

SR B

Mainland China
B K R

Medium term
lease

Leather Trade Centre

REZGH D

East of Xin Guang Road/South of
Da Gang Road B section,

Lin Gang Industrial Area,
Lianyang Eco & Tech
Development Zone,

Lianyungang
EESHERBASEXR
N RARERKEB R

R EAA 4

Medium term
lease

Building Materials Trade Centre
EM R ZH 0

East of Xin Guang Road/South of
Da Gang Road C section,

Lin Gang Industrial Area,
Lianyang Eco & Tech
Development Zone,

Lianyungang
EESHERBIEXRR

N RARBRERECKR

R EAA 4

Notes:

Types of properties: I-Industrial, R-Residential, C-Commercial
# Gross floor area

40,644* 72 Completed

B

56,285" 72 Completed

BEEK
5 -

YRR I-T¥ R—FE C—HE
# 488 TH AR

TAK SING ALLIANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED # X &
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SCHEDULE OF PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES FE¥ £ 2

31 March 2012 —E——F=8=+—H

R-EBE-——_F=ZA=+—BXEEHEF

Particulars of the properties under development held by the

Group as at 31 March 2012 are as follows: ERPEFBOT
Expected
Site Stage of Effective completion
Location Use area completion % held date
BEREHR
it B R& TiEE e R B X B WiESER
(m?)
(EHXK)
Mainland China
PEXE
Chaoyang Road to the Commercial/ 29,997 Foundation work 84.1 N/A
north, Zishanhu to residential in progress
the south, Yiyang
g b5 0 30 5 B AR - R LA DA AE mE/EE ETRETH
Zishancun Reservoir Commercial/ 103,584 Foundation work 84.1 N/A
to the east, Yiyang residential in progress
Road to the north,
Yiyang
g b A LA K E P BE/EE ETRETH
=l A E Al
Tuanyuan Road Commercial/ 318,709 Design work 84.1 N/A
to the east, Yiyang residential in progress
w5 B 5 7 A BE/fEE AT TRETTH
Yangwuling Village, Lucigiao Village, Commercial/ 120,040 Design work in 84.1 N/A
Yiyang residential progress
wlEmFERN  BEBN BME/EE Rt TIEETT
East of Xin Guang Road/South of Commercial/ 59,640 Foundation work 72 N/A
Da Gang Road B section, residential in progress
Lin Gang Industrial Area,
Lianyang Eco & Tech
Development Zone, Lianyungang
ETERERGBERENLE mE/EE M ETRETH
RABHKEBR
East of Xin Guang Road/South of Commercial/ 77,757 Foundation work 72 N/A
Da Gang Road F section residential in progress
Lin Gang Industrial Area,
Lianyang Eco & Tech
Development Zone, Lianyungang
BEEEHERGAERRBNLR mE/EE HETRRETH

RABEEFR
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Particulars of the properties under development held by the

Group as at 31 March 2012 are as follows: (continued)

SCHEDULE OF PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES =& E

31 March 2012 —E——F=8=+—H

RIB-——F=RA=1+—BEXEERFFH
ERPYEFBOT: (F)

Expected
Site Stage of Effective completion
Location Use area completion % held date
BER&EHR
it B R THER e R B BX Bt WiESEH
(m?)
(EHXR)
Mainland China
PEXE
East of Xin Guang Road/ South of Commercial/ 64,949 Foundation work 72 N/A
Da Gang Road C section residential in progress
Lin Gang Industrial Area,
Lianyang Eco & Tech
Development Zone, Lianyungang
BEESHERGEERRBMNAR ME/fFE M ETRETH
RABEECR
East of Xin Guang Road/South of Commercial/ 93,643 Foundation work 72 N/A
Da Gang Road E section residential in progress
Lin Gang Industrial Area,
Lianyang Eco & Tech
Development Zone, Lianyungang
EEREHERBEBERRNAE wmE/Ex METRETH
RABEEER
East of Xin Guang Road/South of Commercial/ 122,577 Foundation work 72 N/A
Da Gang Road G section residential in progress
Lin Gang Industrial Area,
Lianyang Eco & Tech
Development Zone, Lianyungang
BEESHEREBERRBNLE mE/EE METRETH
RABBEGR
East of Xin Guang Road/South of Commercial/ 83,618 Foundation work 72 N/A
Da Gang Road H section residential in progress
Lin Gang Industrial Area,
Lianyang Eco & Tech
Development Zone, Lianyungang
BEESHERGAERRBMNAR ME/fFE M ETRETH

RABBEHER

TAK SING ALLIANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED # X & m



NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING REERiAFE A= E

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that an annual general
meeting of Tak Sing Alliance Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) will be held at Carrianna (Chiu Chow)
Restaurant, 1st Floor, 151 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong
Kong on Monday, 27 August 2012 at 11:00 a.m. for the

following purposes:

1. To receive and consider the audited financial statements
and the reports of the directors of the Company (the
“Directors”) and of the auditors of the Company for the

year ended 31 March 2012.

2. To declare a final dividend for the year ended 31 March

2012.

3. To re-elect Directors and to authorise the board of
Directors to fix the Directors’ remuneration.

4. To re-appoint the auditors of the Company and
to authorise the board of Directors to fix their

remuneration.

5. As special business, to consider and, if thought fit, pass
with or without amendments, the following resolutions

as ordinary resolutions:
ORDINARY RESOLUTIONS

A.  "THAT

(@) Subject to paragraph (b) below, the exercise
by the Directors during the Relevant Period
of all the powers of the Company to
purchase issued shares of HK$0.10 each in
the capital of the Company, subject to and
in accordance with the applicable laws and
the requirements of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited as amended from
time to time be and is hereby generally and

unconditionally approved;

(b) the aggregate nominal amount of shares to
be purchased pursuant to the approval in
paragraph (a) above shall not exceed 10% of
the aggregate nominal amount of the share
capital of the Company in issue on the date
of this resolution, and the said approval shall

be limited accordingly; and

m ANNUAL REPORT 2012 ¥R
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B.

(@

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING R&EREFE N 2@

for the purpose of this resolution, “Relevant
Period” means the period from the date of
passing of this resolution until whichever is
the earlier of:

(i) the conclusion of the next annual
general meeting of the Company;

(i) the revocation or variation of the
authority given under this resolution by
ordinary resolution of the shareholders in
general meeting; and

(iii) the expiration of the period within which
the next annual general meeting of the
Company is required by the Bye-laws of
the Company or the laws of Bermuda to
be held.”.

“THAT

(a)

subject to sub-paragraph (c) of this resolution,
the exercise by the Directors during the
Relevant Period (as hereinafter defined) of all
the powers of the Company to allot, issue
or otherwise deal with additional shares of
the Company and to make or grant offers,
agreements and options which might require
the exercise of such powers be and is hereby
generally and unconditionally approved;

the approval in sub-paragraph (a) of this
resolution shall authorise the Directors during
the Relevant Period to make or grant offers,
agreements and options which might require
the exercise of such power after the end of
the Relevant Period;

(@

BRARBRMS  [H R
HIR | DR ARZERB
B2 BENIMEA — AR
B4 2 BHILEZ Hf

(i) AR TEBRBF
KGR

(i) ANRBREHDZEN
RAEBCRERRKRE
BREBRBRETIA
BEHHET 2B &

(i) AAaElZRAAIHAI
BREZXFBEARRD
RIZARIT T ERRA
FREHRERZ
Holo

(BN -

(a)

ERFR(OD B ZIRH
T —REEGREHRES
EEFRHPHEAN(EER
TX)ITEARRBE #
NIABCE - BHATHEEIE AR
DA BN - RAE
SR TAREFBEITELF
BhzEE HhaEMBKR
i

AR T (a) 0 BLZ HE S
BERESEARBREAE
H X TR BE AN A B 1
RERRITEZSTENZ
B e AR

TAK SING ALLIANCE HOLDINGS LIMITED # X & m



NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING RZERFEF KX

(@

the aggregate nominal amount of share
capital allotted or agreed conditionally or
unconditionally to be allotted (whether
pursuant to an option or otherwise) by the
Directors pursuant to the approval in sub-
paragraph (a) of this resolution, otherwise
than pursuant to:

(i) a Rights Issue (as hereinafter defined);

(i) the exercise of any option scheme or
similar arrangement for the time being
adopted for the grant or issue to officers
and/or employees of the Company and/
or any of its subsidiaries of shares or
rights to acquire shares of the Company;
and

(iii) any scrip dividend or similar arrangement

providing for the allotment of shares in

lieu of the whole or part of a dividend
on shares of the Company in accordance
with the Bye-laws of the Company;

shall not exceed 20% of the aggregate
nominal amount of the share capital of the
Company in issue at the date of the passing
of this resolution, and the said approval shall
be limited accordingly; and

for the purpose of this resolution, “Relevant
Period” means the period from the passing
of this resolution until whichever is the earlier
of:

(i) the conclusion of the next annual
general meeting of the Company;
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(i) the revocation or variation of the
authority given under this resolution by
ordinary resolution of the shareholders in
general meeting; and

(iii) the expiration of the period within which
the next annual general meeting of the
Company is required by the Bye-laws of
the Company or the laws of Bermuda to
be held.”;

“Rights Issue” means an offer of shares in
the Company open for a period fixed by the
Directors to holders of shares of the Company
whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company on a fixed record
date in proportion to their then holdings of
such shares (subject to such exclusions or
other arrangements as the Directors may
deem necessary or expedient in relation to
fractional entitlements or having regards to
any restrictions or obligations under the laws
of, or the requirements of any recognised
body or any stock exchange, in any territory
outside Hong Kong).".

"THAT conditional upon the passing of the
ordinary resolutions no. 5A and 5B set out above,
the general mandate granted to the Directors
pursuant to resolution no. 5B be and is hereby
extended by the addition thereto of an amount
representing the aggregate nominal amount of
the share capital repurchased by the Company
under the authority granted in resolution no. 5A,
provided that such amount shall not exceed 10%
of the aggregate nominal amount of the share
capital of the Company in issue at the date of the
passing of this resolution.”.

To transact any other business.

By Order of the Board

Tak Sing Alliance Holdings Limited
Ng Yan Kwong

Company Secretary

Hong Kong, 28 June 2012
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Notes:

For the purpose of ascertaining shareholders’ right to attend and
vote at the Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on
Monday, 27 August 2012, the Register of Members of the Company
will be closed from Friday, 24 August 2012 to Monday, 27 August
2012, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares
will be effected. In order for a shareholder to be eligible to attend
and vote at the Annual General Meeting, all transfers accompanied
by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company's
Shares Registrars in Hong Kong, Tricor Tengis Limited, at 26/F., Tesbury
Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong not later than
4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 23 August 2012.

For the purpose of ascertaining shareholders’ entitlement to the
proposed final dividend, the Register of Members of the Company
will be closed from Wednesday, 26 September 2012 to Friday, 28
September 2012, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer
of shares will be effected. In order to qualify for the proposed final
dividend (subject to shareholders’ approval at the Annual General
Meeting), all transfers accompanied by the relevant share certificates
must be lodged with the Company’s Share Registrars in Hong Kong,
Tricor Tengis Limited, at 26/F., Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road
East, Wanchai, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 25
September 2012.

A member entitled to attend and vote at the Meeting is entitled to
appoint one or more proxies to attend and vote on his/her behalf. A
proxy need not be a member of the Company. If more than one proxy
is so appointed, the appointment shall specify the number and class
of shares in respect of which each such proxy is so appointed.

To be valid, a form of proxy and the power of attorney or other
authority, if any, under which it is signed, or a notarially certified
copy of such power of attorney or authority, must be lodged with
the Company's share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Tengis Limited,
at 26/F., Tesbury Centre, 28 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong
not less than 48 hours before the time appointed for holding the
Meeting.

An explanatory statement containing further details regarding

ordinary resolution No. 5 above will be sent to shareholders shortly
together with the 2012 Annual Report.
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